o City of
—INewDerg

Planning Commission Meeting

7PM
Public Safety Building
401 E Third St
Hybrid: Instructions To Join Electronically At Www.Newbergoregon.Gov
Email Comments To: Fe.Bates@Newbergoregon.Gov

February 13, 2025

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS

(5-minute maximum per person - for items not on the agenda)

CONSENT CALENDAR
a. 1/9/25 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS

(complete registration form to give testimony - 5-minute maximum per person except for principals, unless otherwise set by
majority motion of the Planning Commission).

PUD24-0009 Nagomi at Springbrook 100-Unit Planned Unit Development at 3809 NE Springbrook
Road

PUD24-0001 Staff Report, Order, and Exhibits.pdf

Attachment 1 - Application and Supplemental Materials.pdf

Attachment 2 - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Attachment 3 - Agency Comments.pdf

ITEMS FROM STAFF
a. Anticipated Schedule of Planning Commission Activities

b. Staff Updates for Planning Commission

ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS

ADJOURNMENT


http://www.newbergoregon.gov/
mailto:Fe.Bates@Newbergoregon.Gov
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/Efzv3w28d3NIo6Q0PUX6s1cBYJDoiJcyUti5k5Q9uKVb8g?e=lNIXk2
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/EXZ17ktMkBhLv0UhuGa2x3YBp_lV24io8Q5RXh6a4Vq2Qg?e=9PUr49
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/EUu64RYlzJxKh6cIU9DXBW0B295teeiY__TLZxcfsbL3Cg?e=8Ltn5S
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/EYA0BAi9pmZPukOVENUyJkkBnfN0h2aLiK_pYBjOvbwH_w?e=qOa1X4
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/EQX1dZDT4FpGq27fd6fIqJsBJrZSKTr-atSGCtZzWASdhA?e=EXBRjB
https://newbergoregon.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/ExternalSharing/EUaBwqZS2NVJnOBj3zlJNE4B0GXvBf-ICOe83nGAJ-V2FA?e=FEdNRt

T City of

S .

~Newberg

Planning Commission Meeting

January 9, 2024

CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Meeting called to order at 7:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL
Commissioners Present:
Jason Dale
Linda Newton-Curtis (Chair)
Layne Quinn (Vice Chair)
Mathew Mansfield
Randy Rickert
Jose Villalpando
Kriss Wright

Commissioners Absent:
Elise Steffen (Student)

City Council Representative:
Jeri Turgesen

Staff Present: Planning Manager: Clay Downing
Assistant Planner: Leanne Wagener
Associate Planner: Jeremiah Cromie
Community Development Director: Scot Siegel
Administrative Assistant: Fé Bates

INTRODUCTION OF NEW COMMISSIONERS

ELECTION OF NEW CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR

Chair Dale asked Vice Chair Linda Newton-Curtis if she would like to step up to Chair as
since the standing custom has been for the Vice Chair to become the Chair,
Commissioner Newton-Cutis accepted.

Commissioner Wright Nominated Linda Newton-Curtis as Chair of the Planning
Commission, seconded by Commissioner Rickert.
Voice Vote: Unanimous YES

Commissioner Wright asked if Layne Quinn would except the position of Vice Chair, and
Commissioner Quinn accepted.

City of Newberg Planning Commission Meeting January 9, 2024



Commissioner Wright Nominated Layne Quinn as Vice Chair of the Planning
Commission, seconded by Commissioner Dale.
Voice Vote: Unanimous YES

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

CONSENT CALENDAR

Approve December 12 Minutes

Action: Approve the minutes from December 12, 2024
Motion: Commissioner Griffiths

Second: Commissioner Rickert

Voice Vote: Unanimous Yes

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS

CUP24-0007: Conditional Use Permit to use a single-family dwelling as a vacation
rental at 315 W Lindgren Dr.

Assistant Planner Wagener presented the Staff report to the Planning Commission and
answered Commissioners questions about it.

Chair opened the floor Public Testimony:
PROPONENT: Applicant Rick & Susan DeMatei testified to the Commissioners in regard
to their application and answered questions from Planning Commissioners.

Chair Closed the Public Testimony and asked for final comments from Staff:
Staff recommended approval of CUP24-0007 a conditional use permit to use a single-
family dwelling as a vacation rental home at 315 W Lindgren Dr.

Chair Opened the floor for Planning Commissioners’ deliberation:
After discussion the Planning Commission chose to:

Action: Approve CUP24-0007 as a vacation rental home at 315 W Lindgren Dr.
Motion: Commissioner Wright
Second: Commissioner Quinn

Roll Call Vote: 7 YES; _ NO; 1 Absent;__ Abstained

CUP24-0008: Conditional Use Permit to use a single-family dwelling as a vacation
rental at 510 N School St.

Assistant Planner Wagener presented the Staff report to the Planning Commission and
answered Commissioners questions about it.

Newberg Planning Commission Meeting — Jan. 9%, 2024 20of 5



Chair opened the floor Public Testimony:
There was no public testimony.

Chair Closed the Public Testimony and asked for final comments from Staff:
Staff recommended approval of CUP24-0008 a conditional use permit to use a single-
family dwelling as a vacation rental home at 510 N School St.

Chair Opened the floor for Planning Commissioners’ deliberation:

Commissioner Write asked questions that needed to be answered by the applicant who
was not present. Commission asked Staff if they could continue the hearing to the next
meeting so the applicant could respond to the concerns. After discussion the Planning
Commission chose to:

Action: Approve CUP24-0008 as a vacation rental home at 510 N School St.
Motion: Commissioner Wright
Second: Commissioner Dale

Roll Call Vote: 6 YES ;1 NO; 1 Absent;__ Abstained

CUP24-0004/DR224-0006/MISC124-0018: Conditional Use, Design Review &
Stream Corridor Overlay Permit to Develop the West Branch Apartment
Development on the corner of Hayes and Springbrook.

Associate Planner Cromie presented the Staff report to the Planning Commission and
answered Commissioners questions about it.

Chair opened the floor Public Testimony:
PROPONENT: Applicant DMKS LLC representative AKS testified to the Commissioners in
regard to the application and answered questions from Planning Commissioners.

OPPONENT: Commissioners heard testimony against the project regarding the effects it
will have on the neighboring Grange Hall and the effect the additional light will have on
the Drive-In; from:

Staras Gibson, Stephen Brunner, Zach Pelz, Sonia French, Brandon Slyter

Commissioners asked the applicant back up to ask some clarifying questions that were
brought up from the testimony.

Chair Closed the Public Testimony and asked for final comments from Staff:

Staff recommended approval of CUP24-0004/DR224-0006/MISC124-0018: Conditional
Use, Design Review & Stream Corridor Overlay Permit to Develop the West Branch
Apartment Development on the corner of Hayes and Springbrook.

Chair Opened the floor for Planning Commissioners’ deliberation:
After discussion and questions with staff the Planning Commission chose to:

Action: Approve CUP24-0004/DR224-0006/MISC124-0018 for a 96-unit
Multifamily development
Motion: Commissioner Quinn

Newberg Planning Commission Meeting — Jan. 9%, 2024 3of 5



Second: Commissioner Dale
Roll Call Vote: 4 YES; 3 NO; _1  Absent;__ Abstained

LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS

CA24-0002: Code Maintenance Package
Community Development Director Siege presented the staff report to the Planning
Commission and answered Commissioners questions about it.

Chair opened the floor Public Testimony: NONE

Chair Closed the Public Testimony and asked for final comments from Staff:

Staff Recommends approving RES2025-398 which recommends City Council adopt the
Code Amendments which clarify regulations and brings the code into compliance with
State Land Use Requirements.

Chair Opened the floor for Panning Commissioners deliberation:
Commissioners agreed that the proposed changes to the code is beneficial for the City.

Action: Recommend adopting RES2025-398 as written by Staff.
Motion: Commissioner Wright
Second: Commissioner Mansfield

Roll Call Vote: 7 YES; _ NO; 1 Absent;__ Abstained

ITEMS FROM STAFF

Planning Manager Clay Downing informed the Commission of the anticipated schedule
for the next Planning Commission meeting.

Associate Planner Cromie informed the Commission that the Craft Industrial District was

approved by the City Council and if no appeals are submitted it will go in effect February
7th,

ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS

ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at _10:26 _ p.m.

Newberg Planning Commission Meeting — Jan. 9%, 2024 40of 5



Attest:

Planning Commission Chair Fé Bates, Planning Commission Secretary

Newberg Planning Commission Meeting — Jan. 9%, 2024 Sof5



Community Development Department

STAFF REPORT
Planned Unit Development
3809 NE Springbrook Road (File No. PUD24-0001)

FILE NO: PUD24-0001

REQUEST 100-unit planned unit development at 3809 NE Springbrook Road
LOCATION: 3809 NE Springbrook Road

TAX LOT: R3209 02300

APPLICANT: Ichijo USA Co. LTD c/o Masaki Narita

OWNER: Ross D Kerr, Rolland G Kerr Jr.

ZONE: Low Density Residential (R-1), High Density Residential (R-3)

PLAN DISTRICT: Low Density Residential (LDR), High Density Residential (HDR)

OVERLAY: Airport Overlay Subdistrict (AO)
Stream Corridor Overlay Subdistrict (SC)

ATTACHMENTS:
Planning Commission Order 2025-01

Exhibit “A”: Findings
Exhibit “B”: Conditions of Approval

Attachment 1: Application and Supplemental Materials
Attachment 2: Preliminary Plat
Attachment 3: Agency Comments



Community Development Department

Table of Contents

STAFF REPORT: Application Information .............cccceeeuieiiiiiiiiieeieieeeee et 3
Planning Commission Order 2025-01 ...........ccoooueevieiiieeiiieieeeiieseeecieeeee et esve e e seesseesenesseens 11
EXHIBIT “A” TO PLANNING COMMISSION Order No. 2025-01 .....cccoevvieieieieniereeeeeeee 12
FINDINGS ...ttt et s a ettt se e bt e st e e bt e bt et e sa b e bt et e eatenbeentesaeenee 12
A. FINDINGS FOR LAND USE PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES (NMC DIVISION
I5.T00) 1ttt st b et h e bt et eh e e bt et en e b et 12
Chapter 15.100 LAND USE PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES .........cccccvevieiinieirnene. 12
B. FINDINGS FOR LAND USE APPLICATIONS (NMC DIVISION 15.200).....c..cccceueu.... 13
Chapter 15.240 PD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS .........cccccueu..... 13
C. FINDINGS FOR ZONING DISTRICTS (NMC DIVISION 15.300) ...cccveoveveeienienienienaenne 31
Chapter 15.305 ZONING USE TABLE ......c.ooiiiieeeee e 31
Chapter 15.340 AIRPORT OVERLAY (AO) SUBDISTRICT ......cceeovvieieieieieneeieeeeeneen. 32
Chapter 15.342 STREAM CORRIDOR OVERLAY (SC) SUBDISTRICT..........ccceeueu.... 33
D. Findings for Development Standards (NMC Division 400) .........ccceceeveriieneenienieneenienene 34
Chapter 15.405 LOT REQUIREMENTS ......ooiiiiiiiiieetee et 34
Chapter 15.410 YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS .......cccoiiiiiiiinieieeeeeiesee 38
Chapter 15.415 BUILDING AND SITE DESIGN STANDARDS. .......ccoccviiiiinininerenene. 45
Chapter 15.420 LANDSCAPING AND OUTDOOR AREAS ......cccooiiiiiiieieeneceeeen, 47
Chapter 15.425 EXTERIOR LIGHTING .....cc.coiiiiiiiirieieieeseeeeeeee e 57
Chapter 15.430 UNDERGROUND UTILITY INSTALLATION .....cccecteiiiiiieeeieeeenee. 58
Chapter 15.440 OFF-STREET PARKING, BICYCLE PARKING, AND PRIVATE
WALKWAY S ettt ettt ettt st e bt et e e bt e bt entesbeenbeentesseenseeneenee 59
Chapter 15.505 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS STANDARDS .......cccoooiiieieieeereeeeeeee, 62
CONCLUSION: ...ttt ettt ettt e bt et e s e sae et e e st enbeenbesseenbeeneeeneenees 98
EXHIBIT “B” TO PLANNING COMMISSION Order No. 2025-01 .....cccoovvieieieienienenenene 99
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ..ottt ettt st 99

Page 2 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

STAFF REPORT: APPLICATION INFORMATION
Planned Unit Development
3809 NE Springbrook Road (File No. PUD24-0001)

DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION:

Ichijo USA Co. LTD c/o Masaki Narita (Applicant), on behalf of Ross D Kerr and Rolland G
Kerr Jr. (Owners), proposes a 100-unit single family residential planned unit development (PUD)
at 3809 NE Springbrook Road (Tax Lot R3209 02300) at a density of 5.2 dwelling units per acre.
The proposed PUD includes 17 three-bedroom dwellings and 83 four-bedroom dwellings. The
subject property is located within the City of Newberg’s Urban Growth Boundary and city limit
and was annexed through Ordinance No. 2024-2931 (File No. ANX24-0001).

Attachment 1 contains the Applicant’s narrative, plans, and supporting documents. Attachment 2
illustrates the preliminary plat submitted with the application. According to the application
materials, the proposed PUD will meet the City of Newberg’s Development Code except for the
following requirements that the Applicant is proposing to adjust through the PUD process:

e R-1 Zoning District Modification Requests

1. NMC 15.405.030(D)(a) — requires that each lot or development site shall have
either frontage on a public street for a distance of at least 25 feet or have access to
a public street through an easement that is at least 25 feet wide.

1. Request: 20-foot shared access easement for Lots 82 and 83, and a 20.1-
foot frontage for Lot 12.

2. NMC 15.405.040(B) — limits maximum lot coverage for residential uses to 40
percent and combined maximum lot and parking coverage to 60 percent in the R-
1 zoning district.

1. Request: Maximum lot coverage of 50% in the R-1 zoning district.
e R-1 and R-3 Zoning District Modification Requests
1. NMC 15.240.020(K) — limits building height to a sun exposure plane.
1. Request: Intrusions into the sun exposure plane for certain lots.

The proposed PUD is also in the Airport Overlay Subdistrict and Stream Corridor Overlay
Subdistrict and is required to comply with NMC 15.340 and NMC 15.342 which is addressed
elsewhere in this staff report.

Page 3 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



R32098

—_—

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov

bl

R

Subject Property

Taxlots

City Limits

Urban Growth Boundary
Urban Reserve Area

City of

ewberg

3809 NE Springbrook Road

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO ALL USERS:

DISCLAIMER AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
This information is not guaranteed to be accurate and may
contain errors and omissions. The City of Newberg provides
NO WARRANTY AS TO THE MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR THE ARTICULARY PURPOSE FOR ANY
INFORMATION HEREIN,

The map is created from various data sources and
is subject 1o change without notice.
‘This map is intended for general planning purposes only.
Map updated: 11/13:2023

Page 4 of 106

"i' l“
114757810
5209102200 l‘

p ‘
J1la'5'815) "

43 209006100)
3200106000 N IRR 3209106100,

400 Feet
| 1 1 1 ]




Zoning Map

R3209101800)

R3209101900),

3809 NE Springbrook Road - Zomng N @F

Subject Property e
.| Taxlots 0 250 500 Feet
% City Limits L ' A A |
ZONING

[ 1 R-1 Low Density Residential
.| R-3 High Density Residential
SD/H Springbrook District - Hospitality
' SD/LDR Springbrook Distret - Low Density Residential
SD/V Springbrook District - Village ,ponmarornce toat vsens

DISCLAIMER AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
<l f This information is nol guaranteed lo be accurate and may
tr o comtain errors and omissions. The City of Newbera provides

) [

'E'EE!- pre
B "’gﬁla"ﬁé"
i

_ﬂ NO WARRANTY AS TO THE MERCIIANTABILITY OR
—— FITNESS FOR THE ARTICULARY PURPOSE FOR ANY
INFORMATION HEREIN

The map is created from various dara sources and
is subject to change without notice.
This map is intended for general planning purposes only.
Date Exporied: 12/9/2024 9:46 AM

Page 5 of 106

Newberg Community Development ¢ 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




R320910)1'800)

R3209
047074

‘
:
:
&
g
2]

-l ___" i
23999

132091022001 !
j1{a '5'815
5 -

|
|

¥ E
(B IE N ATy

123209105800
1232091062 00)

R320980 6000,

Subject Collector Wi N
Property Storm Pipe A2 v

Taxlots Water Meter 0 250 500 Feet

Sewer ©  Water Valves

Manholes CITY OF
—— Sewer Laterals —— NEWBERG,

—— Gravity Main Potable Main
Active Storm  __ Hydrant
Inlet Lateral

—— Service Lateral

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO ALL USERS:
DISCLAIMER AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
This information is not guaranteed to be accurate and may contain errors and

c“y of omissions. The City of Newberg provides NO WARRANTY AS TO THE
-0, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR THE PARTICULARY PURPOSE
— ew e FOR ANY INFORMATION HEREIN, The map is created from various data
sources and is subject to change without notice. This map 1s intended for general

planning purposes only.
Date Exported: 9/3/2024 10:48 AM

Page 6 of 106

Newberg Community Development ¢ 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

Site Plan

21555 NE SPRINCORDOK D SUBOMBIONIGATISHEETSZ0815- 57E PLAN DG

1 107 0za00
TAX MAP 32,0

T YW Xl

ey =
I aF 4 ﬁ”’— j FAlF3E RS

BT dew s
o031 107 ¥l

I Eg bl g
gg lil 2 g

e 0 a0 sanns e [

I AN 2
OO0 AL —

Wz M SE LS NDILDEE

KOSTUD NN Tk

EREEEN

§ 3J CONSULTING " QVERALL SITE PLAN
Q% L i NE SPRINGBROOK RD
o o PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
o ICHIIO USA €O, LTD.

5500 5 NIMELS 8VE 5UTE 107, BEAVEATON, O 5708 NEWBERG, OR

Page 7 of 106

Newberg Community Development ¢ 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

SITE INFORMATION:
1. Location: 3809 NE Springbrook Road (R3209 02300)
2. Size: £19.16 acres (830,311 square feet)
3. Current Land Uses: Residential (Single-family dwelling), Agricultural

4. Natural Features: Agricultural landscaping, wooded areas, and Stream Corridor Overlay
Subdistrict along the eastern boundary of the site.

5. Adjacent Land Uses:
a. North: Agricultural
b. South: Commercial, Agricultural
c. East: Residential, Commercial
d. West: Commercial, Agricultural
6. Zoning: The following zoning districts abut the subject property.
a. North: Unincorporated
b. East: Unincorporated, Springbrook District/Low Density Residential (SD/LDR)

c. South: Springbrook District/Hospitality (SD/H), Springbrook District/Low
Density Residential (SD/LDR)

d. West: Unincorporated, Springbrook District/Hospitality (SD/H)

7. Comprehensive Plan Designations: The following Comprehensive Plan districts abut the
subject property.

e. North: Outside the Urban Growth Boundary

f. East: Outside the Urban Growth Boundary, Springbrook District/Low Density
Residential (SD/LDR)

g. South: Specific District/Hospitality (SD/H), Springbrook District/Low Density
Residential (SD/LDR)

h. West: Low Density Residential (LDR), Springbrook District/Hospitality (SD/H)
8. Access and Transportation: The property’s boundaries have frontage on the public right-

of-way on N Springbrook Road to the south. Vehicular access is available from this
frontage.

Page 8 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

9. Utilities:

A. Water: The City’s online GIS indicates that there is an active public 12-inch water
main in Springbrook Road which dead ends approximately at the southwest
corner of the property boundary.

B. Wastewater: The City’s online GIS mapping shows there is an existing 15-inch
wastewater gravity main in NE Springbrook Road, which dead ends
approximately at the southwest corner of the property boundary.

C. Stormwater: The City’s online GIS mapping shows there is an existing 12-inch
stormwater main in NE Springbrook Road, which dead ends approximately at the
southwest corner of the property boundary.

D. Overhead Lines: There are overhead utility lines along the NE Springbrook Road
property frontage.

PROCESS:

The planned unit development request is a Type III application and follows the procedures in
NMC 15.100.050. The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing on the
application. The Commission is to make a decision on the application based on the criteria
listed in the attached findings. The Planning Commission’s decision is final unless appealed.

Important dates related to this application are as follows:

1. 12/2/2024: The Community Development Director deemed the
application complete. Application materials are provided in
Attachment 1.

2. 12/10/2024: Application was routed for a 15-day referral review.

3. 1/23/2025: The Applicant mailed public notice pursuant to NMC
15.100.200.

4. 1/24/2025: The Applicant posted public notice pursuant to NMC
15.100.200.

5. 1/30/2025: The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning
Commission hearing and City published notice in four
public places.

6. 2/13/2025: The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial

hearing to consider the application.

Page 9 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

AGENCY COMMENTS:

The application was routed to several public agencies for review and comment which are
provided in Attachment 3. Comments and recommendations from city departments have been
incorporated into the findings and conditions.

As of the writing of this report, the city received the following agency comments:
1. Community Development Director: Reviewed, no conflict.
2. Newberg Dundee Police Department: Reviewed, no conflict.

3. Public Works Engineering: Comments were provided and are incorporated into the
Findings and Conditions of Approval.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
As of the time of writing this staff report no public comments have been received.
ANALYSIS

The Applicant is proposing a 100-lot residential planned unit development on a property that is
zoned R-1 and R-3 with limited residential streets. The Applicant is requesting three
modifications to the Newberg Municipal Code development standards, which is allowed through
the PUD process. The modification requested is to frontage width limitations for three lots in the
R-1 zoning district, the lot coverage limitations of all lots in the R-1 zoning district, and the sun
exposure plane height limitation of some proposed dwellings.

PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The preliminary staff recommendation is made in the absence of public hearing testimony and
may be modified subsequent to the close of the public hearing. At this writing, staff recommends
the following motion:

Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2025-01, which approves the requested planned unit
development with conditions.

Page 10 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

TN,

“W PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2025-01

AN ORDER APPROVING PUD24-0001 FOR THE NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT AT 3809 NE SPRINGBROOK ROAD, YAMHILL COUNTY TAX LOT NUMBER R3209
02300

RECITALS

1. Ichijo USA Co. LTD c/o Masaki Narita submitted an application for preliminary plan
approval of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) for 100 lots of residential use and four (4)
tracts on Low Density Residential (R-1) and High Density Residential (R-3) zoned
property at 3809 NE Springbrook Road with the Yambhill County Tax Lot number R3209
02300.

2. The Newberg Planning Commission held a properly noticed hearing on February 13, 2025,
to consider the application. The Commission considered testimony and deliberated.

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application meets the applicable
Newberg Development Code criteria as shown in the findings in Exhibit “A”.

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows:

1. The PUD preliminary plan application PUD24-0001 is hereby approved, subject to the
conditions contained in Exhibit “B”. Exhibit “B” is hereby adopted and by this reference
incorporated.

2. The findings shown in Exhibit "A” are hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated.

3. This Order shall be effective February 28, 2025, unless appealed prior to that date.

4. This order shall expire one year after the effective date above if the Applicant does not
apply for final plan approval by that time, unless an extension is granted per NMC
15.240.020.

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this February 13, 2025.

ATTEST:

Planning Commission Chair Planning Commission Secretary

Page 11 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

EXHIBIT “A” TO PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER NO. 2025-01
FINDINGS

Planned Unit Development
3809 NE Springbrook Road (File No. PUD24-0001)

The Newberg Municipal Code (NMC) criteria and development standards are written in italic
bold font and the findings are written in regular font. The NMC criteria will be presented first,
followed by the findings of fact.

Findings of fact with underlined font indicate subsequent inclusion into Conditions of Approval.

A. FINDINGS FOR LAND USE PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES (NMC DIVISION
15.100)

Chapter 15.100 LAND USE PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES

15.100.050  Type III procedure — Quasi-judicial hearing.

[-..]

B. Type III actions include, but are not limited to:
-]
3. Planned unit developments: This action is a final decision unless appealed.
[...]

Finding: Because this application is for a proposed planned unit development, it is processed as
a Type III action including a final decision by the Newberg Planning Commission. The decision
may be appealed to the City Council.

C. Planning Commission Decisions and Recommendation Actions.

1. Planning Commission Decision. Development actions shall be decided by the planning
commission for those land use actions that require a Type III procedure and do not
require the adoption of an ordinance. The decision shall be made after public notice and a
public hearing is held in accordance with the requirements of NMC 15.100.090 et seq. A
Type 111 decision may be appealed to the city council by a Type I1I affected party in
accordance with NMC 15.100.160 et seq.

2. Planning Commission Recommendation to City Council. Land use actions that would
require the adoption of an ordinance shall be referred to the city council by the planning
commission together with the record and a recommendation. The recommendation shall
be made after public notice and a public hearing is held in accordance with the
requirements of NMC 15.100.090 et seq.

Finding: Because the proposed planned unit development decision is final unless appealed, the
Planning Commission decision shall be the final decision unless appealed to City Council.

Page 12 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

D. City Council Action. If a recommendation to the city council is required, the matter shall be
reviewed by the city council as a new hearing. The final decision on these actions is made by
the city council.

Finding: The decision on a planned unit development application does not require a
recommendation to the City Council. This criterion is not applicable.

E. The applicant shall provide notice pursuant to NMC 15.100.200 et seq.

Finding: The Applicant submitted an affidavit that the required notice was mailed on January
23, 2025, and posted on the site on January 24, 2025. The City posted notice in four public
places and in a newspaper of record on January 30, 2025.

Because the Applicant provided notice pursuant to NMC 15.100.200 et seq., this criterion is met.

F. The hearing body may attach certain conditions necessary to ensure compliance with this
code.

Finding: Conditions of approval are attached as Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Order
2025-01.

[...]
B. FINDINGS FOR LAND USE APPLICATIONS (NMC DIVISION 15.200)

Chapter 15.240 PD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

15.240.020  General provisions.

A. Ownership. Except as provided herein, the area included in a proposed planned unit
development must be in single ownership or under the development control of a joint
application of owners or option holders of the property involved.

Finding: The application materials and submitted title report indicate that the area included in
the planned unit development is owned as tenants in common. Because the PUD area 1s under
the development control of a joint application of owners, this criterion is met.

B. Processing Steps — Type II1. Prior to issuance of a building permit, planned unit
development applications must be approved through a Type III procedure and using the
following steps:

1. Step One — Preliminary Plans. Consideration of applications in terms of on-site and off-
site factors to assure the flexibility afforded by planned unit development regulations is
used to preserve natural amenities; create an attractive, safe, efficient, and stable
environment; and assure reasonable compatibility with the surrounding area. Preliminary
review necessarily involves consideration of the off-site impact of the proposed design,
including building height and location.

2. Step Two — Final Plans. Consideration of detailed plans to assure substantial
conformance with preliminary plans as approved or conditionally approved. Final plans

Page 13 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

need not include detailed construction drawings as subsequently required for a building
permit.

Finding: This PUD application is being processed as a Type III procedure per NMC
15.100.050(B)(3). The Applicant has acknowledged the two-step PUD approval process and has
submitted this application in support of Step One — Preliminary Plan approval. The consideration
of on-site and off-site factors for the PUD to preserve natural amenities, create an attractive, safe,
efficient, and stable environment, and assure reasonable compatibility with the surrounding area
is addressed in this staff report.

Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit final plans for approval of
the Step Two — Final PUD Plan review process using the City’s Type I procedure.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

C. Phasing. If approved at the time of preliminary plan consideration, final plan applications
may be submitted in phases. If preliminary plans encompassing only a portion of a site under
single ownership are submitted, they must be accompanied by a statement and be sufficiently
detailed to prove that the entire area can be developed and used in accordance with city
standards, policies, plans and ordinances.

Finding: No phasing is proposed for the planned unit development. Because no phasing is
proposed, this criterion is not applicable.

D. Lapse of Approval. If the applicant fails to submit material required for consideration at
the next step in accordance with the schedule approved at the previous step or, in the absence
of a specified schedule, within one year of such approval, the application as approved at the
previous step expires. If the applicant fails to obtain a building permit for construction in
accordance with the schedule as previously approved, or in the absence of a specified
schedule, within three years of a preliminary plan approval, preliminary and final plan
approvals expire. Prior to expiration of plan approval at any step, the hearing authority
responsible for approval may, if requested, extend or modify the schedule, providing it is not
detrimental to the public interest or contrary to the findings and provisions specified herein
for planned unit developments. Unless the preliminary plan hearing authority provides to the
contrary, expiration of final plan approval of any phase automatically renders all phases void
that are not yet finally approved or upon which construction has not begun.

Finding: The Applicant acknowledges the Lapse of Approval procedures and requirements. This
criterion is met.

E. Resubmittal Following Expiration. Upon expiration of preliminary or final plan approval, a
new application and fee must be submitted prior to reconsideration. Reconsideration shall be
subject to the same procedures as an original application.

Finding: The Applicant acknowledges the Resubmittal Following Expiration procedures and
requirements. This criterion is met.

Page 14 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

F. Density. Except as provided in NMC 15.302.040 relating to subdistricts, dwelling unit
density provisions for residential planned unit developments shall be as follows:

1. Maximum Density.

a. Except as provided in adopted refinement plans, the maximum allowable density for
any project shall be as follows:

District Density Points

R-1 | 175 density points per gross acre, as calculated
in subsection (F)(1)(b) of this section

R-2 310 density points per gross acre, as calculated
in subsection (F)(1)(b) of this section

R-3 640 density points per gross acre, as calculated
in subsection (F)(1)(b) of this section

RP 310 density points per gross acre, as calculated
in subsection (F)(1)(b) of this section

C-1 |As per required findings

C-2 |As per required findings

C-3 |As per required findings

b. Density point calculations in the following table are correlated to dwellings based
on the number of bedrooms, which for these purposes is defined as an enclosed room
which is commonly used or capable of conversion to use as sleeping quarters.
Accordingly, family rooms, dens, libraries, studies, studios, and other similar rooms
shall be considered bedrooms if they meet the above definitions, are separated by walls
or doors from other areas of the dwelling and are accessible to a bathroom without
passing through another bedroom. Density points may be reduced at the applicant’s
discretion by 25 percent for deed-restricted affordable dwelling units and/or middle
housing dwelling units as follows:

Density Point Table
Density Points:
Density Points: Income-Restricted
Standard Affordable Dwelling
Dwelling Type Dwelling Unit
Studio and efficiency 12 9
One-bedroom 14 11
Two-bedroom 21 16
Three-bedroom 28 21

Page 15 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

Density Points:
Density Points: Income-Restricted
Standard Affordable Dwelling
Dwelling Type Dwelling Unit
Four or more 35 26
bedrooms

Duplex, triplex or quadplex dwellings shall be counted as a single dwelling unit, inclusive
of all bedrooms in the combined dwelling units, for purposes of calculating density points.
Four townhouse dwellings or cottage dwellings shall count as one standard dwelling,
inclusive of all bedrooms in the combined dwelling units.

The density points in the right-hand column are applicable to income-restricted affordable
dwelling units, provided the dwelling units meet the affordability criteria under NMC
15.242.030 regarding affordable housing requirements for developments using the flexible
development standards.

2. Approved Density. The number of dwelling units allowable shall be determined by the
hearing authority in accordance with the standards set forth in these regulations. The
hearing authority may change density subsequent to preliminary plan approval only if the
reduction is necessary to comply with required findings for preliminary plan approval or if
conditions of preliminary plan approval cannot otherwise be satisfied.

3. Easement Calculations. Density calculations may include areas in easements if the
applicant clearly demonstrates that such areas will benefit residents of the proposed
planned unit development.

4. Dedications. Density calculations may include areas dedicated to the public for
recreation or open space.

5. Cumulative Density. When approved in phases, cumulative density shall not exceed the
overall density per acre established at the time of preliminary plan approval.

Finding: The application materials indicate that the proposed planned unit development includes
16.14 gross acres of Low Density Residential (R-1) zoning and 3.02 acres of High Density
Residential (R-3) zoning, and that the PUD will include 17 three-bedroom and 83 four-bedroom
units. The following tables indicate the maximum density points allowed and proposed in the

PUD.
Zoning Gross Size Density Points / | Maximum Density
District (acres) Gross Acre Points Allowed
R-1 16.14 175 2,842.5
R-3 3.02 640 1,932.8

Page 16 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

Total 19.16 4,775.3
Dwelling Type | Number of | Density Points / Total Density
Units Unit Points Provided
Three-bedroom 17 28 476
Four-bedroom 83 35 2,905
Total 100 3,381

The proposed PUD requires 3,381 density points, which is less than the maximum allowable
density based on the site, zoning, and 4,775.3 density point calculation for the site. The gross
acreage of the subject property used to calculate the maximum density point allowance includes
access easements, tracts, and right-of-way. No dedication of land for recreation or open space is
proposed in the PUD. Because the proposed PUD does not exceed the maximum density point
allowance, this criterion is met.

G. Buildings and Uses Permitted. Buildings and uses in planned unit developments are
permitted as follows:

1. R-1, R-2, R-3 and RP Zones.

a. Buildings and uses permitted outright or conditionally in the use district in which
the proposed planned unit development is located.

b. Accessory buildings and uses.
c. Dwellings, single, manufactured, and multifamily.

d. Convenience commercial services which the applicant proves will be patronized
mainly by the residents of the proposed planned unit development.

Finding: The proposed PUD includes single-family dwellings which are a permitted use in the
R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. NMC 15.305.020 notes (2) and (3) indicate that single-family
dwellings are a permitted use in the R-1 zoning district limited to one per lot and that single-
family dwellings on individual lots in the R-3 zoning district will only be permitted through the
PUD process. Because the proposed single-family dwellings are limited to one per lot and the
application is being reviewed through the PUD process, this criterion is met.

H. Professional Coordinator and Design Team. Professional coordinators and design teams
shall comply with the following:

1. Services. A professional coordinator, licensed in the State of Oregon to practice
architecture, landscape architecture or engineering, shall ensure that the required plans

Page 17 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

are prepared. Plans and services provided for the city and between the applicant and the
coordinator shall include:

a. Preliminary design;
b. Design development;

c. Construction documents, except for single-family detached dwellings and duplexes
in subdivisions; and

d. Administration of the construction contract, including, but not limited to, inspection
and verification of compliance with approved plans.

2. Address and Attendance. The coordinator or the coordinator’s professional
representative shall maintain an Oregon address, unless this requirement is waived by the
director. The coordinator or other member of the design team shall attend all public
meetings at which the proposed planned unit development is discussed.

3. Design Team Designation. Except as provided herein, a design team, which includes an
architect, a landscape architect, engineer, and land surveyor, shall be designated by the
professional coordinator to prepare appropriate plans. Each team member must be
licensed to practice the team member’s profession in the State of Oregon.

4. Design Team Participation and Waiver. Unless waived by the director upon proof by the
coordinator that the scope of the proposal does not require the services of all members at
one or more steps, the full design team shall participate in the preparation of plans at all
three steps.

5. Design Team Change. Written notice of any change in design team personnel must be
submitted to the director within three working days of the change.

6. Plan Certification. Certification of the services of the professionals responsible for
particular drawings shall appear on drawings submitted for consideration and shall be
signed and stamped with the registration seal issued by the State of Oregon for each
professional so involved. To assure comprehensive review by the design team of all plans
for compliance with these regulations, the dated cover sheet shall contain a statement of
review endorsed with the signatures of all designated members of the design team.

Finding: The application materials indicate that a professional engineer licensed in the State of
Oregon has ensured that all required plans are prepared, certified as necessary, and submitted.
The Applicant acknowledges the process for a design team change. Because the PUD is being
coordinated by a licensed professional engineer and design team, this criterion is met.

1. Modification of Certain Regulations. Except as otherwise stated in these regulations, fence
and wall provisions, general provisions pertaining to height, yards, area, lot width, frontage,
depth and coverage, number of off-street parking spaces required, and regulations pertaining
to setbacks specified in this code may be modified by the hearing authority, provided the
proposed development will be in accordance with the purposes of this code and those
regulations. Departures from the hearing authority upon a finding by the engineering director

Page 18 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

that the departures will not create hazardous conditions for vehicular or pedestrian traffic.
Nothing contained in this subsection shall be interpreted as providing flexibility to regulations
other than those specifically encompassed in this code.

Finding: The planned unit development process allows the hearing authority to modify the
requirements for certain development standards. The Applicant has requested (1) that the
minimum lot width be reduced for three lots in the R-1 zoning district, (2) that the maximum lot
coverage for all lots in the R-1 zoning district be increased from 50 percent to 60 percent, and (3)
for certain lots in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts be allowed to intrude into the sun exposure
plane described in NMC 15.240.020(K).

- Modification 1: Minimum lot width modification for three lots in the R-1 zoning district
NMC 15.405.030(D)(1)(a) requires that each lot or development site shall have either frontage
on a public street for a distance of 25 feet or have access to a public street through an easement
that is at least 25 feet wide and NMC 15.405.030(D)(1)(c) requires that each lot in the R-1
zoning district shall have a minimum width of 35 feet at the front building line. Lots 82 and 83
on the proposed plat map are flag lots that are proposed to have access to Street B via a 20-foot-
wide easement. The Applicant has also proposed Lot 12 to have a driveway access with a width
of 20.1 feet. All three lots are in the R-1 zoning district, and the site plan included in the
application materials indicates that each lot will be at least 35 feet at the front building line. Prior
to the approval of Step 2 Final Plan Consideration the Applicant shall record a shared access
easement for Lots 82 and 83. The City of Newberg Staff Engineers have reviewed the
development proposal and have not found hazardous conditions created for vehicular or
pedestrian traffic if all conditions are adhered to. If approved, the Planning Commission would
be granting a 20 percent reduction from the required 25-foot minimum frontage requirement.

- Modification 2: Maximum lot coverage for all lots in the R-1 zoning district modification
from 50 to 60 percent
NMC 15.405.040(B)(1)(a) indicates that residential uses in the R-1 zoning district shall have a
maximum lot coverage of 40 percent (50 percent if all structures on the lot are one story and 60
percent for townhouse dwellings), a maximum parking coverage of 30 percent, and a combined
maximum lot and parking coverage of 60 percent. The Applicant has requested that all lots in the
R-1 zoning district have a maximum lot coverage of 50 percent, an increase of 10 percent, and
no change to the maximum combined lot and parking coverage of 60 percent. The Applicant has
indicated that the requested increase in lot coverage will allow for the development of larger
homes on the lot with a greater number of bedrooms. The Applicant’s narrative also indicates
that some of the proposed dwellings will be single-family, which would meet the exception in
NMC 15.405.040(B)(1)(a)(1), and that the distribution of single story and multi-story dwellings
will be mixed throughout the development. Staff finds that the proposed mix of housing design
types and provision of dwellings with a greater number of bedrooms furthers the City’s
Comprehensive Plan goal of providing diversity in the type of housing within the City (Goal I).
The proposed increase does not change the overall maximum combined lot and parking
coverage, and therefore the total improved area of each lot will remain the same. The preliminary
plat included with the application materials indicates the location of yard setbacks but does not
include the proposed building footprints or parking areas, which will be evaluated for
conformance with this code at the time of building permit submittal. If approved, the Planning

Page 19 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

Commission would be granting a 10 percent increase in the maximum lot coverage area in the R-
1 zoning district for multi-story dwellings.

- Modification 3: Allow certain lots in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts to intrude into the sun
exposure plane

NMC 15.240.020(K) requires that unless the hearing authority determines that intrusion of

structures into the sun exposure plane will not adversely affect the occupants or potential

occupants of adjacent properties, all buildings and structures shall be constructed within the area

contained between the lines illustrating the sun exposure plan as depicted in NMC Appendix A,

Figure 8, shown below.

Nothel esre N ek

Ei \—; Sath, Fask Wk

et
-

y
L A

NMC Appendix A. Figure 8. Sun Exposure Plane

Page 20 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

The application materials include depictions of a potential building elevation’s intrusion into the
sun exposure plane in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. The R-1 lots that would be impacted
(Lots 32-40 and 43-51) constitute a minor intrusion that does not adversely affect the occupants
of adjacent dwellings as depicted. The application materials do not indicate which dwelling type
will be constructed on each lot, and so the impact of the intrusion may vary. The depicted
intrusion into the sun exposure plane on the impacted R-3 lots (Lots 1-8 and 89-99) is more
significant. The Applicant’s narrative indicates that the PUD is proposing larger dwellings on the
R-3 lots, consistent with included elevations for the dwellings in the R-1 zoning district, which
will be developed at a higher density consistent with the nature of a High-Density Residential
zoning district. The Applicant has stated that this design provides an efficient and well-designed
community, that residents will have access to open space, and that the design will foster social
interactions and an “eyes on the street” principal which promotes a safer and more cohesive
community. Adherence to the building height limitations will be evaluated at the time of building
permit submittal and the approval is being conditioned elsewhere in this staff report to provide
sun exposure plane diagrams with building permit materials. If approved, the Planning
Commission would be allowing the selected elevations to impact the sun exposure plane.

The requested modifications are to height, coverage, and frontage requirements, and because the
proposed development will be in accordance with the purposes of the NMC and not create
hazardous conditions for vehicles or pedestrian traffic, upon adherence to the aforementioned
condition of approval, the requested modifications are approved and this criterion will be met.

J. Lot Coverage. Maximum permitted lot and parking area coverage as provided in this code
shall not be exceeded unless specifically permitted by the hearing authority in accordance with
these regulations.

Finding: As discussed in the finding for NMC 15.240.020(1), the Applicant is requesting a
modification to the maximum lot coverage requirements for lots in the R-1 zoning district. The
Planning Commission shall determine whether the requested modification shall be permitted.
Adherence to the required lot coverage standards for individual lots will be evaluated at the time
of building permit submission and the Applicant shall provide lot coverage calculations for
buildings, parking, and combined building and parking at the time of building permit submission.
Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

K. Height. Unless determined by the hearing authority that intrusion of structures into the sun
exposure plane will not adversely affect the occupants or potential occupants of adjacent
properties, all buildings and structures shall be constructed within the area contained between
lines illustrating the sun exposure plane (see Appendix A, Figure 8 and the definition of “sun
exposure plane” in NMC 15.05.030). The hearing authority may further modify heights to:

1. Protect lines of sight and scenic vistas from greater encroachment than would occur as
a result of conventional development.

2. Protect lines of sight and scenic vistas.

3. Enable the project to satisfy required findings for approval.

Page 21 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

Finding: The maximum permitted building height in the R-1 zoning district is 30 feet, and as the
R-3 lots abut R-1 lots in the proposed PUD, the maximum building height in the R-3 zoning
district is 30 feet for 50 feet from the abutting boundary, and 45 feet elsewhere. The Applicant
has indicated that all proposed dwellings will meet the building height limitation. As discussed in
the finding for NMC 15.240.020(I), the Applicant is requesting a modification to the sun
exposure plane height limitations for lots in the R-1 zoning district. The Planning Commission
shall determine whether the requested modification shall be permitted. Adherence to the
maximum building height limitation and sun exposure plane for individual lots will be evaluated
at the time of building permit submission and_the Applicant shall provide building height and sun
exposure diagrams at the time of building permit submission. Upon adherence to the
aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

L. Dedication, Improvement and Maintenance of Public Thoroughfares. Public thoroughfares
shall be dedicated, improved and maintained as follows:

1. Streets and Walkways. Including, but not limited to, those necessary for proper
development of adjacent properties. Construction standards that minimize maintenance
and protect the public health and safety, and setbacks as specified in NMC 15.410.050,

pertaining to special setback requirements to planned rights-of-way, shall be required.

2. Notwithstanding subsection (L)(1) of this section, a private street may be approved if the
following standards are satisfied.

a. An application for approval of a PUD with at least 50 dwelling units may include a
private street and the request for a private street shall be supported by the evidence
required by this section. The planning commission may approve a private street if it
finds the applicant has demonstrated that the purpose statements in NMC
15.240.010(A) through (D) are satisfied by the evidence in subsections (L)(2)(a)(i)
through (v) of this section.

i. A plan for managing on-street parking, maintenance and financing of
maintenance of the private street, including a draft reserve study showing that the
Jfuture homeowners association can financially maintain the private street;

ii. A plan demonstrating that on- and off-street parking shall be sufficient for the
expected parking needs and applicable codes;

iii. Proposed conditions, covenants and restrictions that include a requirement that
the homeowners association shall be established in perpetuity and shall continually
employ a community management association whose duties shall include assisting
the homeowners association with the private street parking management and
maintenance, including the enforcement of parking restrictions;

iv. Evidence that the private street is of sufficient width and construction to satisfy
requirements of the fire marshal and city engineer; and

Page 22 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

v. The PUD shall be a Class I planned community as defined in ORS Chapter 94.

Finding: The Applicant is not proposing any private streets within the proposed development.
This criterion does not apply.

b. If the PUD is established, the homeowners association shall provide an annual
written report on the anniversary date of the final approval of the PUD approval to the
community development director that includes the following:

i. The most recent reserve study.

ii. The name and contact information for the retained community management
association.

iii. A report on the condition of the private street and any plans for maintenance of
the private street.

Finding: Applicant is not proposing any private streets within the proposed development. This
criterion does not apply.

3. Easements. As are necessary for the orderly extension of public utilities and bicycle and
pedestrian access.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate a 10-foot wide public utilities easement (PUE) along
public street frontages (NE Springbrook Road and newly constructed local streets within the
proposed development) as is required for land division projects such as subdivisions and
partitions for future, franchise utility installations, including potential future undergrounding of
overhead utilities.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the Applicant shall provide final plans for public improvements which meet City of
Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The
Applicant is required to include a 10-foot wide PUE along public street frontages (NE
Springbrook Road and newly constructed local streets within the proposed development).

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

rinal¥s: bedepgronnd Ltilities. Unless waived by the hearing authqyity, the developer shall locate
Applithomessiseyutilitias seiving theprapased planied snit development underground in accordance
Applipiphshibspliisies, practices and rules of the serving utilities and the Public Utilities
Commission.

2 )

include plans to underground all utilities. However, t

final plans for public improvements which meet City of Newberg Public
Works Design and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant is

Page 23 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

required to underground newly constructed public utilities along public street frontages (NE
Springbrook Road and newly constructed local streets within the proposed development).

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

N. Usable Outdoor Living Area. All dwelling units shall be served by outdoor living areas as
defined in this code. Unless waived by the hearing authority, the outdoor living area must
equal at least 10 percent of the gross floor area of each unit. So long as outdoor living area is
available to each dwelling unit, other outdoor living space may be offered for dedication to the
city, in fee or easement, to be incorporated in a city-approved recreational facility. A portion or
all of a dedicated area may be included in calculating density if permitted under these
regulations.

Finding: The application materials indicate that all proposed dwelling units will be served by
outdoor living areas equal to at least 10 percent of the gross floor area of each unit provided in
back and side yards. Adherence to the outdoor living space requirement will be verified at the
time of building permit submittal, and the Applicant shall indicate and provide usable outdoor
living area calculations at the time of building permit submittal. Upon adherence to the
aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

0. Site Modification. Unless otherwise provided in preliminary plan approval, vegetation,
topography and other natural features of parcels proposed for development shall remain
substantially unaltered pending final plan approval.

Finding: Approximately 0.34 acres along the eastern portion of the subject property is within the
Stream Corridor Overlay Subdistrict. The Applicant has indicated that grading for the proposed
water treatment facility in Tract B is proposed within the Stream Corridor. Prior to any site
modification, including but not limited to grading, the Applicant shall submit a Stream Corridor
Modification request per NMC 15.342.

The Applicant has indicated that beyond the above-mentioned stream corridor, no other
vegetation, topography, or other natural features will be substantially altered prior to final plan
approval. The application materials include a tree removal and preservation plan as part of the
proposed PUD. The removal of the trees can be approved and there are no additional vegetation,
topography, and natural features on the site.

Because this preliminary plan approval considers and may approve the modification of
vegetation on the site, upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion
will be met.

P. Completion of Required Landscaping. If required landscaping cannot be completed prior to
occupancy, or as otherwise required by a condition of approval, the director may require the
applicant to post a performance bond of a sufficient amount and time to assure timely
completion.

Page 24 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

Finding: The Applicant has acknowledged that if required landscaping cannot be completed
prior to occupancy a performance bond may be required to ensure timely completion. This
criterion is met.

Q. Design Standards. The proposed development shall meet the design requirements for
multifamily residential projects identified in NMC 15.220.060. A minimum of 40 percent of
the required points shall be obtained in each of the design categories. [Ord. 2889 § 2 (Exh. B §
8), 12-6-21; Ord. 2880 § 2 (Exh. B §§ 9, 10), 6-7-21; Ord. 2822 § 1 (Exh. A), 2-5-18; Ord.
2763 § 1 (Ord. 2889 § 2 (Exh. B §), 12-6-21; Exh. A §§ 9, 10), 9-16-13; Ord. 2730 § 1 (Exh. A
§9), 10-18-10; Ord. 2720 § 1(4), 11-2-09; Ord. 2505, 2-1-99; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 §
151.226.]

Finding: NMC 15.220.060 requires that multifamily residential projects with nine or more
dwelling units using the discretionary process must attain 20 points. NMC 15.240.020(Q)
requires that a PUD obtain 40 percent of the required points in each of the design categories,
requiring eight Site Design Elements points and eight Building Design Elements points. The
application materials indicate that the proposed development includes the following elements:

Excerpt from Table 15.220.060(B) Multifamily Residential Design Guidelines and
Standards

Site Design Element

Design Guideline

Points
Available

Points
Awarded

Private and Shared
Recreation Areas

Consolidate green space to increase
visual impact and functional utility.
This applies to larger projects which
collectively have a significant amount
of open space areas which can be
consolidated into children’s play areas,
gardens, and/or dog-walking areas
(three points).

3

3

Landscaping

Provide good-quality landscaping.
Provide coordinated site landscaping
sufficient to give the site its own
distinctive character, including the
preservation of existing landscaping
and use of native species (two points).

Street Trees

Use street trees and vegetative screens
at the front property line to soften
visual impacts from the street and
provide shade (one point).

Outdoor Furnishings

Use site furnishings to enhance open
space. Provide communal amenities

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov

Page 25 of 106



Community Development Department

such as benches, playground
equipment, and fountains to enhance
the outdoor environment (one point).

Entrance Building Materials

Use entry accents such as distinctive
building or paving materials to mark
major entries to multifamily buildings
or to individual units (one point).

Outdoor Lighting

Use appropriate outdoor lighting which
enhances the nighttime safety and
security of pedestrians without causing
glare in nearby buildings (one point).

Total

Building Design Element

Design Guideline

Points
Available

Points
Awarded

Building Orientation and
Entrances

Orient buildings toward the street. For
attached single-family and smaller
multifamily projects, this means
orienting individual entries and porches
to the street. In larger projects with
internal circulation and grounds, this
means that at least 10 percent of the
units should have main entries which
face the street rather than be oriented
toward the interior (three points).

3

3

Building Height

Respect the scale and patterns of
nearby buildings by reflecting the
architectural styles, building details,
materials, and scale of existing
buildings (three points).

Building Fagade Design

Provide variation in repeated units of
large multifamily projects so that these
projects have recognizable identities.
Elements such as color; porches,
balconies, and windows; railings; and
building materials and form, either
alone or in combination, can be used to
create this variety (three points).

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov

Page 26 of 106




Community Development Department

Building Materials Use some or all of the following 2 2
materials in new buildings: wood or
wood-like siding applied horizontally
or vertically as board and batten,;
shingles, as roofing, or on upper
portions of exterior walls and gable
ends; brick at the base of walls and
chimneys; wood or wood-like sash
windows; and wood or wood-like trim
(one point for each material described
above).

Total 11 11

The application materials indicate that Tract A will provide an amenity for the residents of the
neighborhood that includes landscaping, benches, and a shared amenity structure to be
determined. The included planting plan indicates the landscaping and street trees in the tracts and
along public streets. The planting plan indicates that the shared amenity and outdoor furnishings
are to be determined. Because the shared amenity and outdoor furnishings information is still
tentative, prior to Step 2 of the PUD process, a revised site plan and landscape plan that
demonstrates additional information on the shared recreation area and outdoor furnishings shall
be provided. The application materials indicate the location of street lighting along the public
streets. The application materials include elevations and floor plans of proposed dwelling units
which contain details on the building design elements, including the orientation of buildings and
garages to the street, building scale, fagade design, and building materials.

Because the proposed development includes more than eight Site Design Elements points and
eight Building Design Elements points, this criterion is met.

15.240.030  Preliminary plan consideration — Step one.

A. Preapplication Conference. Prior to filing an application for preliminary plan
consideration, the applicant or coordinator may request through the director a preapplication
conference to discuss the feasibility of the proposed planned unit development and determine
the processing requirements.

Finding: A pre-application conference was held on January 24, 2024. This criterion is met.

B. Application. An application, with the required fee, for preliminary plan approval shall be
made by the owner of the affected property, or the owner’s authorized agent, on a form
prescribed by and submitted to the director. Applications, accompanied by such additional
copies as requested by the director for purposes of referral, shall contain or have attached
sufficient information as prescribed by the director to allow processing and review in
accordance with these regulations. As part of the application, the property owner requesting
the planned development shall file a waiver stating that the owner will not file any demand

Page 27 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

against the city under Ballot Measure 49, approved November 6, 2007, that amended ORS
Chapters 195 and 197 based on the city’s decision on the planned development.

Finding: The Applicant submitted an application form with the required fee for preliminary plan
approval. The Measure 49 waiver submitted indicated that the waiver was related to annexation
and was previously submitted for ANX24-0001/CPMA24-0001/ZMA24-0001. Prior to Step 2 of
the PUD process and submittal of Final Plans for compliance revised and before submittal of
building permits the Applicant shall submit a Measure 49 waiver related to the City’s decision on
the planned development. Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this
criterion will be met.

C. Type III Review and Decision Criteria. Preliminary plan consideration shall be reviewed
through the Type III procedure. Decisions shall include review and recognition of the
potential impact of the entire development, and preliminary approval shall include written
affirmative findings that:

1. The proposed development is consistent with standards, plans, policies and ordinances
adopted by the city; and

Finding: The Applicant has provided a Type III PUD application. As discussed in this staff
report, the proposed development is consistent with or conditioned in order to be consistent
with the standards, plans, policies, and ordinances adopted by the City of Newberg.

Upon adherence to the conditions of approval in this staff report, this criterion will be met.

2. The proposed development’s general design and character, including but not limited to
anticipated building locations, bulk and height, location and distribution of recreation
space, parking, roads, access and other uses, will be reasonably compatible with
appropriate development of abutting properties and the surrounding neighborhood; and

Finding: The proposed PUD is located on a property recently annexed into the City limits
(Case File Nos. ANX24-0001/CPMA24-0001/ZM24-0001). The abutting properties contain
the Allison Inn to the southwest, Yamhill County residential and agricultural uses to the
northeast, and undeveloped land to the north and southeast. The application materials include
architectural drawings and elevations for the proposed dwelling units. However, because the
type of each proposed floor plan was not provided for each respective lot, evaluation of the
dwelling unit footprints on individual lots beyond narrative statements on compliance with
applicable code requirements is not possible at this stage of review, and will be conducted at
the time of building permit review. Single-family dwelling units are proposed, similar to
residential development in the area. When the subject property was annexed, Comprehensive
Plan designations and appropriate zoning designations were assigned, and the proposed lot
configurations meet the development standard for the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. The
Applicant has requested a modification through the PUD process for lot coverage in R-1
zones, which the Planning Commission will consider as described in the finding for
NMC15.240.020(T).

Because the abutting residentially designated zoning districts are undeveloped and the
proposed PUD configuration will construct one single-family dwelling per lot, which is a

Page 28 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

permitted use in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts pursuant to NMC 15.305, the proposed
project meet the site standards in the respective zoning districts and demonstrates
compatibility with abutting residentially zoned properties in the surrounding neighborhood.

3. Public services and facilities are available to serve the proposed development. If such
public services and facilities are not at present available, an affirmative finding may be
made under this criterion if the evidence indicates that the public services and facilities
will be available prior to need by reason of:

a. Public facility planning by the appropriate agencies; or

b. A commitment by the applicant to provide private services and facilities adequate to
accommodate the projected demands of the project; or

c. Commitment by the applicant to provide for offsetting all added public costs or early
commitment of public funds made necessary by the development; and

Finding: The application materials include public improvement plans demonstrating public
facilities to be provided, including water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, electricity, and
potentially natural gas. The City’s Public Works Engineering staff reviewed the submitted
plans and provided findings for NMC 15.505 Public Improvement Standards that public
services and facilities can be made available subject Conditions of Approval in this staff
report. Because public services and facilities will be made available to serve the proposed
development, this criterion is met.

4. The provisions and conditions of this code have been met; and

Finding: As demonstrated in these findings and conditions of approval, the provisions and
conditions of this code have been met. The criterion is met as demonstrated through the
Applicant’s submittal and the evaluation by City Staff of the application materials.

5. Proposed buildings, roads, and other uses are designed and sited to ensure preservation
of features, and other unique or worthwhile natural features and to prevent soil erosion or
flood hazard; and

Finding: The application materials indicate that some lots and tracts are within the Stream
Corridor Overlay Subdistrict. As conditioned elsewhere in this staff report, the appropriate
Stream Corridor modification applications will be required prior to grading or development
within the Stream Corridor per NMC 15.432. No areas within the Areas of Special Flood
Hazard Overlay are present on the site. Because development will be required to receive
appropriate Stream Corridor Overlay approvals and no Areas of Special Flood Hazard
Overlay are present on the site, this criterion is met.

6. There will be adequate on-site provisions for utility services, emergency vehicular
access, and, where appropriate, public transportation facilities; and

Finding: The application materials include public improvement plans demonstrating public
facilities to be provided, included water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, electricity, and
potentially natural gas. The City’s Public Works Engineering staff reviewed the submitted

Page 29 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

plans and provided findings for NMC 15.505 Public Improvement Standards that public
services and facilities can be made available subject Conditions of Approval in this staff
report. The Applicant has also provided Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue Permit 2024-0095
approving the proposed development subject to the permit conditions. Because public
services and facilities will be made available to serve the proposed development and
adequate emergency vehicular access is provided, this criterion is met.

7. Sufficient usable recreation facilities, outdoor living area, open space, and parking
areas will be conveniently and safely accessible for use by residents of the proposed
development; and

Finding: The application materials indicate that individual lots will contain outdoor living
areas associated with dwelling units, and that parking areas associated with dwelling units
provide convenient and safely accessible parking areas for use by residents. The proposed
off-street parking will be evaluated to meet the City’s design standards at the time of
building permit review. The included site plan also indicates that a shared outdoor recreation
facility is provided on Tract A.

Because sufficient usable recreation facilities, outdoor living area, open space, and parking
areas will be provided that are conveniently and safely accessible by residents, this criterion
is met.

8. Proposed buildings, structures, and uses will be arranged, designed, and constructed so
as to take into consideration the surrounding area in terms of access, building scale, bulk,
design, setbacks, heights, coverage, landscaping and screening, and to assure reasonable
privacy for residents of the development and surrounding properties.

Finding: The proposed PUD is located on a property recently annexed into the City limits
(Case File Nos. ANX24-0001/CPMA24-0001/ZM24-0001). The abutting properties contain
the Allison Inn to the southwest, Yamhill County residential and agricultural uses to the
northeast, and undeveloped land to the north and southeast. Additional residential
development is not anticipated on the Springbrook District/Hospitality zoned parcel to the
southwest. The application materials include architectural drawing and elevations for the
proposed dwelling units; however no information was provided on the dwelling unit
footprints on individual lots beyond narrative statements on compliance with applicable code
requirements. When the subject property was annexed, Comprehensive Plan designations
and appropriate zoning designations were assigned, and the proposed lot configurations meet
the development standard for the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. The Applicant has requested
a modification through the PUD process for lot coverage in R-1 zones, which is evaluated in
the finding for NMC 15.240.020(I) and the Planning Commission will consider. Individual
lot orientation and access will be from the proposed public roads throughout the PUD,
providing reasonable privacy for the residents of the development and surrounding
properties.

Because the abutting residentially designated zoning districts are undeveloped and the
proposed PUD configuration meets the site standards in the respective zoning districts, the

Page 30 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

design of the PUD demonstrates compatibility with abutting residentially zoned properties in
the surrounding neighborhood. The criterion is met.

D. Conditions. Applications may be approved subject to conditions necessary to fulfill the
purpose and provisions of these regulations. [Ord. 2822 § 1 (Exh. A), 2-5-18; Ord. 2693 § 1
(Exh. A(6)), 3-3-08; Ord. 2612, 12-6-04; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.227.]

Finding: Exhibit “B”, Conditions of Approval, can be found in the next section of this report.
With the implementation of these conditions the proposed PUD will fulfill the purpose and
provision of these regulations. Upon adherence to the conditions of approval in Exhibit “B”, this
criterion will be met.

15.240.040  Final plan consideration — Step two.

[...]

Finding: The Applicant has acknowledged the requirement for Step Two of the PUD review
process. This criterion is met.

C. FINDINGS FOR ZONING DISTRICTS (NMC DIVISION 15.300)
Chapter 15.305 ZONING USE TABLE

15.305.020 Zoning use table — Use districts.

Notes and Special
# Use R-1 R-3 Use Standards
Residential Uses
Def. | Dwelling, single- P2) P@3) Subject to lot or
Samily detached development site area

requirements of NMC
15.405.010

Notes.

(2) Limited to one per lot as a permitted use. More than one per lot allowed only
through a conditional use permit or planned unit development, subject to density
limits of NMC 15.405.010(B).

(3) Permitted on individual lots created prior to November 17, 1992. Homes on
individual lots created on or after November 17, 1992, will only be permitted through
the planned unit development process.

Finding: The proposed PUD includes single-family dwellings which are a permitted use in the
R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. NMC 15.305.020 notes (2) and (3) indicate that single-family
dwellings are a permitted use in the R-1 zoning district limited to one per lot and that single-
family dwellings on individual lots in the R-3 zoning district will only be permitted through the
PUD process.

Page 31 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

Because the proposed single-family dwellings are limited to one per lot and the application is
being reviewed through the PUD process, this criterion is met.

Chapter 15.340 AIRPORT OVERLAY (A0) SUBDISTRICT

15.340.050  Limitations.
A. To meet the standards and reporting requirements established in FAA Regulations, Part 77,

no structure shall penetrate into the airport imaginary surfaces as defined in this code except
as provided in NMC 15.340.030(B).

B. High density public uses as defined in this code shall not be permitted in the airport
approach safety zone or the displaced threshold approach surface zone.

C. Following July 1990, if FAA funds are used by the city to improve or enhance the airport,
new structures, buildings and dense uses shall be prohibited in the runway protection zone
consistent with federal requirements.

D. Whenever there is a conflict in height limitations prescribed by this overlay zone and the
primary zoning district, the lowest height limitation fixed shall govern; provided, however, that
the height limitations here imposed shall not apply to such structures customarily employed
for aeronautical purposes.

E. No glare-producing materials shall be used on the exterior of any structure located within
the airport approach safety zone.

F. In noise-sensitive areas (within 1,500 feet of an airport or within established noise contour
boundaries of 55 Ldn and above for identified airports) where noise levels are a concern, a
declaration of anticipated noise levels shall be attached to any building permit or development
approval. In areas where the noise level is anticipated to be 55 Ldn and above, prior to
issuance of a building permit for construction of noise-sensitive land use (real property
normally used for sleeping or normally used as schools, churches, hospitals, or public
libraries) the permit applicant shall be required to demonstrate that the indoor noise level will
not exceed 55 Ldn. The director will review building permits for noise-sensitive developments.
[Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.454.]

Findings: The findings below correspond to the subsections:

A. The subject property is within the Conical Surface, an airport imaginary surface of
the Airport Overlay Subdistrict. The elevation of the subject property ranges from
approximately 263 to 330 feet, and the height limitation of the Airport Overlay
Subdistrict ranges from approximately 480 to 520 feet at the subject property,
resulting in a possible building height of 190 to 217 feet. The building height limit of
the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts are 30 and 35 feet respectively. The application
materials indicate that no proposed dwellings will exceed the building height
limitation of the base zoning district. Because the proposed buildings do not penetrate
the airport imaginary surface, this criterion is met.

Page 32 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

B. High density public uses are defined as structures or places which the public may
enter for such purposes as deliberation, education, worship, entertainment,
amusement, awaiting transportation, or similar activity where the occupant load is
greater than one person per 15 square feet of gross building lot coverage. The
proposed PUD contains single-family dwellings. The subject property is also located
in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts outside the Airport Approach Safety Zone and
Displaced Threshold Approach Surface. Because the proposed PUD does not include
high density public uses and is not within the Airport Approach Safety Zone or
Displaced Threshold Approach Surface, this criterion is not applicable.

C. The subject property is not within the runway protection zone. This criterion is not
applicable.

D. The building height limitation is 30 and 35 feet in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts.
Because the R-1 and R-3 building height limitations are less than the airport overlay
imaginary surface, the base zone building height limitations shall govern. This
criterion is met.

E. The subject property is not within the airport approach safety zone. This criterion is
not applicable.

F. The subject property is not within 1,500 feet of Sportsman Airpark. Because the
subject property is not in a noise-sensitive area, this criterion is not applicable.

The criteria are met or not applicable.
Chapter 15.342 STREAM CORRIDOR OVERLAY (§C) SUBDISTRICT

15.342.020  Where these regulations apply.

The regulations of this chapter apply to the portion of any lot or development site which is
within an SC overlay subdistrict. Unless specifically exempted by NMC 15.342.040, these
regulations apply to the following:

A. New structures, additions, accessory structures, decks, addition of concrete or other
impervious surfaces;

B. Any action requiring a development permit by this code;
C. Changing of topography by filling or grading;

D. Installation or expansion of utilities including but not limited to phone, cable TV,
electrical, wastewater, storm drain, water or other utilities;

E. Installation of pathways, bridges, or other physical improvements which alter the lands
within the stream corridor overlay subdistrict. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.466.]

Page 33 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

Finding: Approximately 0.34 acres along the eastern portion of the subject property is within the
Stream Corridor (SC) Overlay Subdistrict. The Applicant has indicated that no new structures are
being proposed within the Stream Corridor, but that grading will occur within the SC Overlay
Subdistrict boundary. Corridor. Prior to any site modification, including but not limited to
grading, the Applicant shall submit a Stream Corridor Modification request per NMC 15.342.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

D. FINDINGS FOR DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS (NMC DIVISION 400)
Chapter 15.405 LOT REQUIREMENTS

15.405.010 Minimum and maximum lot area.
A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown below
except as otherwise permitted by this code:

1. In the R-1, R-2, R-3, R-P and AR districts, the following minimum lot area standards

apply:
Zone Minimum lot area
for single family
R-1 5,000 SF
R-3 2,500 SF
[.-.]

Finding: The application materials indicate that the smallest proposed lot in the R-1 zoning
district is 5,022 square feet and the average lot size is 5,619 square feet. The smallest proposed
lot in the R-3 zoning district is 4,033 square feet and the average lot size is 4,216 square feet.
Because the proposed lot sizes in the PUD exceed the minimum lot area requirements for single-
family dwellings, this criterion is met.

B. Maximum Lot or Development Site Area per Dwelling Unit.

1. In the R-1 district, the average size of lots in a subdivision intended for single-family
development shall not exceed 10,000 square feet.

[...]

4. In the R-3 district, lots or development sites in excess of 15,000 square feet used for
multiple single-family, duplex, triplex, quadplex, multifamily dwellings or cottage cluster
projects shall be developed at a minimum of one dwelling per 2,500 square feet lot area.

Finding: The application materials indicate that the average lot size in the R-1 zoning district is
5,619 square feet and that no lots in the R-3 zoning district are larger than 15,000 square feet or

Page 34 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

will contain multiple single-family dwellings. Because the average lot size in the R-1 zoning
district is less than 10,000 square feet and no R-3 lots are greater than 15,000 square feet with
multiple single-family dwelling, this criterion is met.

C. In calculating lot area for this section, lot area does not include land within public or
private streets. In calculating lot area for maximum lot area/minimum density requirements,
lot area does not include land within stream corridors, land reserved for public parks or open
spaces, commons buildings, land for preservation of natural, scenic, or historic resources,
land on slopes exceeding 15 percent or for avoidance of identified natural hazards, land in
shared access easements, public walkways, or entirely used for utilities, land held in reserve in
accordance with a future development plan, or land for uses not appurtenant to the residence.

Finding: The lot size calculations included area only in the proposed PUD lots. This criterion is
met.

D. Lot size averaging is allowed for any subdivision. Some lots may be under the minimum lot
size required in the zone where the subdivision is located, as long as the average size of all lots
is at least the minimum lot size. [Ord. 2889 § 2 (Exh. B § 26), 12-6-21; Ord. 2880 § 2 (Exh. B
§§ 36, 37), 6-7-21; Ord. 2868 § 1 (Exh. A), 11-16-20; Ord. 2763 § 1 (Exh. A § 12), 9-16-13;
Ord. 2730 § 1 (Exh. A (2)), 10-18-10; Ord. 2720 § 1(14), 11-2-09; Ord. 2647, 6-5-06; Ord.
2564, 4-15-02; Ord. 2507, 3-1-99; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.565.]

Finding: The proposed PUD does not include lot sizes below the minimum lot area, and lot size
averaging is not proposed or required. This criterion is not applicable.

15.405.020 Lot area exceptions.
The following shall be exceptions to the required lot areas:

A. Lots of record with less than the area required by this code.

B. Lots or development sites which, as a process of their creation, were approved in
accordance with this code.

C. Planned unit developments, provided they conform to requirements for planned unit
development approval. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.566.]

Finding: No lots are substandard to the required lot areas in NMC 15.405.010 and the proposed
PUD conforms to the required for planned unit development approval subject to conditions of
approval elsewhere in this staff report.

Because no lot area exceptions are required, this criterion is not applicable.

15.405.030 Lot dimensions and frontage.
A. Width. Widths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code.

Finding: The Applicant is requesting a modification through the PUD process to the lot frontage
requirements for proposed lots 12, 82, and 83. Lot 12 is proposed to have a 20.1- foot wide
access to a public street and lots 82 and 83 are proposed to be flag lots that share 20-foot wide
access to a public street. The Planning Commission shall determine whether the requested

Page 35 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

modification shall be permitted. The application materials indicate that all other proposed lots
satisfy the width criteria of this code as demonstrated in the findings for NMC 15.405.030(D).
Because the proposed lots conform to the standards of this code or have been modified through
the PUD process, this criterion is met.

B. Depth to Width Ratio. Each lot and parcel shall have an average depth between the front
and rear lines of not more than two and one-half times the average width between the side
lines. Depths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. Development of lots under
15,000 square feet are exempt from the lot depth to width ratio requirement.

Finding: The application materials indicate that the largest proposed lot is 7,987 square feet.
Because all proposed lots are less than 15,000 square feet, this criterion is not applicable.

C. Area. Lot sizes shall conform to standards set forth in this code. Lot area calculations shall
not include area contained in public or private streets as defined by this code.

Finding: All proposed lots conform to the lot size standards of this code, as demonstrated in
findings for NMC 15.405.010. Because all proposed lots meet the minimum standards, this
criterion is met.

D. Frontage.
1. No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot frontage standards:

a. Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public street for a
distance of at least 25 feet or have access to a public street through an easement that is
at least 25 feet wide. No new private streets, as defined in NMC 15.05.030, shall be
created to provide frontage or access except as allowed by NMC 15.240.020(L)(2).

[.-]

c. Each lot in R-1 zone shall have a minimum width of 35 feet at the front building
line and Al or RP shall have a minimum width of 50 feet at the front building line.

[.-]

Finding: The Applicant is requesting a modification through the PUD process to the lot
frontage requirements for proposed lots 12, 82, and 83. Lot 12 is proposed to have a 20.1-
foot wide access to a public street and lots 82 and 83 are proposed to be flag lots that share
20-foot wide access to a public street. The Planning Commission shall determine whether
the requested modification shall be permitted. The application materials indicate that all
other proposed lots satisfy the 25-foot frontage criteria of this code and that all R-1
proposed lots have a minimum width of 35 feet at the front building line. Because the
proposed lots conform to the standards of this code or have been modified through the PUD
process, this criterion is met.

2. The above standards apply with the following exceptions:

Page 36 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

a. Lots for townhouse dwellings in any zone where they are permitted shall have a
minimum frontage on a public street for a distance of at least 20 feet, shall have a
minimum width of 20 feet at the front building line and shall have access meeting the
provisions of NMC 15.415.050(B).

b. Legally created lots of record in existence prior to the effective date of the ordinance
codified in this code.

¢. Lots or development sites which, as a process of their creation, were approved with
sub-standard widths in accordance with provisions of this code.

d. Existing private streets may not be used for new dwelling units, except private
streets that were created prior to March 1, 1999, including paving to fire access roads
standards and installation of necessary utilities, and private streets allowed in the
airport residential and airport industrial districts. However, existing single-family
detached dwellings on existing private streets may be converted to duplex, triplex, or
quadplex dwellings. [Ord. 2889 § 2 (Exh. B § 27), 12-6-21; Ord. 2880 § 2 (Exh. B §
38), 6-7-21; Ord. 2830 § 1 (Exh. A), 4-2-18; Ord. 2822 § 1 (Exh. A), 2-5-18; Ord. 2730
§ 1 (Exh. A (3)), 10-18-10; Ord. 2720 § 1(15), 11-2-09; Ord. 2647, 6-5-06; Ord. 2507,
3-1-99; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.567.]

Finding: The PUD does not propose any townhouse dwellings. The proposed lots will be
created by this PUD process and may be approved with substandard widths as part of the
PUD approval process. No private streets are proposed with this PUD. Because only single-
family dwellings are proposed on lots created through the PUD approval and PUD
modification process with frontage on public streets, these criteria are met.

15.405.040 Lot coverage and parking coverage requirements.

[--]

B. Residential uses in residential zones shall meet the following maximum lot coverage and
parking coverage standards; however, cottage cluster projects shall be exempt from the
standards. See the definitions in NMC 15.05.030 and Appendix A, Figure 4.

1. Maximum Lot Coverage.
a. R-1: 40 percent, except:
i. Fifty percent if all structures on the lot are one story; and
ii. Sixty percent for townhouse dwellings.
b. R-2 and RP: 60 percent.
c. AR and R-3: 60 percent.
2. Maximum Parking Coverage. R-1, R-2, R-3, and RP: 30 percent.

3. Combined Maximum Lot and Parking Coverage.

Page 37 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

a. R-1: 60 percent.
b. R-2, R-3, RP and townhouse dwellings in R-1: 70 percent.

Finding: The Applicant is requesting a modification to the maximum lot coverage standard in
the R-1 zoning district to be 50 percent. The application materials included building elevations
and floor plans but did not indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites.
Lot coverage, parking coverage, and combined lot and parking coverage shall be evaluated at the
time of building permit submittal and prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant
shall submit site plans indicating adherence to lot, parking, and combined lot and parking
coverage calculations.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.
Chapter 15.410 YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

15.410.010  General yard regulations.

A. No yard or open space provided around any building for the purpose of complying with the
provisions of this code shall be considered as providing a yard or open space for any other
building.

Finding: The application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback
requirements for the proposed lots indicating that no yard or open space provided around any
building provides a yard or open space for any other building. The application materials included
building elevations and floor plans but did not indicate building and parking area footprints on
the proposed sites. Yards and required setbacks shall be evaluated at the time of building permit
submittal and prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall indicate adherence to
yard setback requirements on site plans submitted for building permit review.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

B. No yard or open space on adjoining property shall be considered as providing required yard
or open space for another lot or development site under the provisions of this code.

Finding: The application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback
requirements for the proposed lots indicating that no yard or open space on adjoining property
provides a yard or open space for any other building on proposed lot. The application materials
included building elevations and floor plans but did not indicate building and parking area
footprints on the proposed sites. Yards and required setbacks shall be evaluated at the time of
building permit submittal and prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall
indicate adherence to yard setback requirements on site plans submitted for building permit
review.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

Page 38 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

C. No front yards provided around any building for the purpose of complying with the
regulations of this code shall be used for public or private parking areas or garages, or other
accessory buildings, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this code.

Finding: The application materials included building elevations and floor plans but did not
indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites. Yards and required setbacks
shall be evaluated at the time of building permit submittal and prior to the issuance of building
permits, the Applicant shall indicate adherence to yard setback requirements on site plans
submitted for building permit review.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

D. When the common property line separating two or more contiguous lots is covered by a
building or a permitted group of buildings with respect to such common property line or lines
does not fully conform to the required yard spaces on each side of such common property line
or lines, such lots shall constitute a single development site and the yards as required by this
code shall then not apply to such common property lines.

Finding: No existing buildings are proposed to remain on the site that will cover a common
property line separating two or more contiguous proposed lots. This criterion is not applicable.

E. Dwellings Where Permitted above Nonresidential Buildings. The front and interior yard
requirements for residential uses shall not be applicable; provided, that all yard requirements
for the district in which such building is located are complied with.

Finding: No nonresidential buildings are proposed in the planned unit development. Because no
dwellings are proposed above nonresidential buildings, this criterion is not applicable.

F. In the Al airport industrial district, clear areas, safety areas, object-free areas, taxiways,
parking aprons, and runways may be counted as required yards for a building, even if located
upon an adjacent parcel.

Finding: The subject property is located in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. Because the
proposed planned unit development is not located in the Airport Industrial zoning district, this
criterion is not applicable.

G. In the AR airport residential district, clear areas, safety areas, object-free areas, taxiways,
parking aprons, and runways may be counted as required yards for a building, if located upon
an adjacent parcel. [Ord. 2647, 6-5-06; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.550.]

Finding: The subject property is located in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. Because the
proposed planned unit development is not located in the Airport Residential zoning district, this
criterion is not applicable.

15.410.020  Front yard setback.
A. Residential (see Appendix A, Figure 10).

Page 39 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

1. AR, R-1 and R-2 districts shall have a front yard of not less than 15 feet, except that
multifamily dwellings with parking to the side or rear shall have a front yard of not less
than 10 feet. Said yard shall be landscaped and maintained.

2. R-3 and RP districts shall have a front yard of not less than 12 feet, except that
multifamily dwellings with parking to the side or rear shall have a front yard of not less
than eight feet. Said yard shall be landscaped and maintained.

3. The entrance to a garage or carport, whether or not attached to a dwelling, shall be set
back at least 20 feet from the nearest property line of the street to which access will be
provided. However, the foregoing setback requirement shall not apply where the garage or
carport will be provided with access to an alley only.

[...]

Finding: The application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback
requirements for the proposed lots. The application materials included building elevations and
floor plans but did not indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites. Yards
and required setbacks shall be evaluated at the time of building permit submittal and prior to the
issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall indicate adherence to yard setback requirements
on site plans submitted for building permit review.

15.410.030  Interior yard setback.
A. Residential.

1. All lots or development sites in the AR, R-1, R-2 and R-3 districts shall have interior
yards of not less than five feet, except that where a utility easement is recorded adjacent to
a side lot line, there shall be a side yard no less than the width of the easement.

[.-]

Finding: The application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback
requirements for the proposed lots. The application materials included building elevations and
floor plans but did not indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites. Yards
and required setbacks shall be evaluated at the time of building permit submittal and prior to the
issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall indicate adherence to yard setback requirements
on site plans submitted for building permit review.

15.410.040  Setback and yard restrictions as to schools, churches, public buildings.

A. Building Setback. No buildings shall be erected, used or maintained for a school, church or
public or semi-public building or use, institution or similar use under the regulations of this
code unless such building is removed at least 25 feet from every boundary line of any property
included in any residential district.

B. Required Yard. No required front or interior yard of the lot on which such building or use
is located shall be used for play or parking purposes. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 §
151.553.]

Page 40 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

Finding: No schools, churches, or public buildings are proposed as part of the planned unit
development. Because no schools, churches, or public buildings are proposed, these criteria are
not applicable.

15.410.050  Special setback requirements to planned rights-of-way.
A. Yard Requirements for Property Abutting Partial or Future Street Rights-of-Way.

1. Except as provided in subsection (A)(2) of this section, no building shall be erected on a
lot which abuts a street having only a portion of its required width dedicated, unless the
yards provided and maintained in connection with such building have a width and/or
depth needed to complete the street width plus the width and/or depths of the yards
required on the lot by this code.

2. Where a comprehensive plan street design or a future street plan exists, the placement
of buildings and the establishment of yards where required by this code shall relate to the
future street boundaries as determined by said plans.

B. Planned Street Right-of-Way Widths. Planned street right-of-way widths are established as
indicated in subsection (C) of this section for the various categories of streets shown in the
transportation system plan.

C. A lot or parcel of land in any district adjoining a street for which the planned right-of-way
width and alignment have been determined shall have a building setback line equal to the yard
required in the district, plus a distance of:

1. Fifty feet from and parallel with the centerline of expressways.
2. Thirty-five feet from and parallel with the centerline of major and minor arterials.

3. Thirty feet from and parallel with the centerline of multifamily, commercial and
industrial streets and single-family collector streets.

4. Thirty feet from and parallel with the centerline of single-family local streets.

5. Twenty-five feet from and parallel with the centerline of single-family hillside, cul-de-
sacs and local streets which will never be extended more than 2,400 feet in length and
which will have a relatively even division of traffic to two or more exits.

Exceptions to the above five classifications are shown in the transportation system plan.

D. The centerline of planned streets shall be either the officially surveyed centerline or a
centerline as on a precise plan. In the event of conflict between the two, the latter-described
line shall prevail. In all other cases, a line midway between properties abutting the right-of-
way shall be the centerline for the purposes of this code. [Ord. 2763 § 1 (Exh. A § 13), 9-16-
13; Ord. 2602, 9-20-04; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.554.]

Finding: The southern boundary of Lots 82 and 83 of the proposed PUD configuration abut a
jog in the right-of -way that would be required for a future extension of Street “A” continuing the
“to and through” design required in NMC 15.505.030(K). All of the proposed streets in the PUD

Page 41 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

are proposed to be classified as local residential streets, which require 54-60 feet of right-of-way
pursuant to NMC 15.505.030(G). The City’s Transportation System plan does not typically
create alignments for local residential streets, and a future extension of the current alignment of
Street “A” would create a substandard condition for the required right-of-way along the extended
Street “A”. The submitted site plan does not indicate dedication of right-of-way for the future
extension of Street “A”. Because the Transportation System Plan does not identify an alignment
for the extension of Street “A”, the centerline of Street “A” will determine the special setback
requirement for the required future right of way. Because the future development of the adjacent
site and extension of Street “A” are not proposed with this development, the rear yards of Lots
82 and 83 will be interior yards.

The finding and condition of approval for NMC 15.505.030(G)(10) requires the Applicant to
submit an updated site plan indicating that the layout of lots in this area have been reworked to
eliminate the presence of this jog and ensure a consistent ROW length across the entire stretch of
Street A to accommodate a future street extension, or an agreement in a form acceptable to the
City shall be submitted guaranteeing the dedication of the required right-of-way at the time of
extension of Street “A” to serve future development.

If the current site configuration is maintained and an agreement guaranteeing the future
dedication of the right-of-way area submitted, Lots 82 and 83 shall have a building setback line
equal to the yard required in the district (5-foot interior yard setback in the R-1 zoning district)
plus 30-feet from and parallel with the centerline of Street “A”, a single-family local street.

If the site configuration is revised to eliminate the presence of the jog, the building setback line
shall be the standard required in NMC 15.410.030. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the
Applicant shall submit a revised site plan indicating the yard setback which includes the building
setback line required in 15.410.050(C).

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

15.410.060  Vision clearance setback.
The following vision clearance standards shall apply in all zones (see Appendix A, Figure 9).

A. At the intersection of two streets, including private streets, a triangle formed by the
intersection of the curb lines, each leg of the vision clearance triangle shall be a minimum of
50 feet in length.

B. At the intersection of a private drive and a street, a triangle formed by the intersection of
the curb lines, each leg of the vision clearance triangle shall be a minimum of 25 feet in
length.

C. Vision clearance triangles shall be kept free of all visual obstructions from two and one-
half feet to nine feet above the curb line. Where curbs are absent, the edge of the asphalt or
future curb location shall be used as a guide, whichever provides the greatest amount of vision
clearance.

[.-.]

Page 42 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

Finding: The application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback
requirements for the proposed lots. The application materials included building elevations and
floor plans but did not indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites. The
site plans submitted included vision clearance triangles at the intersections of proposed public
streets, but not for the service drives proposed for each lot. Adherence to vision clearance
standards shall be evaluated at the time of building permit submittal. Prior to the issuance of
building permits, the Applicant shall submit revised site plans depicting applicable vision
clearance triangles.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

15.410.070  Yard exceptions and permitted intrusions into required yard setbacks.
The following intrusions may project into required yards to the extent and under the
conditions and limitations indicated:

A. Depressed Areas. In any district, open work fences, hedges, guard railings or other
landscaping or architectural devices for safety protection around depressed ramps, stairs or
retaining walls may be located in required yards; provided, that such devices are not more
than three and one-half feet in height.

B. Accessory Buildings. In front yards on through lots, where a through lot has a depth of not
more than 140 feet, accessory buildings may be located in one of the required front yards;
provided, that every portion of such accessory building is not less than 10 feet from the nearest
street line.

C. Projecting Building Features. The following building features may project into the required
front yard no more than five feet and into the required interior yards no more than two feet;
provided, that such projections are no closer than three feet to any interior lot line:

1. Eaves, cornices, belt courses, sills, awnings, buttresses or other similar features.
2. Chimneys and fireplaces, provided they do not exceed eight feet in width.

3. Porches, platforms or landings which do not extend above the level of the first floor of
the building.

4. Mechanical structures (heat pumps, air conditioners, emergency generators and
pumps).

D. Fences and Walls.

1. In the residential district, a fence or wall shall be permitted to be placed at the property
line or within a yard setback as follows:

a. Not to exceed six feet in height. Located or maintained within the required interior
yards. For purposes of fencing only, lots that are corner lots or through lots may select
one of the street frontages as a front yard and all other yards shall be considered as
interior yards, allowing the placement of a six-foot fence on the property line. In no
case may a fence extend into the clear vision zone as defined in NMC 15.410.060.

Page 43 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

b. Not to exceed four feet in height. Located or maintained within all other front
yards.

2. In any commercial, industrial, or mixed employment district, a fence or wall shall be
permitted to be placed at the property line or within a yard setback as follows:

a. Not to exceed eight feet in height. Located or maintained in any interior yard except
where the requirements of vision clearance apply. For purposes of fencing only, lots
that are corner lots or through lots may select one of the street frontages as a front
yard and all other yards shall be considered as interior yards, allowing the placement
of an eight-foot fence on the property line.

b. Not to exceed four feet in height. Located or maintained within all other front
yards.

3. If chain link (wire-woven) fences are used, they are manufactured of corrosion-proof
materials of at least 11-1/2 gauge.

4. The requirements of vision clearance shall apply to the placement of fences.
E. Parking and Service Drives (Also Refer to NMC 15.440.010 through 15.440.080).

1. In any district, service drives or accessways providing ingress and egress shall be
permitted, together with any appropriate traffic control devices in any required yard.

2. In any residential district, public or private parking areas and parking spaces shall not
be permitted in any required yard except as provided herein:

a. Required parking spaces shall be permitted on service drives in the required front
yard in conjunction with any single-family detached dwelling, duplex dwelling, triplex
dwelling, quadplex dwelling, or townhouse dwelling on a single lot.

b. Recreational vehicles, boat trailers, camperettes and all other vehicles not in daily
use are restricted to parking in the front yard setback for not more than 48 hours; and
recreational vehicles, boat trailers, camperettes and all other vehicles not in daily use
are permitted to be located in the required interior yards.

¢. Public or private parking areas, parking spaces or any building or portion of any
building intended for parking which have been identified as a use permitted in any
residential district shall be permitted in any interior yard that abuts an alley, provided
said parking areas, structures or spaces shall comply with NMC 15.440.070, Parking
tables and diagrams (Diagrams 1 through 3).

d. Public or private parking areas, service drives or parking spaces which have been
identified as a use permitted in any residential district shall be permitted in interior
yards; provided, that said parking areas, service drives or parking spaces shall comply
with other requirements of this code.

Page 44 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

3. In any commercial or industrial district, except C-1, C-4, M-1, and M-E, public or
private parking areas or parking spaces shall be permitted in any required yard (see NMC
15.410.030). Parking requirements in the C-4 district and the M-E district within the
riverfront overlay subdistrict are described in NMC 15.352.040(H).

4. In the I district, public or private parking areas or parking spaces may be no closer to a
front property line than 20 feet, and no closer to an interior property line than five feet.

F. Public Telephone Booths and Public Transit Shelters. Public telephone booths and public
transit shelters shall be permitted; provided, that vision clearance is maintained for vehicle
requirements for vision clearance.

G. Hangars within the AR airport residential district may be constructed with no yard setbacks
to property lines adjacent to other properties within the airport residential or airport industrial
districts. [Ord. 2889 § 2 (Exh. B § 31), 12-6-21; Ord. 2880 § 2 (Exh. B § 40), 6-7-21; Ord. 2868
§ 1 (Exh. A), 11-16-20; Ord. 2647, 6-5-06; Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2564, 4-15-02; Ord. 2561,
4-1-02; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.556.]

Finding: The application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback
requirements for the proposed lots. The application materials included building elevations and
floor plans but did not indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites. Yards
and required setbacks, including permitted intrusion into yard setback areas, shall be evaluated at
the time of building permit submittal and prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant
shall indicate adherence to yard setback requirements on site plans submitted for building permit
review.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.
Chapter 15.415 BUILDING AND SITE DESIGN STANDARDS

15.415.010  Main buildings and uses as accessory buildings.
A. Hereinafter, any building which is the only building on a lot is a main building.

B. In any residential district except RP, there shall be only one main use per lot or
development site; provided, that home occupations shall be allowed where permitted.

C. In any residential district, there shall be no more than two accessory buildings on any lot or
development site. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.535.]

Finding: The application materials include tentative plat maps and do not include any additional
information on proposed or planned accessory buildings. The proposed single-family dwellings
on each lot will serve as the main building, and any additional accessory buildings will be
evaluated in the building permit review process. Multiple uses are not proposed on any lots
within the PUD, and any home occupations must comply with the NMC 15.415.060 and will be
processed separately. Because no accessory building are proposed at this time and only one main
use per lot or development site is proposed, the criteria are met.

15.415.020  Building height limitation.

Page 45 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

A. Residential.

1. In the R-1 district, no main building shall exceed 30 feet in height, except that
townhouse dwellings shall not exceed 35 feet in height.

[...]

3. In the R-3 district, no main building shall exceed 45 feet in height, except, where an R-3
district abuts upon an R-1 district, the maximum permitted building height shall be limited
to 30 feet for a distance of 50 feet from the abutting boundary of the aforementioned
district.

4. Accessory buildings in the R-1, R-2, R-3, AR, and RP districts are limited to 16 feet in
height, except as follows:

a. Up to 800 square feet of an accessory building may have a height of up to 24 feet.

b. Aircraft hangars in the AR district may be the same height as the main building.

[...]

Finding: The application materials indicate that the single-family dwellings proposed in the
PUD will have a maximum height of 30 feet in both the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. The
application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback requirements for the
proposed lots. The application materials included building elevations and floor plans but did not
indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites. Any additional accessory
buildings will be evaluated in the building permit review process or through a separate building
permit submittal, as required by the NMC. Compliance with the building height limitation will
be evaluated in the building permit review process. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the
Applicant shall indicate compliance with the building height limitation on site plans submitted
for building permit review.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

15.415.030  Building height exemptions.

Roof structures and architectural features for the housing of elevators, stairways, tanks,
ventilating fans and similar equipment required to operate and maintain the building, fire or
parapet walls, skylights, towers, flagpoles, chimneys, smokestacks, wireless masts, TV
antennas, steeples and similar structures may be erected above the height limits prescribed in
this code; provided, that no roof structure, feature or any other device above the prescribed
height limit shall be allowed or used for the purpose of providing additional floor space.
Further, no roof structure or architectural feature under this exemption shall be erected more
than 18 feet above the height of the main building, whether such structure is attached to it or
freestanding, nor shall any such structure or feature exceed the height limits of the airport
overlay subdistrict. [Ord. 2730 § 1 (Exh. A (4)), 10-18-10; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 §
151.537.]

Finding: The application materials indicate that the single-family dwellings proposed in the
PUD will not exceed the building height limitations in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. The

Page 46 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback requirements for the
proposed lots. The application materials included building elevations and floor plans but did not
indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites. The presence of any building
height exemptions will be evaluated in the building permit review process. Prior to the issuance
of building permits, the Applicant shall indicate compliance with the building height limitation
on site plans submitted for building permit review.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

15.415.040  Public access required.

No building or structure shall be erected or altered except on a lot fronting or abutting on a
public street or having access to a public street over a private street or easement of record
approved in accordance with provisions contained in this code. New private streets may not be
created to provide access except as allowed under NMC 15.332.020(B)(24), 15.336.020(B)(8),
and in the M-4 zone. Existing private streets may not be used for access for new dwelling
units, except as allowed under NMC 15.405.030. No building or structure shall be erected or
altered without provisions for access roadways as required in the Oregon Fire Code, as
adopted by the city. [Ord. 2720 § 1(11), 11-2-09; Ord. 2647, 6-5-06; Ord. 2507, 3-1-99; Ord.
2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.538.]

Finding: The application materials indicate that each lot in the proposed PUD has access
fronting or abutting a public street or through an access easement, and that the Applicant has
obtained a Service Provider Letter from Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue indicating that the
proposed development has been reviewed and approved by the Fire Marshall or Designee.
Because each lot in the proposed PUD has public access, this criterion is met.

Chapter 15.420 LANDSCAPING AND OUTDOOR AREAS

15.420.010  Required minimum standards.
A. Private and Shared Outdoor Recreation Areas in Residential Developments.

1. Private Areas. Each ground-level living unit in a residential development subject to a
design review plan approval shall have an accessible outdoor private space of not less than
48 square feet in area. The area shall be enclosed, screened or otherwise designed to
provide increased privacy for unit residents, their guests and neighbors.

[.-]

Finding: The application materials include tentative plat maps with proposed yard setback
requirements for the proposed lots. The application materials included building elevations and
floor plans but did not indicate building and parking area footprints on the proposed sites. The
Applicant has indicated that each single-family home will provide a minimum of 48 square feet.
The provision of private outdoor areas shall be evaluated at the time of building permit submittal
and prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall indicate the required private
outdoor area on site plans submitted for building permit review.

Page 47 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

B. Required Landscaped Area. The following landscape requirements are established for all
developments except single-family detached dwellings, duplex dwellings, triplex dwellings,
quadplex dwellings, townhouse dwellings and cottage cluster projects:

1. A minimum of 15 percent of the lot area shall be landscaped; provided, however, that
computation of this minimum may include areas landscaped under subsection (B)(3) of
this section. Development in the C-3 (central business district) zoning district and M-4
(large lot industrial) zoning district is exempt from the 15 percent landscape area
requirement of this section. Additional landscaping requirements in the C-4 district are
described in NMC 15.352.040(K). In the Al airport industrial district, only a five percent
landscaping standard is required with the goal of “softening” the buildings and making
the development “green” with plants, where possible. The existence of the runway,
taxiway, and approach open areas already provide generally for the 15 percent
requirement. Developments in the Al airport industrial district with a public street
frontage shall have said minimum landscaping between the front property line and the
front of the building.

2. All areas subject to the final design review plan and not otherwise improved shall be
landscaped.

3. The following landscape requirements shall apply to the parking and loading areas:

a. A parking or loading area providing 10 or more spaces shall be improved with
defined landscaped areas totaling no less than 25 square feet per parking space.

b. A parking, loading area, or drive aisle which runs adjacent to a property line shall
be separate from any lot line adjacent to a street by a landscaped strip at least 10 feet
in interior width or the width of the required yard, whichever is greater, and any other
lot line by a landscaped strip of at least five feet in interior width. See subsections
(B)(3)(c) and (d) of this section for material to plant within landscape strips.

¢. A landscaped strip separating a parking area, loading area, or drive aisle from a
street shall contain street trees spaced as appropriate to the species, not to exceed 50
feet apart on average, and a combination of shrubs and ground cover, or lawn. This
landscaping shall provide partial screening of these areas from the street.

d. A landscaped strip separating a parking area, loading area, or drive aisle from an
interior lot line shall contain any combination of trees, shrubs, ground cover or lawn.
Plant material shall be selected from at least two different plant material groups
(example: trees and shrubs, or lawn and shrubs, or lawn and trees and shrubs).

e. Landscaping in a parking or loading area shall be located in defined landscaped
areas which are uniformly distributed throughout the parking or loading area.

f- Landscaping areas in a parking lot, service drive or loading area shall have an
interior width of not less than five feet.

Page 48 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

8. All multifamily, institutional, commercial, or industrial parking areas, service
drives, or loading zones which abut a residential district shall be enclosed with a 75
percent opaque, site-obscuring fence, wall or evergreen hedge along and immediately
adjacent to any interior property line which abuts the residential district. Landscape
plantings must be large enough to provide the required minimum screening
requirement within 12 months after initial installation. Adequate provisions shall be
maintained to protect walls, fences or plant materials from being damaged by vehicles
using said parking areas.

h. An island of landscaped area shall be located to separate blocks of parking spaces.
At a minimum, one deciduous shade tree per seven parking spaces shall be planted to
create a partial tree canopy over and around the parking area. No more than seven
parking spaces may be grouped together without an island separation unless otherwise
approved by the director based on the following alternative standards:

i. Provision of a continuous landscaped strip, with a five-foot minimum width,

which runs perpendicular to the row of parking spaces (see Appendix A, Figure
13).

ii. Provision of tree planting landscape islands, each of which is at least 16 square
feet in size, and spaced no more than 50 feet apart on average, within areas
proposed for back-to-back parking (see Appendix A, Figure 14).

4. Trees, Shrubs and Ground Covers. The species of street trees required under this
section shall conform to those authorized by the city council through resolution. The
director shall have the responsibility for preparing and updating the street tree species list
which shall be adopted in resolution form by the city council.

a. Arterial and minor arterial street trees shall have spacing of approximately 50 feet
on center. These trees shall have a minimum two-inch caliper tree trunk or stalk at a
measurement of two feet up from the base and shall be balled and burlapped or boxed.

b. Collector and local street trees shall be spaced approximately 35 to 40 feet on
center. These trees shall have a minimum of a one and one-half or one and three-
Sfourths inch tree trunk or stalk and shall be balled and burlapped or boxed.

c. Accent Trees. Accent trees are trees such as flowering cherry, flowering plum, crab-
apple, Hawthorne and the like. These trees shall have a minimum one and one-half
inch caliper tree trunk or stalk and shall be at least eight to 10 feet in height. These
trees may be planted bare root or balled and burlapped. The spacing of these trees
should be approximately 25 to 30 feet on center.

d. All broad-leafed evergreen shrubs and deciduous shrubs shall have a minimum
height of 12 to 15 inches and shall be balled and burlapped or come from a two-gallon
can. Gallon-can size shrubs will not be allowed except in ground covers. Larger sizes
of shrubs may be required in special areas and locations as specified by the design
review board. Spacing of these shrubs shall be typical for the variety, three to eight
feet, and shall be identified on the landscape planting plan.

Page 49 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

e. Ground Cover Plant Material. Ground cover plant material such as greening
juniper, cotoneaster, minor Bowles, English ivy, hypericum and the like shall be one
of the following sizes in specified spacing for that size:

Gallon cans 3 feet on center
4'" containers 2 feet on center
2-1/4"" containers 18" on center
Rooted cuttings 12" on center

5. Automatic, underground irrigation systems shall be provided for all areas required to be
planted by this section. The director shall retain the flexibility to allow a combination of
irrigated and nonirrigated areas. Landscaping material used within nonirrigated areas
must consist of drought- resistant varieties. Provision must be made for alternative
irrigation during the first year after initial installation to provide sufficient moisture for
plant establishment.

6. Required landscaping shall be continuously maintained.

7. Maximum height of tree species shall be considered when planting under overhead
utility lines.

8. Landscaping requirements and standards for parking and loading areas (subsection
(B)(3) of this section) will apply to development proposals unless the institution has
addressed the requirements and standards by an approved site development master plan.
With an approved site development master plan, the landscape requirements will be
reviewed through an administrative Type I review process.

9. In the M-4 zone, landscaping requirements and standards for parking and loading
areas (subsection (B)(3) of this section) do not apply unless within 50 feet of a residential
district.

Finding: The following findings correspond to each code subsection:

1. The application materials include proposed plantings and landscaped areas for tracts not
intended for development as single-family dwellings across the site. The landscaping of
each single-family dwelling lot will be evaluated during the building permit review
process. Because the proposed development includes landscaped areas in tracts not
intended for single-family dwellings, this criterion is met.

2. The application materials include proposed plantings and landscaped areas for tracts not
intended for development as single-family dwellings across the site. The landscaping of
each single-family dwelling lot will be evaluated during the building permit review
process. Because the proposed development includes landscaped areas in tracts not
intended for single-family dwellings and not otherwise improved, this criterion is met.

3. The proposed planned unit development includes single-family dwellings with associated
residential parking areas and service drives. No parking areas providing 10 or more

Page 50 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

spaces are proposed. No landscape strips or other landscaping areas are required
separating residential off-street parking areas from property lines. Because the proposed
parking areas area associated with single-family residential uses, the criteria are not
applicable.

4. Because the proposed development is a planned unit development, street trees are
required. The streets within the PUD are proposed to be classified as local residential
streets and N Springbrook Road to the southwest of the PUD is classified as a Major
Collector. According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which
effectively accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the property (ANX24-0001) and the
stretch of frontage along NE Springbrook Road:

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-
way is adjacent to the public road right-of-way, the developer will be
required to build full street improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This
would include street lighting and is to be consistent with existing street
improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road southwest of the site.

Although the portion of NE Springbrook Road along the subject property was not
annexed in ANX24-0001, because of the condition to provide improvements consistent
with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road southwest of
the site, street tree requirements for NE Springbrook Road in unincorporated Yamhill
County adjacent to the site will be evaluated as a Major Collector.

NMC 15.420.010(B)(4)(b) requires that street trees along collector and local streets shall
have spacing of approximately 35 to 40 feet on center. The PUD has approximately 7,346
feet of street frontage, requiring approximately 197 street trees at a spacing of 35 feet on
center. The landscaping plans included in the application materials indicate 123 street
trees are provided throughout the PUD. Prior to Step Two PUD approval, the Applicant
shall provide updated landscape plans meeting the street tree spacing requirements of
NMC 15.420.010(B)(4) or discussing conflicts prohibiting street tree installation (i.e.

utilities).

The installation of street trees located on individual lots intended for residential use shall
be verified at the time of final planning inspection prior to issuance of Certificate of
Occupancy. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit revised
site plans indicating street trees located on lots intended for residential use. The
installation of street trees located on tracts not intended for residential use will be verified
at the time of the final planning inspection prior to issuance of the certificate of
occupancy of the first single-family dwelling.

5. The application materials include landscape plans for tracts not intended for single family
development. Prior to the issuance of the Type I PUD Step Two approval, the Applicant
shall provide irrigation plans for these landscaped areas. Upon adherence to the
aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

Page 51 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

6. The application materials include landscape plans for tracts not intended for single family
development. The landscaping proposed for tracts and areas not intended for single
family development shall be continuously maintained and prior to the Step Two PUD
approval the Applicant shall submit a mechanism for maintenance of privately owned
landscaped areas. Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this
criterion will be met.

7. The proposed utilities in the PUD will be located underground. Because the site utilities
will be underground, the required street trees will not conflict with overhead utility lines
and this criterion is met.

8. The parking areas required are associated with single-family residential development and
meet the landscaping standards as indicated in the finding for NMC 15.420.010(B)(4)(3).
No landscaping site development master plan is proposed or required and this criterion is
not applicable.

9. The proposed PUD is located in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. Because the
development is not located in the M-4 zoning district, this criterion is not applicable.

C. Installation of Landscaping. All landscaping required by these provisions shall be installed
prior to the issuance of occupancy permits, unless security equal to 110 percent of the cost of
the landscaping as determined by the director is filed with the city, insuring such installation
within six months of occupancy. A security — cash, certified check, time certificates of deposit,
assignment of a savings account, bond or such other assurance of completion as shall meet
with the approval of the city attorney — shall satisfy the security requirements. If the
installation of the landscaping is not completed within the six-month period, or within an
extension of time authorized by the director, the security may be used by the city to complete
the installation. Upon completion of the installation, any portion of the remaining security
deposited with the city shall be returned to the applicant. [Ord. 2889 § 2 (Exh. B § 34), 12-6-
21; Ord. 2880 § 2 (Exh. B §§ 42, 43), 6-7-21; Ord. 2720 § 1(16, 17), 11-2-09; Ord. 2647, 6-5-
06; Ord. 2564, 4-15-02; Ord. 2561, 4-1-02; Ord. 2513, 8-2-99; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001
§151.580.]

Finding: The application materials include a landscape plan for areas not intended for single-
family development. Prior to the issuance of certificates of occupancy, all landscaping required
shall be installed or the Applicant shall provide security equal to 110 percent of the cost of the
landscaping as specified in NMC 15.420.010(C). Upon adherence to the aforementioned
condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

15.420.020  Landscaping and amenities in public rights-of-way.

The following standards are intended to create attractive streetscapes and inviting pedestrian
spaces. A review body may require any of the following landscaping and amenities to be
placed in abutting public rights-of-way as part of multifamily, commercial, industrial, or
institutional design reviews, or for subdivisions and planned unit developments. In addition,
any entity improving existing rights-of-way should consider including these elements in the
project. A decision to include any amenity shall be based on comprehensive plan guidelines,
pedestrian volumes in the area, and the nature of surrounding development.

Page 52 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

A. Pedestrian Space Landscaping. Pedestrian spaces shall include all sidewalks and medians
used for pedestrian refuge. Spaces near sidewalks shall provide plant material for cooling and
dust control, and street furniture for comfort and safety, such as benches, waste receptacles
and pedestrian-scale lighting. These spaces should be designed for short-term as well as long-
term use. Elements of pedestrian spaces shall not obstruct sightlines and shall adhere to any
other required city safety measures. Medians used for pedestrian refuge shall be designed for
short-term use only with plant material for cooling and dust control, and pedestrian-scale
lighting. The design of these spaces shall facilitate safe pedestrian crossing with lighting and
accent paving to delineate a safe crossing zone visually clear to motorists and pedestrians
alike.

1. Street trees planted in pedestrian spaces shall be planted according to NMC
15.420.010(B)(4).

2. Pedestrian spaces shall have low (two and one-half feet) shrubs and ground covers for
safety purposes, enhancing visibility and discouraging criminal activity.

a. Plantings shall be 90 percent evergreen year-round, provide seasonal interest with
fall color or blooms, and at maturity maintain growth within the planting area (refer
to plant material matrix below).

b. Plant placement shall also adhere to clear sight line requirements as well as any
other relevant city safety measures.

3. Pedestrian-scale lighting shall be installed along sidewalks and in medians used for
pedestrian refuge.

a. Pole lights as well as bollard lighting may be specified; however, the amount and
type of pedestrian activity during evening hours, e.g., transit stops, nighttime service
districts, shall ultimately determine the type of fixture chosen.

b. Luminaire styles shall match the area/district theme of existing luminaires and
shall not conflict with existing building or roadway lights causing glare.

c. Lighting heights and styles shall be chosen to prevent glare and to designate a clear
and safe path and limit opportunities for vandalism (see Appendix A, Figure 17,
Typical Pedestrian Space Layouts).

d. Lighting shall be placed near the curb to provide maximum illumination for spaces
furthest from building illumination. Spacing shall correspond to that of the street trees
to prevent tree foliage from blocking light.

4. Street furniture such as benches and waste receptacles shall be provided for spaces near
sidewalks only.

a. Furniture should be sited in areas with the heaviest pedestrian activity, such as
downtown, shopping districts, and shopping centers.

Page 53 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

b. Benches should be arranged to facilitate conversation between individuals with L-
shaped arrangements and should face the area focal point, such as shops, fountains,
plazas, and should divert attention away from nearby traffic.

5. Paving and curb cuts shall facilitate safe pedestrian crossing and meet all ADA
requirements for accessibility.

Finding: The Applicant is proposing public right-of-way connections between proposed single-
family dwellings, the proposed shared outdoor recreation area, and NE Springbrook Road. The
application materials submitted indicate the landscaping in the tracts not intended for residential
development and along sidewalks throughout the development site as well as the location of
proposed street trees. Because the shared amenity and outdoor furnishings information is still
tentative, prior to Step 2 of the PUD process, a revised site plan and landscape plan that
demonstrates additional information on the shared recreation area and outdoor furnishings shall
be provided. Because street trees, street lighting, and landscaping will be provided at pedestrian
areas, upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion shall be met.

B. Planting Strip Landscaping. All planting strips shall be landscaped. Planting strips provide
a physical and psychological buffer for pedestrians from traffic with plant material that
reduces heat and dust, creating a more comfortable pedestrian environment. Planting strips
shall have different arrangements and combinations of plant materials according to the
frequency of on-street parking (see Appendix A, Figures 18 and 19).

1. Planting strips which do not have adjacent parking shall have a combination of ground
covers, low (two and one-half feet) shrubs and trees. Planting strips adjacent to frequently
used on-street parking, as defined by city staff, shall only have trees protected by tree
grates, and planting strips adjacent to infrequently used on-street parking shall be planted
with ground cover as well as trees (see Appendix A, Figures 18 and 19, Typical Planting
Strip Layouts). District themes or corridor themes linking individual districts should be
followed utilizing a unifying plant characteristic, e.g., bloom color, habit, or fall color.
When specifying thematic plant material, monocultures should be avoided, particularly
those species susceptible to disease.

2. Street trees shall be provided in all planting strips as provided in NMC
15.420.010(B)(4).

a. Planting strips without adjacent parking or with infrequent adjacent parking shall
have street trees in conjunction with ground covers and/or shrubs.

b. Planting strips with adjacent parking used frequently shall have only street trees
protected by tree grates.

3. Shrubs and ground covers shall be provided in planting strips without adjacent parking
with low (two and one-half feet) planting masses to enhance visibility, discourage criminal
activity, and provide a physical as well as psychological buffer from passing traffic.

a. Plantings shall be 90 percent evergreen year-round, provide seasonal interest with
fall color or blooms and at maturity maintain growth within the planting area.

Page 54 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

b. Ground cover able to endure infrequent foot traffic shall be used in combination
with street trees for planting strips with adjacent occasional parking (refer to plant
material matrix below).

c. All plant placement shall adhere to clear sight line requirements as well as any
other relevant city safety measures.

Finding: The Applicant has indicated that all planting strips will be landscaped with a
combination of ground covers, shrubs, and trees. The application materials include landscape
plans for the tracts not intended for single-family development and the location of proposed
street trees, however do not indicate the type or number of plantings in the planting strips
through the PUD. Prior to the issuance of public improvement permits, the Applicant shall
submit revised landscape plans showing the proposed landscaping in the planting strips.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

C. Maintenance. All landscapes shall be maintained for the duration of the planting to
encourage health of plant material as well as public health and safety. All street trees and
shrubs shall be pruned to maintain health and structure of the plant material for public safety
purposes.

Finding: The application materials indicate that all landscaping will be maintained for the
duration of the planting and all street trees and shrubs will be pruned to maintain the health and
structure of the plants. This criterion is met.

D. Exception. In the Al airport industrial district and AR airport residential district, no
landscape or amenities except for grass are required for any area within 50 feet of aircraft
operation areas including aircraft parking areas, taxiways, clear areas, safety areas, object-
free areas, and the runway.

Finding: The subject property is located in the R-1 and R-3 zoning districts. Because the subject
property is not located in the Airport Industrial (Al) or Airport residential (AR) zoning districts,
this criterion is not applicable.

Page 55 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

ant Material Matrix — Newberg Transportation Planning Rule Implementation

Median Pedestrian Planting Strip
Space
Central
Business
District/Urba | Low Density Frequent On- | Infrequent On- Without On-
n Application | Application Street Parking | Street Parking | Street Parking
Plant Trees, shrubs and ground Trees, Trees in tree Trees and Trees, shrubs
Material cover shrubs and |wells with grates| ground cover and ground
ground cover
cover
(where
applicable)
Tree and | Single row of | Single row of | Refer to Single row of Refer to tree Refer to tree
Shrub trees planted | trees planted | median or | trees planted in | specifications specifications
Arrangement | in triangular | in triangular | planting linear pattern, | for median as | for median as
pattern, pattern, strip equally spaced applicable, applicable,
equally arranged in |specification ground cover as | ground cover as
spaced, clusters, sas desired desired
shrubs as shrubs as applicable
desired desired
Tree Form | Columnarto| Round to Referto | Refer to median | Refer to median | Refer to median
round tree broad tree median or | recommendatio | recommendatio | recommendatio
canopy canopy planting | ns as applicable | ns as applicable | ns as applicable
strip
specification
s as
applicable
Examples of | Bradford Flowering Refer to | Refer to median | Refer to median | Refer to median
Recommende | Flowering Cherry median or | recommendatio | recommendatio | recommendatio
d Tree Pear (Pyrus (Prunus planting | ns as applicable, | ns as applicable, | ns as applicable,
Species calleryana serrulata, strip lowest tree limb lowest limb lowest limb
“Bradford”), several specification | height of 10 feet | height of 10 feet | height of 10 feet
Flowering varieties), s as
Cherry Flowering | applicable
(Prunus Dogwood
serrulata, (Cornus
several species,
varieties), several
Red Sunset varieties),
Maple (Acer | Hawthorn
rubrum), (Crataegus
Londos species,
Plana several
(Platanus | species), Red
acerifolia) Sunset
Maple (Acer
rubrum),
Red Oak
(Quercus
rubra)

Page 56 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

Median Pedestrian Planting Strip
Space
Central
Business
District/Urba | Low Density Frequent On- | Infrequent On- Without On-
n Application | Application Street Parking | Street Parking | Street Parking
Shrub and | Pollutant and| Pollutant 2.5 feet Not applicable 2.5 feet 2.5 feet
Ground reflected heat | and reflected | maximum maximum maximum
Cover tolerant heat tolerant height, height, pollutant | height, pollutant
Characteristic pollutant and reflected and reflected
s (ie., and heat tolerant heat tolerant
environmenta reflected
l tolerance, heat tolerant
mature size)
Examples of | Lonicera Lonicera Sargent Not applicable | Sargent Juniper | Sargent Juniper
Recommende | japonica Jjaponica Juniper (Juniperus (Juniperus
d Shrub (Privet (Privet (Juniperus sargentii), sargentii),
Species Honeysuckle) | Honeysuckle | sargentii), Cotoneaster Cotoneaster
, Sargent ), Sargent | Cotoneaster (Cotoneaster, (Cotoneaster,
Juniper Juniper | (Cotoneaster prostrate various
(Juniperus | (Juniperus , low varieties) varieties),
sargentii), sargentii), varieties), Winter Creeper
Cotoneaster | Cotoneaster Winter (Euonymus
(Cotoneaster, | (Cotoneaster,| Creeper fortunei)
various various (Euonymus
varieties), varieties), fortunei)
Winter Winter
Creeper Creeper
(Euonymus | (Euonymus
fortunei) fortunei)

[Ord. 2763 § 1 (Exh. A § 14), 9-16-13; Ord. 2647, 6-5-06; Ord. 2513, 8-2-99.
Code 2001 § 151.581.]

Chapter 15.425 EXTERIOR LIGHTING

15.425.010

Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate the placement, orientation, distribution patterns, and
fixture types of on-site outdoor lighting. The intent of this section is to provide minimum
lighting standards that promote safety, utility, and security, prevent glare on public roadways,
and protect the privacy of residents. [Ord. 2537, 11-6-00. Code 2001 § 151.585.]

15.425.020

Applicability and exemptions.
A. Applicability. Outdoor lighting shall be required for safety and personal security in areas of
assembly, parking, and traverse, as part of multifamily residential, commercial, industrial,
public, recreational and institutional uses. The applicant for any Type I or Type I
development permit shall submit, as part of the site plan, evidence that the proposed outdoor
lighting plan will comply with this section. This information shall contain but not be limited to

the following:

Page 57 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

. The location, height, make, model, lamp type, wattage, and proposed cutoff angle of
each outdoor lighting fixture.

2. Additional information the director may determine is necessary, including but not
limited to illuminance level profiles, hours of business operation, and percentage of site
dedicated to parking and access.

3. If any portion of the site is used after dark for outdoor parking, assembly or traverse, an
illumination plan for these areas is required. The plan must address safety and personal
security.

B. Exemptions. The following uses shall be exempt from the provisions of this section:

1. Public street and airport lighting.

[---]

Finding: The Applicant has included a photometric plan for the proposed street lighting within
the planned unit development. Per NMC 15.425.020(B)(1), public street lighting is exempt from
the provisions of the Exterior Lighting standards. The application materials included elevations
and floorplans of proposed single-family dwellings which do not indicate final proposed exterior
lighting for each dwelling. Compliance with the exterior lighting standards can be determined at
the time of building permit review. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall
submit lighting plan information to verify compliance with the standards in NMC 15.425.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, the criteria will be met.
Chapter 15.430 UNDERGROUND UTILITY INSTALLATION

15.430.010 Underground utility installation.

A. All new utility lines, including but not limited to electric, communication, natural gas,
and cable television transmission lines, shall be placed underground. This does not
include surface-mounted transformers, connections boxes, meter cabinets, service
cabinets, temporary facilities during construction, and high-capacity electric lines
operating at 50,000 volts or above.

B. Existing utility lines shall be placed underground when they are relocated, or when an
addition or remodel requiring a Type 11 design review is proposed, or when a developed
area is annexed to the city.

C. The director may make exceptions to the requirement to underground utilities based on
one or more of the following criteria:
1. The cost of undergrounding is extraordinarily expensive.
2. There are physical factors that make undergrounding extraordinarily difficult.
3. Existing utility facilities in the area are overhead and are unlikely to be
changed.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate that there are overhead utility lines along the NE
Springbrook Road frontage. The application materials indicate that all new utilities will be

Page 58 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

underground. Undergrounding of existing overhead utilities along the frontage may be
required if operating at less than 50,000 volts or if any poles need to be relocated.

Any new service connection to the property is required to be undergrounded. See NMC
15.430.010 for additional requirements and exception provisions.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant is required to
underground all constructed public utilities along public street frontages (NE Springbrook Road
and newly constructed local streets within proposed development).

At the time of writing this staff report, no request has been received from the Applicant for an
exception to NMC 15.430(B)’s utility undergrounding requirement. The Applicant may submit a
request to the Community Development Director for an exception to the requirement to
underground utilities if one or more of the criteria listed in NMC 15.430(B) are applicable to the
subject property

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned conditions of approval are adhered to.
Chapter 15.440 OFF-STREET PARKING, BICYCLE PARKING, AND PRIVATE WALKWAYS

Article 1. Off-Street Parking Requirements

15.440.010  Required off-street parking.

A. Off-street parking shall be provided on the lot or development site for all R-1, C-1, M-1, M-
2 and M-3 zones. In all other zones, the required parking shall be on the lot or development
site or within 400 feet of the lot or development site which the parking is required to serve. All
required parking must be under the same ownership as the lot or development site served
except through special covenant agreements as approved by the city attorney, which bind the
parking to the lot or development site.

Finding: The proposed planned unit development includes 100 single-family dwellings and no
other uses are proposed. The application materials indicate that parking for each dwelling will be
provided on the same lot at the dwelling. The application materials included proposed plat maps
with yard setback requirements, but not the proposed location of buildings or parking areas.
Compliance with the off-street parking requirements can be determined at the time of building
permit review. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit updated site
plans including the location of required off-street parking and service drives.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

15.440.020  Parking area and service drive design.
A. All public or private parking areas, parking spaces, or garages shall be designed, laid out
and constructed in accordance with the minimum standards as set forth in NMC 15.440.070.

B. Groups of three or more parking spaces, except those in conjunction with a single-family
detached dwelling, duplex dwelling, triplex dwelling, quadplex dwelling, townhouse dwelling

Page 59 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

or cottage cluster project on a single lot, shall be served by a service drive so that no backward
movement or other maneuvering of a vehicle within a street, other than an alley, will be
required. Service drives shall be designed and constructed to facilitate the flow of traffic,
provide maximum safety in traffic access and egress and maximum safety of pedestrian and
vehicular traffic on the site, but in no case shall two-way and one-way service drives be less
than 20 feet and 12 feet, respectively. Service drives shall be improved in accordance with the
minimum standards as set forth in NMC 15.440.060.

C. Gates. A private drive or private street serving as primary access to more than one dwelling
unit shall not be gated to limit access, except as approved by variance.

[...]

Finding: The proposed planned unit development includes 100 single-family dwellings and no
other uses are proposed. The application materials indicate that parking for each dwelling will be
provided on the same lot at the dwelling. The application materials included proposed plat maps
with yard setback requirements and curb cut locations, but not the proposed location of buildings
or parking areas. Compliance with the standards for parking areas and service drive design can
be determined at the time of building permit review. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the
Applicant shall submit updated site plans including the location of required off-street parking
and service drives. No gates, private drive, or private streets are proposed with the planned unit
development.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

15.440.030  Parking spaces required.

Use Minimum Parking Spaces Required

Residential Types

Dwelling, single-family 2 for each dwelling unit on a single lot

Finding: The application materials indicate that two off-street parking spaces will be provided
on each single-family lot with car garages and driveways. The application materials included
proposed plat maps with yard setback requirements, but not the proposed location of buildings or
parking areas. Compliance with the off-street parking requirements can be determined at the time
of building permit review. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit
updated site plans including the location of required off-street parking and service drives.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, this criterion will be met.

15.440.060  Parking area and service drive improvements.
All public or private parking areas, outdoor vehicle sales areas, and service drives shall be
improved according to the following:

A. All parking areas and service drives shall have surfacing of asphaltic concrete or Portland
cement concrete or other hard surfacing such as brick or concrete pavers. Other durable and
dust-free surfacing materials may be approved by the director for infrequently used parking

Page 60 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

areas. All parking areas and service drives shall be graded so as not to drain stormwater over
the public sidewalk or onto any abutting public or private property.

B. All parking areas shall be designed not to encroach on public streets, alleys, and other
rights-of-way. Parking areas shall not be placed in the area between the curb and sidewalk or,
if there is no sidewalk, in the public right-of-way between the curb and the property line. The
director may issue a permit for exceptions for unusual circumstances where the design
maintains safety and aesthetics.

[...]

E. Any lights provided to illuminate any public or private parking area or vehicle sales area
shall be so arranged as to reflect the light away from any abutting or adjacent residential
district.

F. All service drives and parking spaces shall be substantially marked and comply with NMC
15.440.070.

G. Parking areas for residential uses shall not be located in a required front yard, except as
follows:

1. Single-family detached, duplex, triplex, quadplex, and townhouse dwellings: parking is
authorized in a front yard on a service drive which provides access to an improved parking
area outside the front yard.

Finding: The application materials indicate that the proposed parking areas and service drives
will be constructed to City standards, that parking areas do not encroach on public streets, and
that lighting will be designed to reduce spill and glare away from any proposed or existing
neighboring developments. The application materials included proposed plat maps with yard
setback requirements, but not the proposed location of buildings or parking areas. Compliance
with the design standards of parking area and service drive improvements can be determined at
the time of building permit review. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall
submit updated site plans including the location and design of required off-street parking.

Upon adherence to the aforementioned condition of approval, the criteria will be met.
[-..]

Article I11. Private Walkways

15.440.130  Where required.

Private walkways shall be constructed as part of any development requiring Type Il design
review, including mobile home parks. In addition, they may be required as part of conditional
use permits or planned unit developments. In the airport industrial (Al) district and residential
(AR) district, on-site walks are not required in aircraft operations areas, such as parking
aprons, taxiways, and runways. [Ord. 2647, 6-5-06; Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2513, 8-2-99.
Code 2001 § 151.620.2.]

Page 61 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

ing: The application materials indicate that walkways and sidewalks are being provided
within the proposed planned unit development. Because private walkways and sidewalks are
provided, this criterion is met.

15.440.140  Private walkway design.
A. All required private walkways shall meet the applicable building code and Americans with
Disabilities Act requirements.

B. Required private walkways shall be a minimum of four feet wide.
C. Required private walkways shall be constructed of portland cement concrete or brick.

D. Crosswalks crossing service drives shall, at a minimum, be painted on the asphalt or clearly
marked with contrasting paving materials or humps/raised crossings. If painted striping is
used, it should consist of thermoplastic striping or similar type of durable application.

E. At a minimum, required private walkways shall connect each main pedestrian building
entrance to each abutting public street and to each other.

F. The review body may require on-site walks to connect to development on adjoining sites.

G. The review body may modify these requirements where, in its opinion, the development
provides adequate on-site pedestrian circulation, or where lot dimensions, existing building
layout, or topography preclude compliance with these standards. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord.
2513, 8-2-99. Code 2001 § 151.620.3.]

Finding: The application materials indicate that proposed sidewalks will be five feet in width
and constructed of concrete, and that crosswalks will be provided and painted/striped.
Compliance with the applicable building code and Americans with Disabilities Act requirements
will be determined at the time of public improvement permit and building permit review.
Because the proposed planned unit development includes sidewalks and crosswalks meeting the
City’s design standards and compliance with other regulations will be determined at the permit
review stage, this criterion is met.

Chapter 15.505 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS STANDARDS

15.505.010 Purpose.

This chapter provides standards for public infrastructure and utilities installed with new
development, consistent with the policies of the City of Newberg comprehensive plan and
adopted city master plans. The standards are intended to minimize disturbance to natural
features, promote energy conservation and efficiency, minimize and maintain development
impacts on surrounding properties and neighborhoods, and ensure timely completion of
adequate public facilities to serve new development. [Ord. 2810 § 2 (Exhs. B, C), 12-19-16.]

15.505.020 Applicability.

The provision and utilization of public facilities and services within the City of Newberg shall
apply to all land developments in accordance with this chapter. No development shall be
approved unless the following improvements are provided for prior to occupancy or operation,
unless future provision is assured in accordance with NMC 15.505.030(E).

Page 62 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

1L improyements reviewed und is applicatiQn are jdentified in t MC 15.505 .
scctichs LAl WA s it R oGS A SHRTAAT AR BagAlgsagn and construction of all
Condmpionseanénds iwithirexisting and proposed rights-of-way and easements, all improvements to
h betmaintained by the city, and all improvements for which city approval is required shall
18331%113 y1 With the requirements of the most recently adopted Newberg public works design and

construction standards.

Finding: The submitted plans show:

e Street improvements along the existing NE Springbrook Road consistent with the
requirements of Major Collector street functional classification.

e New public streets consistent with the requirements of local-residential street functional
classification.

e Connection to the existing 12-inch water main on the west side of NE Springbrook Road
and construction of water distribution piping to each proposed dwelling.

e Connection to an existing 15-inch wastewater gravity main in NE Springbrook Road and
construction of wastewater collection piping to each proposed dwelling.

e Construction of stormwater conveyance piping and periodic storm drain inlets along the
constructed local-residential streets within the proposed development and along NE
Springbrook Road which direct collected stormwater to one of two stormwater basins,
referred to as “Pond A” and “Pond B” in the preliminary plans, which connect to existing
stormwater infrastructure in the area.

e Construction of two stormwater basins. One basin routes pretreated stormwater flow to a
drainage ditch and culvert beneath NE Springbrook Road near the intersection of
Benjamin Road. The other basin appears to route pretreated stormwater to the existing
12-inch stormwater main beneath NE Springbrook Drive near the southeastern property
boundary.

e All new utilities depicted on the plans are shown to be underground. The plans also
include street lighting improvements along NE Springbrook Road and construction of
street lighting along the newly constructed local-residential streets within the proposed
development.

Plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or for public
improvements as found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the
requirements of the current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

Proposed improvements should also be completed in tandem with the extension of public utility
lines to serve the new development. The Applicant is required to submit construction plans and
obtain a public improvement permit for required public improvements.

Plans will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards, including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards, as part of the permit plan review process.

Page 63 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

Additional findings and conditions of approval for these improvements are described under the
applicable Newberg Municipal Code sections below.

B. Street Improvements. All projects subject to a Type 111 design review, partition, or
subdivision approval must construct street improvements necessary to serve the development.

This pritgain YOI HOARRTR S SRR BIds S5 AP B IHE AtISESVements along the NE Springbrook
Road frontage. These public improvements are only shown for the western half of the existing
frontage. Particular improvements include increasing the travel area width to between 23 and
27.6-feet, a 0.5-foot curb and gutter, a 5.5-foot planter strip, a 5-foot-wide sidewalk with 1-foot
of separation between the sidewalk and the new right-of-way line, and a 10-foot PUE. These
improvements are generally consistent with the requirements of Major Collector street functional
classification.

According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which effectively
accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the property (ANX24-0001) and the stretch of frontage
along NE Springbrook Road:

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-way is adjacent to
the public road right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be
consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road
southwest of the site.

Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the proposed
project site requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both sides of NE
Springbrook Road. The Applicant will need to align the improvements with the existing
configuration of the NE Springbrook Road immediately south of the project boundary. Street
improvements shall include bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook
Road.

Submitted materials also include construction of local-residential classified streets within the
boundaries of the proposed development. These public improvements include a two-lane street
with on-street parking representing a 32-foot wide paved area, a 0.5-foot curb and gutter, a 5.5-
foot planter strip, a 5-foot wide sidewalk with 1-foot of separation between the sidewalk and the
new right-of-way line, and a 10-foot PUE. These improvements are consistent with the
requirements of local-residential street functional classification.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or as
found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the requirements of the
current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

Page 64 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

C. Water. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall be served by the
municipal water system as specified in Chapter 13.15 NMC.

Finding: Submitted materials agpear to show water service laterals and meters to serve each
This 1te nw1ll be %nef if th afo ent oned condition of aj ﬁ%)ro al is adhered to
1ng uni IS afso proposing to cons ruct a pump station to maintain necessary
water pressure in the proposed development. The pump station is proposed to be constructed
along NE Springbrook Road at the intersection to the access street to the proposed development.
The water main to serve the proposed development must connect to the existing 12-inch water

main on the west side of NE Springbrook Road.

Each lot and each dwelling under separate ownership must have separate private utility laterals to
a water meter at the right-of-way line prior to connecting to the public main or to a double water
service where allowed per the Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant is required to submit
construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit for proposed water services. These
plans are to be submitted with the application for a public improvement permit.

Plans will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards as part of the permit plan review process.

The closest existing fire hydrant and any new fire hydrants are to be shown on plans included
with Public Improvement permit submittals. Fire hydrant spacing is to be consistent with City of
Newberg Public Works Design and Construction standards and Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
(TVF&R) requirements.

his disional.iindings. and.conditians.afapproyd fors thise yater improvements are described under
the applicable Newberg Municipal Code sections below.

D. Wastewater. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall be served
by the municipal wastewater system as specified in Chapter 13.10 NMC.

Finding: Submitted materials appear to show wastewater service laterals to serve each dwelling
unit consistent with NMC 13.10.070(K) below. The wastewater main to serve the proposed
development must connect to the existing 15-inch wastewater gravity main beneath NE
Springbrook Road.

NMC 13.10.070 (K) - Independent Drainage Systems. Every dwelling and/or building
under separate ownership shall have an independent wastewater system connection with

Page 65 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

a public or private collection system. Additionally, each parcel shall be served by
individual laterals.

The Applicant prepared a wastewater downstream analysis provided with the submitted
materials. The downstream analysis evaluated whether the existing public wastewater collection
system has the necessary capacity to support the additional wastewater flows from the dwellings
constructed as part of the proposed development. The Applicant utilized a modified hydraulic
model from the City of Newberg Wastewater Master Plan prepared in March 2018 and amended
in 2021 using XPSTORM. The downstream analysis concluded that the additional loads
generated from the proposed development will have a negligible effect on the existing
downstream wastewater system.

Each lot and each dwelling under separate ownership must have separate private utility laterals to
a cleanout at the right-of-way line prior to connecting to the public main or to a double wye
service where allowed per the Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

The wastewater analysis of impacts to the wastewater system from the proposed development is
required to be submitted with permit applications.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant is required to submit
construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit for proposed wastewater services.
These plans are to be submitted with the application for a public improvement permit.

Plans will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards as part of the permit plan review process.

Additional findings and conditions of approval for these wastewater improvements are described

This GgRp A RS pICHiE ARSPBRIY MRS P CBUE S TSI W dtow.

E. Stormwater. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall manage
stormwater runoff as specified in Chapters 13.20 and 13.25 NMC.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate the installation of stormwater conveyance piping and
periodic storm drain inlets along the constructed local-residential streets within the proposed
development and along NE Springbrook Road. The stormwater piping routes flows to one of two
stormwater detention basins. The northern basin collects stormwater drainage from a portion of
the proposed development and appears to route pretreated stormwater flow to a drainage ditch
and culvert beneath NE Springbrook Road near the intersection of Benjamin Road. The southern
basin collects stormwater drainage from the NE Springbrook Road frontage and a portion of the
proposed development and appears to route pretreated stormwater to the existing 12-inch main
beneath NE Springbrook Drive near the southeastern property boundary.

Page 66 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

¢ Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development.
With Public Improvement Permit submittals the Applicant is required to submit plans that clearly
show public and private stormwater management and conveyance facilities for the proposed
project that are in accordance with Newberg Municipal Code sections 13.20 and 13.25.

The Applicant is required to submit construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit
for proposed public stormwater facilities. Final plans and stormwater report for the management
of stormwater which comply with the Newberg Public Works Design and Construction
Standards and with NMC Sections 13.20 and 13.25 shall be submitted with building and public
improvement permit applications.

Plans and stormwater report will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards, including
the Public Works Design and Construction Standards, as part of the permit plan review process.

Additional findings and conditions of approval for these stormwater improvements are described
under the applicable Newberg Municipal Code sections below.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of ap})roval is adhered to.

F. Utility Easements. Utility easements shall be provided as necessary and required by the
review body to provide needed facilities for present or future development of the area.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate a 10-foot wide PUE along public street frontages (NE
Springbrook Road and newly constructed local streets within proposed development) as is
required for land division projects such as subdivisions and partitions for future, franchise utility
installations, including potential future undergrounding of overhead utilities.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant is required to include a
10-foot wide PUE along public street frontages (NE Springbrook Road and newly constructed
local streets within proposed development).

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

G. City Approval of Public Improvements Required. No building permit may be issued until all
Findii'fquired public facility improvements are in place and approved by the director, or are
otfierwise bonded for in a manner approved by the review authority, in conformance with the
provisions of this code and the Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

This f@pdgq?@lﬂ@@l@t(@khgfoﬂp@)joﬂ@d@d]@# of approval is adhered to.

Any required public improvement permit(s) for this project must be submitted,
approved and issued prior to building permits being issued.

15.505.030 Street standards.

Page 67 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

urpose. The purpose of this section is to:

1. Provide for safe, efficient, and convenient multi-modal transportation within the City of
Newberg.

2. Provide adequate access to all proposed and anticipated developments in the City of
Newberg. For purposes of this section, “adequate access” means direct routes of travel
between destinations; such destinations may include residential neighborhoods, parks,
schools, shopping areas, and employment centers.

3. Provide adequate area in all public rights-of-way for sidewalks, wastewater and water
lines, stormwater facilities, natural gas lines, power lines, and other utilities commonly
and appropriately placed in such rights-of-way. For purposes of this section, “adequate
area” means space sufficient to provide all required public services to standards defined in
this code and in the Newberg public works design and construction standards.

B. Applicability. The provisions of this section apply to:

1. The creation, dedication, and/or construction of all public streets, bike facilities, or
pedestrian facilities in all subdivisions, partitions, or other developments in the City of
Newberg.

2. The extension or widening of existing public street rights-of-way, easements, or street
improvements including those which may be proposed by an individual or the city, or
which may be required by the city in association with other development approvals.

3. The construction or modification of any utilities, pedestrian facilities, or bike facilities
in public rights-of-way or easements.

4. The designation of planter strips. Street trees are required subject to Chapter 15.420
NMC.

5. Developments outside the city that tie into or take access from city streets.

C. Layout of Streets, Alleys, Bikeways, and Walkways. Streets, alleys, bikeways, and walkways
shall be laid out and constructed as shown in the Newberg transportation system plan. In
areas where the transportation system plan or future street plans do not show specific
transportation improvements, roads and streets shall be laid out so as to conform to previously
approved subdivisions, partitions, and other developments for adjoining properties, unless it is

Find QUi e public interest fo modify these patierns, Trapsppsgation improvements shall

are tRALLQE RO Saudardsvishintheewhsrg Municipal Code, the Newberg public works
design and construction standards, the Newberg transportation system plan, and other adopted

city plans.

The proposed layout of streets
is to conform with the requirements of the current NMC, City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards, and any other adopted City plans.

Page 68 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

The layout for major collector classified streets is included in 2016 TSP. Improvements for NE
Springbrook Road are generally consistent with the layout indicated in the 2016 TSP; however,
improvements should be made to both sides of NE Springbrook Road in accordance with
condition of approval 2.b for annexation of the subject property, ANX24-0001 approved with
Ordinance NO. 2024-2931.

According To %ﬁﬁr?fu‘?ifrebu leﬁgezlléégﬁheen?rléf réﬁceﬁ ' 2%2{%29% (%V %l)g?ﬁgfn‘glxelﬁrpad right-of-way is adjacent to

accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the pro A 4- ﬁ and th f stretck’ ot frontage i

along NE spriﬁéwwla@gdwad right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be
consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road

southwest of the site.

Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the proposed
project site requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both sides of NE
Springbrook Road. The Applicant will need to align the improvements with the existing
configuration of the NE Springbrook Road immediately south of the project boundary. Street
improvements shall include bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook
Road.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or as
found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the requirements of the

current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.
This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

D. Construction of New Streets. Where new streets are necessary to serve a new development,
subdivision, or partition, right-of-way dedication and full street improvements shall be
required. Three-quarter streets may be approved in lieu of full street improvements when the
city finds it to be practical to require the completion of the other one-quarter street
improvement when the adjoining property is developed; in such cases, three-quarter street
improvements may be allowed by the city only where all of the following criteria are met:

1, The land ””5{5% t{tﬁzs ?f@ggt%%t%tgﬁ-‘r) Si{ge new street is undﬁveloped and not part of the

Finding: Submitted maferials 1n ntial class streets within
the propos@f i Fo‘f;e ar ﬁl’ﬁl’f’-’st%et configuration. These public improvements include a two-

2. The adjoining land abutting the opposite side of the street is within the city limits and
the urban growth boundary.

Page 69 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

The proposed streets should conform
with the requirements of the current NMC and City of Newberg Public Works Design and
Construction Standards.

lane street with on-street parking representing a 32-foot wide paved area, a 0.5-foot curb and

gutter, a 5.5-foot planter strip, a 5-foot wide sidewalk with 1-foot of separation between the
sidewalk and the new right-of-way line, and a 10-foot PUE.

E. Improvements to Existing Streets.

This criterifn Al prajectshsubject togpartitionysubdpvisionadnedype 11 design review approval shall
dedicate right-of-way sufficient to improve the street to the width specified in subsection
(G) of this section.

2. All projects subject to partition, subdivision, or Type II design review approval must
construct a minimum of a three-quarter street improvement to all existing streets adjacent
to, within, or necessary to serve the development. The director may waive or modify this
requirement where the applicant demonstrates that the condition of existing streets to
serve the development meets city standards and is in satisfactory condition to handle the
projected traffic loads from the development. Where a development has frontage on both
sides of an existing street, full street improvements are required.

3. In lieu of the street improvement requirements outlined in NMC 15.505.040(B), the
review authority may elect to accept from the applicant monies to be placed in a fund
dedicated to the future reconstruction of the subject street(s). The amount of money
deposited with the city shall be 100 percent of the estimated cost of the required street
improvements (including any associated utility improvements), and 10 percent of the
estimated cost for inflation. Cost estimates used for this purpose shall be based on
preliminary design of the constructed street provided by the applicant’s engineer and shall
be approved by the director.

Finding: Submitted materials show proposed public improvements along the NE Springbrook
Road frontage. These public improvements are only shown for the western half of the existing
frontage. Particular improvements include increasing the travel area width to between 23 and
27.6-feet, a 0.5-foot curb and gutter, a 5.5-foot planter strip, a 5-foot-wide sidewalk with 1-foot
of separation between the sidewalk and the new right-of-way line, and a 10-foot PUE. These
improvements are generally consistent with the requirements of Major Collector street functional
classification.

According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which effectively
accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the property (ANX24-0001) and the stretch of frontage
along NE Springbrook Road:

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-way is adjacent to

the public road right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be

Page 70 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road
southwest of the site.

Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the proposed
project site requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both sides of NE
Springbrook Road. The Applicant will need to align the improvements with the existing
configuration of the NE Springbrook Road immediately south of the project boundary. Street
improvements shall include bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook
Road.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or as
found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the requirements of the
current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

This gritwnp P Btehis R IGHRG fo HHP AR Ihp oV eme s ¥edtiired as a condition of development
approval shall be roughly proportional to the impact of the development on public facilities
and services. The review body must make findings in the development approval that indicate
how the required improvements are roughly proportional to the impact. Development may not
occur until required transportation facilities are in place or guaranteed, in conformance with
the provisions of this code. If required transportation facilities cannot be put in place or be
guaranteed, then the review body shall deny the requested land use application.

Finding: The Applicant has provided a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) dated June 2024. The TIA
identified that the N Springbrook Road/E Mountainview Drive intersection is currently
functioning below the City’s level of service standard. The TIA also identified that future 2027
conditions, even in a no-build scenario, would result in continued degradation of the level of
service at the N Springbrook Road/E Mountainview Drive intersection and a level of service
below the City’s standards at N Springbrook Road/Haworth Avenue. Additional trips from the
proposed development would further degrade the level of service at both of these intersections.

The Applicant identified two improvement projects included in the City of Newberg’s 2016
Transportation Master Plan (TSP) related to these two intersections. Project 108 identified the
need for a traffic signal at the intersections of N Springbrook Road/E Mountainview Drive with
an estimate of $356,000 (December 2024 dollars'). Project 109 identified the need for a traffic
light and left turn lanes on Haworth Avenue, at the intersection of N Springbrook Road/Haworth
Avenue with an estimate of $528,000 (December 2024 dollars'). The TIA identified that trips
generated from the proposed development will contribute to the traffic through these two
intersections during AM and PM peak hour traffic.

! Project costs were presented in the City of Newberg’s 2016 Transportation Master Plan in 2016 dollars. These
costs were adjusted to December 2024 costs using the Engineering News-Record 20-cites construction cost index to
account for increases in construction costs since the original estimate was prepared.

Page 71 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

Because the Applicant’s development is adversely impacting the N Springbrook Road/E
Mountainview Drive and N Springbrook Road/Haworth Avenue intersections, the Applicant will
be required to pay a Traffic Impact Fee for the two intersections which is being assessed based
on the proportional impact of the development on public facilities and services. The following
formula was used to develop a Traffic Impact Fee to capture the proportional impact of the
development based on the most significant AM or PM proportional volume contribution at the
build out year of 2027.

Number of PM or AM trips proportional to development

- Project Cost
Number of PM or AM peak hour forecasted trips through interestion roject Los

= Traffic Impact Fee

The larger of the two percentages for AM or PM traffic were selected and it was found that the
developer proportionate share for Project 108 is 6.9% (93 PM trips directly proportional to the
development/1,341 PM peak hour total forecasted trips through the intersection) and Project 109
18 2.9% (31 AM trips directly proportional to the development/1,071 AM peak hour total
forecasted trips through the intersection).

For N Springbrook Road/E Mountainview Drive: (93 PM trips directly proportional to the
development)/(1,341 PM peak hour total forecasted trips through the intersection)*($356.000 for
the TSP cost of an intersection upgrade) = $24.689.04 Traffic Impact Fee.

For N Springbrook Road/Haworth Avenue: (31 AM trips directly proportional to the
development)/(1,071 AM peak hour total forecasted trips through the intersection)*($528,000 for
the TSP cost of an intersection upgrade) = $15.,282.91 Traffic Impact Fee.

The Traffic Impact Fees of $24.689.04 for Project 108 and $15.282.91 for Project 109 shall be
paid at the time of, or prior to, building permit issuance.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

G. Street Width and Design Standards.

1. Design Standards. All streets shall conform with the standards contained in Table
15.505.030(G). Where a range of values is listed, the director shall determine the width
based on a consideration of the total street section width needed, existing street widths,
and existing development patterns. Preference shall be given to the higher value. Where
values may be modified by the director, the overall width shall be determined using the
standards under subsections (G)(2) through (10) of this section.

Page 72 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

Table 15.505.030(G) Street Design Standards

Right-of-Way Curb-to-Curb | 0 o1 Vehicle . Striped Bike | (3 Gtrot
Type of Street Width Pavement Travel Lanes Median Type | Lane (Both Parkin
Width Sides) g
Arterial Streets
Expressway** oDoT oDoT oDoT oboT oDoT oDoT
Major arterial 95— 100 feet |74 feet 4 lanes TWLTL or Yes No*
median*
Minor arterial 69 — 80 feet |48 feet 2 lanes TWLTL or Yes No*
median*
Collectors
Major 57— 80 feet |36 feet 2 lanes None* Yes No*
Minor 61— 65 feet |40 feet 2 lanes None* Yes* Yes*
Local Streets
Local residential |54 — 60 feet |32 feet 2 lanes None No Yes
Limited 44— 50 feet |28 feet 2 lanes None No Yes
residential,
parking both
sides
Limited 40 — 46 feet |26 feet 2 lanes None No One side
residential,
parking one side
Local 55— 65 feet |34 feet 2 lanes None* No* Yes*
commercial/
industrial

*  May be modified with approval of the director. Modification will change overall curb-to-curb and right-of-
way width. Where a center turn lane is not required, a landscaped median shall be provided instead, with turning
pockets as necessary to preserve roadway functions.

**  All standards shall be per ODOT expressway standards.

Finding: Submitted materials show proposed public improvements along the NE Springbrook
Road frontage. These public improvements are only shown for the western half of the existing
frontage. Particular improvements include increasing the travel area width to between 23 and
27.6-feet, a 0.5-foot curb and gutter, a 5.5-foot planter strip, a 5-foot-wide sidewalk with 1-foot
of separation between the sidewalk and the new right-of-way line, and a 10-foot PUE. These
improvements are generally consistent with the requirements of Major Collector street functional
classification.

According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which effectively
accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the property (ANX24-0001) and the stretch of frontage
along NE Springbrook Road:

Page 73 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-way is adjacent to
the public road right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be
consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road
southwest of the site.

Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the proposed
project site requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both sides of NE
Springbrook Road. The Applicant will need to align the improvements with the existing
configuration of the NE Springbrook Road immediately south of the project boundary. Street
improvements shall include bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook
Road.

Submitted materials also include construction of local-residential classified streets within the
boundaries of the proposed development. These public improvements include a two-lane street
with on-street parking representing a 32-foot wide paved area, a 0.5-foot curb and gutter, a 5.5-
foot planter strip, a 5-foot wide sidewalk with 1-foot of separation between the sidewalk and the
new right-of-way line, and a 10-foot PUE. These improvements are consistent with the
requirements of local-residential street functional classification.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or as
found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the requirements of the
current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

2. Motor Vehicle Travel Lanes. Collector and arterial streets shall have a minimum width
of 12 feet.

a. Exception.

i. Minimum lane width of 11 feet along S River Street from E First Street to E
Fourteenth Street.

Finding: Submitted materials show proposed public improvements along the NE Springbrook
Road frontage. These public improvements are only shown for the western half of the existing
frontage. The improvements include increasing the travel area width to between 23 and 27.6-feet,
which includes a 6-foot bike lane. This is above the minimum travel lane size requirement.

According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which effectively
accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the property (ANX24-0001) and the stretch of frontage
along NE Springbrook Road:

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-way is adjacent to

the public road right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be

Page 74 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road
southwest of the site.

Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the proposed
project site requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both sides of NE
Springbrook Road. The Applicant will need to align the improvements with the existing
configuration of the NE Springbrook Road immediately south of the project boundary. Street
improvements shall include bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook
Road.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or as
found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the requirements of the
current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

This criteripn Bk bepah P SRR BIRS KERSSSHU BB G IWITENP of six feet wide. Bike lanes shall be

provided where shown in the Newberg transportation system plan.
a. Exception.

i. Minimum striped bike lane width of six feet with a one-foot wide buffer along S
River Street from E First Street to the bypass.

Finding: Submitted materials show proposed public improvements along the NE Springbrook
Road frontage. These public improvements are only shown for the western half of the existing
frontage. The improvements include increasing the travel area width to between 23 and 27.6-feet,
which includes a 6-foot bike lane. This is above the minimum bike lane size requirement.

According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which effectively
accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the property (ANX24-0001) and the stretch of frontage
along NE Springbrook Road:

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-way is adjacent to
the public road right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be
consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road
southwest of the site.

Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the proposed
project site requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both sides of NE
Springbrook Road. The Applicant will need to align the improvements with the existing
configuration of the NE Springbrook Road immediately south of the project boundary. Street
improvements shall include bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook
Road.

Page 75 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

¢ Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or as
found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the requirements of the
current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

4. Parking Lanes. Where on-street parking is allowed on collector and arterial streets, the
parking lane shall be a minimum of eight feet wide.
This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.
a. Exception.

i. Minimum parking lane width of seven feet along S River Street from the bypass
to E Fourteenth Street.

Finding: On-street parking is neither proposed nor required along NE Springbrook Road.
This criterion does not apply.

5. Center Turn Lanes. Where a center turn lane is provided, it shall be a minimum of 12
feet wide.

Finding: A center turn lane is not proposed or required.
This criterion does not apply.

6. Limited Residential Streets. Limited residential streets shall be allowed only at the
discretion of the review authority, and only in consideration of the following factors:

a. The requirements of the fire chief shall be followed.

b. The estimated traffic volume on the street is low, and in no case more than 600
average daily trips.

c. Use for through streets or looped streets is preferred over cul-de-sac streets.
d. Use for short blocks (under 400 feet) is preferred over longer blocks.

e. The total number of residences or other uses accessing the street in that block is
small, and in no case more than 30 residences.

[- On-street parking usage is limited, such as by providing ample off-street parking, or
by staggering driveways so there are few areas where parking is allowable on both
sides.

Finding: Limited residential streets are not proposed or required.

This criterion is not applicable.

Page 76 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

. Sidewalks. Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all public streets. Minimum
width is five feet.

a. Exception.

i. Twelve-foot-wide sidewalks, inclusive of the curb, with tree wells along S River
Street from the bypass to E Fourteenth Street.

ii. Twelve-foot-wide shared-use path and four-foot buffer, inclusive of the curb,
with tree wells along the east side of S River Street from the bypass to E Fourteenth
Street.

Finding: Submitted materials show proposed public improvements along the NE Springbrook
Road frontage. These public improvements are only shown for the western half of the existing
frontage. The improvements include constructing a 5-foot-wide sidewalk with 1-foot of
separation between the sidewalk and the new right-of-way line. This is above the minimum
sidewalk width requirement.

According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which effectively
accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the property (ANX24-0001) and the stretch of frontage
along NE Springbrook Road:

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-way is adjacent to
the public road right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be
consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road
southwest of the site.

Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the proposed
project site requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both sides of NE
Springbrook Road. The Applicant will need to align the improvements with the existing
configuration of the NE Springbrook Road immediately south of the project boundary. Street
improvements shall include bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook
Road.

Submitted materials also include construction of local-residential classified streets within the
boundaries of the proposed development. The improvements include a 5-foot wide sidewalk with
1-foot of separation between the sidewalk and the new right-of-way line. This is consistent with
the minimum sidewalk width requirement.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or as
found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the requirements of the
current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards. This includes a
sidewalk width of 5-feet with 1-foot of separation between the sidewalk and the new right-of-
way line for Type A sidewalks.

Page 77 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

8. Planter Strips. Except where infeasible, a planter strip shall be provided between the

sidewalk and the curb line, with a minimum width of five feet. This strip shall be

landscaped in accordance with the standards in NMC 15.420.020. Curb-side sidewalks
This crite ViR A6 o rited besideniiol ety Mdhsrg gurb-side sidewalks are allowed, the

following shall be provided:
a. Additional reinforcement is done to the sidewalk section at corners.
b. Sidewalk width is six feet.

Finding: Submitted materials show proposed public improvements along the NE Springbrook
Road frontage. These public improvements are only shown for the western half of the existing
frontage. The improvements include constructing a 5.5-foot planter strip. This is above the
minimum planter strip width requirement.

According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which effectively
accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the property (ANX24-0001) and the stretch of frontage
along NE Springbrook Road:

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-way is adjacent to
the public road right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be
consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road
southwest of the site.

Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the project site
requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both sides of NE Springbrook Road. The
Applicant will need to align the improvements with the existing configuration of the NE
Springbrook Road immediately south of the project boundary. Street improvements shall include
bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook Road.

Submitted materials also include construction of local-residential classified streets within the
boundaries of the proposed development. The improvements include constructing a 5.5-foot
planter strip. This is above the minimum planter strip width requirement.

The Applicant has not yet submltted formal constructlon plans for the proposed development,
This cr?&‘?éx?\rﬁn he e ¢l . public improvements, or as

found to be requlred durlng the Derm1t plan review process “are to meet the requirements of the

current City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards. This would include

planter strips of at least 5-feet in width along any constructed or improved public streets.

9. Slope Easements. Slope easements shall be provided adjacent to the street where
required to maintain the stability of the street.

Page 78 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

ing: Slope easements have not been identified as required along NE Springbrook Road or
the newly constructed local-residential streets within the proposed development.

This criterion is not applicable.

10. Intersections and Street Design. The street design standards in the Newberg public
works design and construction standards shall apply to all public streets, alleys, bike
facilities, and sidewalks in the city.

Finding: Submitted materials include local-residential streets to be constructed within the
proposed development boundaries. The plans appear to generally satisfy requirements for the
street design standards in the City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards;
however, the western termination of proposed Street A appears to be configured with a jog along
the development site boundary (annotated in Figure below). This jog may result in future
difficulties in expansion of Street A to the west for future development. Prior to the issuance of
public improvement permits, an updated site plan shall be submitted indicating that the layout of
lots in this area have been reworked to eliminate the presence of this jog and ensure a consistent
ROW length across the entire stretch of Street A to accommodate a future street extension, or an
agreement in a form acceptable to the City shall be submitted guaranteeing the dedication of the
required right-of-way and any required easements at the time of extension of Street “A” to serve
future development.

LOT 83 2
T7BR BF TITTS5F LOT A1 LOT &b
} 522 &F | IF

e ||| M= —
4 _;H{T}{Hnﬂn i = s
D S 557 7
> IR ir,
PAPd T Ay e
N s |" x fee

| LOT 85 J J
094 8F | spea sF

Page 79 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development.
The plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or as found to
be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the requirements of the current
City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval and so long as the
construction standard is adhered to.

11. The planning commission may approve modifications to street standards for the
purpose of ingress or egress to a minimum of three and a maximum of six lots through a
conditional use permit.

Finding: No modifications to street standards for the purpose of ingress or egress were requested
by the Applicant.

This criterion is not applicable.

H. Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width. The director, pursuant to the
Type II review procedures of Chapter 15.220 NMC, may allow modification to the public street
standards of subsection (G) of this section, when the criteria in both subsections (H)(1) and
(2) of this section are satisfied:

1. The modification is necessary to provide design flexibility in instances where:

a. Unusual topographic conditions require a reduced width or grade separation of
improved surfaces; or

b. Lot shape or configuration precludes accessing a proposed development with a
street which meets the full standards of this section; or

c. A modification is necessary to preserve trees or other natural features determined by
the city to be significant to the aesthetic character of the area; or

d. A planned unit development is proposed and the modification of street standards is
necessary to provide greater privacy or aesthetic quality to the development.

2. Modification of the standards of this section shall only be approved if the director finds
that the specific design proposed provides adequate vehicular access based on anticipated
traffic volumes.

Finding: Modifications to the street right-of-way and/or improvement widths have not been
requested and none are required.

This criterion is not applicable.
1. Temporary Turnarounds. Where a street will be extended as part of a future phase of a

development, or as part of development of an abutting property, the street may be terminated
with a temporary turnaround in lieu of a standard street connection or circular cul-de-sac

Page 80 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

. The director and fire chief shall approve the temporary turnaround. It shall have an all-
weather surface, and may include a hammerhead-type turnaround meeting fire apparatus
access road standards, a paved or graveled circular turnaround, or a paved or graveled
temporary access road. For streets extending less than 150 feet and/or with no significant
access, the director may approve the street without a temporary turnaround. Easements or
right-of-way may be required as necessary to preserve access to the turnaround.

Finding: The Applicant submitted approved Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue Permit #2024-0095
with the application materials. No future phases of development or development of the abutting
property is proposed as part of the proposed PUD. Because no temporary turnaround is required
by TVF&R, this criterion is not applicable.

J. Topography. The layout of streets shall give suitable recognition to surrounding
topographical conditions in accordance with the purpose of this code.

Finding: Submitted materials show new streets are lain out in a sensible manner in consideration
of surrounding topographic conditions.

This criterion is met.

K. Future Extension of Streets. All new streets required for a subdivision, partition, or a
project requiring site design review shall be constructed to be “to and through”: through the
development and to the edges of the project site to serve adjacent properties for future
development.

Finding: Submitted materials show new streets which terminate in a matter that allow for road
extension to accommodate future land development on the adjoining and vicinity properties west
of the proposed development. The proposed street layout does not plan for future extension of
streets to the north of the proposed development, as proposed Streets D and F do not terminate at
the north property boundary. The northern portion of the property is bounded by the existing
urban growth boundary. Future street extensions to the north of the development site are not
required because the area lies outside of all City planned rights-of-way and outside of the urban
growth boundary. No streets are required in a north-south orientation through the proposed lots
along the northern property line.

Because the proposed streets “A”, “B”, and “C” are proposed to be constructed to be “to and
through”, this criterion is met.

L. Cul-de-Sacs.

1. Cul-de-sacs shall only be permitted when one or more of the circumstances listed in this
section exist. When cul-de-sacs are justified, public walkway connections shall be provided
wherever practical to connect with another street, walkway, school, or similar destination.

a. Physical or topographic conditions make a street connection impracticable. These
conditions include but are not limited to controlled access streets, railroads, steep
slopes, wetlands, or water bodies where a connection could not be reasonably made.

Page 81 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

b. Buildings or other existing development on adjacent lands physically preclude a
connection now or in the future, considering the potential for redevelopment.

c. Where streets or accessways would violate provisions of leases, easements, or
similar restrictions.

d. Where the streets or accessways abut the urban growth boundary and rural
resource land in farm or forest use, except where the adjoining land is designated as
an urban reserve area.

2. Cul-de-sacs shall be no more than 400 feet long (measured from the centerline of the
intersection to the radius point of the bulb).

3. Cul-de-sacs shall not serve more than 18 single-family dwellings.

Each cul-de-sac shall have a circular end with a minimum diameter of 96 feet, curb-to-curb,
within a 109-foot minimum diameter right-of-way. For residential uses, a 35-foot radius may
be allowed if the street has no parking, a mountable curb, curbside sidewalks, and sprinkler
systems in every building along the street.

Finding: Submitted materials demonstrate that no cul-de-sacs are being proposed or required.

This criterion is not applicable.

M. Street Names and Street Signs. Streets that are in alignment with existing named streets
shall bear the names of such existing streets. Names for new streets not in alignment with
existing streets are subject to approval by the director and the fire chief and shall not
unnecessarily duplicate or resemble the name of any existing or platted street in the city. It
shall be the responsibility of the land divider to provide street signs.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate that new streets will be constructed within the proposed
development but do not include any proposed street names at this time. Prior to the issuance of a
public improvement permit, the Applicant shall propose street names for review which do not
unnecessarily duplicate or resemble any existing streets within the City with their formal
construction plan submission.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

N. Platting Standards for Alleys.

1. An alley may be required to be dedicated and constructed to provide adequate access for
a development, as deemed necessary by the director.

2. The right-of-way width and paving design for alleys shall be not less than 20 feet wide.
Slope easements shall be dedicated in accordance with specifications adopted by the city
council under NMC 15.505.010 et seq.

3. Where two alleys intersect, 10-foot corner cut-offs shall be provided.

Page 82 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

. Unless otherwise approved by the city engineer where topographical conditions will not
reasonably permit, grades shall not exceed 12 percent on alleys, and centerline radii on
curves shall be not less than 100 feet.

5. All provisions and requirements with respect to streets identified in this code shall apply
to alleys the same in all respects as if the word “street” or “streets” therein appeared as
the word “alley” or “alleys” respectively.

Finding: Submitted materials show that no alleys are proposed or required.

This criterion is not applicable.

O. Platting Standards for Blocks.

1. Purpose. Streets and walkways can provide convenient travel within a neighborhood
and can serve to connect people and land uses. Large, uninterrupted blocks can serve as a
barrier to travel, especially walking and biking. Large blocks also can divide rather than
unite neighborhoods. To promote connected neighborhoods and to shorten travel
distances, the following minimum standards for block lengths are established.

2. Maximum Block Length and Perimeter. The maximum length and perimeters of blocks
in the zones listed below shall be according to the following table. The review body for a
subdivision, partition, conditional use permit, or a Type Il design review may require
installation of streets or walkways as necessary to meet the standards below.

Zone(s) Maximum Block Maximum Block
Length Perimeter
R-1 800 feet 2,000 feet
R-2, R-3, RP, I 1,200 feet 3,000 feet

3. Exceptions.

a. If a public walkway is installed mid-block, the maximum block length and perimeter
may be increased by 25 percent.

b. Where a proposed street divides a block, one of the resulting blocks may exceed the
maximum block length and perimeter standards provided the average block length
and perimeter of the two resulting blocks do not exceed these standards.

¢. Blocks in excess of the above standards are allowed where access controlled streets,
street access spacing standards, railroads, steep slopes, wetlands, water bodies,
preexisting development, ownership patterns or similar circumstances restrict street
and walkway location and design. In these cases, block length and perimeter shall be
as small as practical. Where a street cannot be provided because of these
circumstances but a public walkway is still feasible, a public walkway shall be
provided.

Page 83 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

d. Institutional campuses located in an R-1 zone may apply the standards for the
institutional Zone.

e. Where a block is in more than one zone, the standards of the majority of land in the
proposed block shall apply.

f- Where a local street plan, concept master site development plan, or specific plan has
been approved for an area, the block standards shall follow those approved in the
plan. In approving such a plan, the review body shall follow the block standards listed
above to the extent appropriate for the plan area.

Finding: The block along the north and east development boundary exceeds these requirements;
however, because this block abuts the UGB it is permissible. The blocks shown on the submitted
materials are within permissible standards lengths.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, the plans submitted should include block configurations consistent with the
requirements of the Newberg Municipal Code and current City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

4. Public Pedestrian Walkways and Bicycle Access. The approval authority in approving a
land use application with conditions may require a developer to provide an access way
where the creation of a street consistent with street spacing standards is infeasible and the
creation of a cul-de-sac or dead-end street is unavoidable. A public walkway provides a
connection through a block that is longer than established standards or connects the end
of the street to another right-of-way or a public access easement. A public walkway shall
be contained within a public right-of-way or public access easement, as required by the
city. A public walkway shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide and shall provide a minimum
six-foot-wide paved surface or other all-weather surface approved by the city (see
subsection (S) of this section for public walkway standards).

Design features should be considered that allow access to emergency vehicles but that
restrict access to non-emergency motorized vehicles.

Finding: Submitted materials show that no new public pedestrian walkways are proposed or
required.

This criterion is not applicable.

P. Private Streets. New private streets, as defined in NMC 15.05.030, shall not be created,
except as allowed by NMC 15.240.020(L)(2).

Finding: Submitted materials show that no new private streets are proposed or required.

This criterion is not applicable.

Page 84 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

raffic Calming.

1. The following roadway design features may be required in new street construction
where traffic calming needs are anticipated:

a. Serpentine alignment.

b. Curb extensions.

c. Traffic diverters/circles.

d. Raised medians and landscaping.

e. Other methods shown effective through engineering studies.

2. Traffic-calming measures such as speed humps should be applied to mitigate traffic
operations and/or safety problems on existing streets. They should not be applied with new
Street constructions.

Finding: The provided TIA did not recommend any traffic calming measures as analysis found
the proposed layout is adequately safe.

This criterion is met.

R. Vehicular Access Standards.

1. Purpose. The purpose of these standards is to manage vehicle access to maintain traffic
[flow, safety, roadway capacity, and efficiency. They help to maintain an adequate level of
service consistent with the functional classification of the street. Major roadways,
including arterials and collectors, serve as the primary system for moving people and
goods within and through the city. Access is limited and managed on these roads to
promote efficient through movement. Local streets and alleys provide access to individual
properties. Access is managed on these roads to maintain safe maneuvering of vehicles in
and out of properties and to allow safe through movements. If vehicular access and
circulation are not properly designed, these roadways will be unable to accommodate the
needs of development and serve their transportation function.

2. Access Spacing Standards. Public street intersection and driveway spacing shall follow
the standards in Table 15.505.R below. The Oregon Department of Transportation
(ODOT) has jurisdiction of some roadways within the Newberg city limits, and ODOT
access standards will apply on those roadways.

Table 15.505.R. Access Spacing Standards

Roadway Functional 7 Minimum .Publzc Sfreet Driveway Setback from
. . Area Intersection Spacing .
Classification P Intersecting Street
(Feet)
Expressway All Refer to ODOT Access NA
Spacing Standards

Page 85 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

Roadway Functional 1 Minimum P ublic Sfreet Driveway Setback from
Classification Area Intersection Spacing Intersecting Streef
(Feet)’
Major arterial Urban Refer to ODOT Access
CBD Spacing Standards
Minor arterial Urban 500 150
CBD 200 100
Major collector All 400 150
Minor collector All 300 100

1 “Urban” refers to intersections inside the city urban growth boundary outside the central business district
(C-3 zone).

“CBD?”’ refers to intersections within the central business district (C-3 zone).

“All” refers to all intersections within the Newberg urban growth boundary.

2 Measured centerline to centerline.

3 The setback is based on the higher classification of the intersecting streets. Measured from the curb of the
intersecting street to the beginning of the driveway, excluding flares. If the driveway setback listed above would
preclude a lot from having at least one driveway, including shared driveways or driveways on adjoining streets,
one driveway is allowed as far from the intersection as possible.

Finding: Submitted materials propose a local-residential street intersection with NE Springbrook
Road that intersects approximately 260-feet from the centerline of Benjamin Road, the nearest
street intersection along NE Springbrook Road. This distance is not consistent with the access
spacing standards Table 15.505.R. which requires minimum public street intersection spacing of
400 feet along a major collector classified road. The Applicant will either need to reconfigure the
intersection to exceed the 400-feet spacing requirement or apply for an exception to access
spacing standards for a reduced spacing that is contingent on director approval in accordance
with 15.505.030(R)(10) and 15.505.030(R)(11).

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

3. Properties with Multiple Frontages. Where a property has frontage on more than one
street, access shall be limited to the street with the lesser classification.

a. For a duplex, triplex or quadplex dwelling or a cottage cluster project with frontage
on two local streets, access may be permitted on both streets.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate that there are several lots situated at intersections within
the proposed development and would be considered as having multiple frontages. Lots with
multiple frontages would be accessed via streets with identical local-residential function
classifications (proposed Streets A, B, or C); therefore, this criterion is not applicable.

4. Driveways. More than one driveway is permitted on a lot accessed from either a minor

collector or local street as long as there is at least 40 feet of lot frontage separating each
driveway approach. More than one driveway is permitted on a lot accessed from a major

Page 86 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

collector as long as there is at least 100 feet of lot frontage separating each driveway
approach.

a. For a duplex, triplex or quadplex dwelling or a cottage cluster project, more than
one driveway is permitted on a lot accessed from either a minor collector or local
street as long as there is at least 22 feet of lot frontage separating each driveway
approach.

Finding: Submitted materials do not include any lots with multiple driveways.
This criterion is not applicable.

5. Alley Access. Where a property has frontage on an alley and the only other frontages
are on collector or arterial streets, access shall be taken from the alley only. The review
body may allow creation of an alley for access to lots that do not otherwise have frontage
on a public street provided all of the following are met:

a. The review body finds that creating a public street frontage is not feasible.
b. The alley access is for no more than six dwellings and no more than six lots.
¢. The alley has through access to streets on both ends.

d. One additional parking space over those otherwise required is provided for each
dwelling. Where feasible, this shall be provided as a public use parking space adjacent
to the alley.

Finding: Submitted materials do not include any lots with alleys or alley access.
This criterion is not applicable.

6. Closure of Existing Accesses. Existing accesses that are not used as part of development
or redevelopment of a property shall be closed and replaced with curbing, sidewalks, and
landscaping, as appropriate.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate that the existing gravel access road intersecting with NE
Springbrook Road will be demolished as part of the proposed development. Since the proposed
development includes proposed streets roughly overlain the existing access road, no additional
improvements will be required under this section.

This criterion is met.

7. Shared Driveways.

a. The number of driveways onto arterial streets shall be minimized by the use of
shared driveways with adjoining lots where feasible. The city shall require shared
driveways as a condition of land division or site design review, as applicable, for
traffic safety and access management purposes. Where there is an abutting
developable property, a shared driveway shall be provided as appropriate. When

Page 87 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

shared driveways are required, they shall be stubbed to adjacent developable parcels to
indicate future extension. “Stub” means that a driveway temporarily ends at the
property line, but may be accessed or extended in the future as the adjacent parcel
develops. “Developable” means that a parcel is either vacant or it is likely to receive
additional development (i.e., due to infill or redevelopment potential).

b. Access easements (i.e., for the benefit of affected properties) and maintenance
agreements shall be recorded for all shared driveways, including pathways, at the time
of final plat approval or as a condition of site development approval.

¢. No more than four lots may access one shared driveway, with the exception of
cottage dwellings on individual lots that are part of a cottage cluster.

d. Shared driveways shall be posted as no parking fire lanes where required by the fire
marshal.

e. Where three or more lots share one driveway, one additional parking space over
those otherwise required shall be provided for each dwelling. Where feasible, this
shall be provided as a common use parking space adjacent to the driveway. However,
duplex, triplex, quadplex, townhouse and cottage dwellings with shared driveways
shall be exempt from this standard.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate that the majority of lots will have a private driveway with
access onto the local-residential streets. The exception is proposed Lots 82 and 83 which appear
to have a shared driveway. Prior to Step 2 of the PUD process, an access easement will need to
be prepared for the shared driveway serving Lots 82 and 83, and any additional shared driveways
that may be added as development design continues or changes.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

8. Frontage Streets and Alleys. The review body for a partition, subdivision, or design
review may require construction of a frontage street to provide access to properties
fronting an arterial or collector street.

Finding: A new frontage street has not been proposed nor is required.
This criterion is not applicable.

9. ODOT or Yamhill County Right-of-Way. Where a property abuts an ODOT or Yamhill
County right-of-way, the applicant for any development project shall obtain an access
permit from ODOT or Yamhill County.

Finding: NE Springbrook Road along the project site frontage is designated as Yamhill County
jurisdiction.

Permit approval from Yambhill County is required for the proposed public improvements in NE
Springbrook Road and will be required prior to issuance of a City of Newberg Public
Improvement Permit.

Page 88 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

10. Exceptions. The director may allow exceptions to the access standards above in any of
the following circumstances:

This eriterion wi B2 6EE gXisting andplanned future develgpment patterns or physical constraints,
such as topography, parcel configuration, and similar conditions, prevent access in
accordance with the above standards.

b. Where the proposal is to relocate an existing access for existing development, where
the relocated access is closer to conformance with the standards above and does not
increase the type or volume of access.

c. Where the proposed access results in safer access, less congestion, a better level of
service, and more functional circulation, both on street and on site, than access
otherwise allowed under these standards.

Finding: No exceptions to access standards have been requested and none are required.
This criterion is not applicable.

11. Where an exception is approved, the access shall be as safe and functional as practical
in the particular circumstance. The director may require that the Applicant submit a
traffic study by a registered engineer to show the proposed access meets these criteria.

Finding: No exceptions to access standards have been requested and none are required.
This criterion is not applicable.

S. Public Walkways.

1. Projects subject to Type Il design review, partition, or subdivision approval may be
required to provide public walkways where necessary for public safety and convenience, or
where necessary to meet the standards of this code. Public walkways are meant to connect
cul-de-sacs to adjacent areas, to pass through oddly shaped or unusually long blocks, to
provide for networks of public paths according to adopted plans, or to provide access to
schools, parks or other community destinations or public areas. Where practical, public
walkway easements and locations may also be used to accommodate public utilities.

2. Public walkways shall be located within a public access easement that is a minimum of
15 feet in width.

3. A walk strip, not less than 10 feet in width, shall be paved in the center of all public
walkway easements. Such paving shall conform to specifications in the Newberg public
works design and construction standards.

4. Public walkways shall be designed to meet the Americans with Disabilities Act
requirements.

Page 89 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

. Public walkways connecting one right-of-way to another shall be designed to provide as
short and straight of a route as practical.

6. The developer of the public walkway may be required to provide a homeowners’
association or similar entity to maintain the public walkway and associated improvements.

7. Lighting may be required for public walkways in excess of 250 feet in length.

8. The review body may modify these requirements where it finds that topographic,
preexisting development, or similar constraints exist.

Finding: Public walkways are not proposed and none are required.
This criterion is not applicable.

T. Street Trees. Street trees shall be provided for all projects subject to Type 11 design review,
partition, or subdivision. Street trees shall be installed in accordance with the provisions of
NMC 15.420.010(B)(4).

Finding: Per NMC 15.420.010(B), landscaping standards are required for all developments
except single-family detached dwellings, duplex dwellings, triplex dwellings, quadplex
dwellings, townhouse dwellings, and cottage cluster projects. Because the proposed development
is a Planned Unit Development, street trees are required. The streets within the PUD are
proposed to be classified as local residential streets and N Springbrook Road to the southwest of
the PUD is classified as a Major Collector. According To Exhibit "A-3" bullet 2.b of the
Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 which effectively accepts the Applicant’s request to annex the
property (ANX24-0001) and the stretch of frontage along NE Springbrook Road:

With future development of the site, since the existing railroad right-of-way is adjacent to
the public road right-of-way, the developer will be required to build full street
improvements for NE Springbrook Road. This would include street lighting and is to be
consistent with existing street improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road
southwest of the site.

Although the portion of NE Springbrook Road along the subject property was not annexed in
ANX24-0001, because the condition to provide improvements consistent with existing street
improvements on both sides of NE Springbrook Road southwest of the site, street tree
requirements for NE Springbrook Road in unincorporated Yambhill County adjacent to the site
will be evaluated as a Major Collector.

NMC 15.420.010(B)(4)(b) requires that street trees along collector and local streets shall have
spacing of approximately 35 to 40 feet on center. The PUD has approximately 7,346 feet of
street frontage, requiring approximately 197 street trees at a spacing of 35 feet on center. The
landscaping plans included in the application materials indicate 123 street trees are provided
throughout the PUD. Prior to Step Two PUD approval, the Applicant shall provide updated
landscape plans meeting the street tree spacing requirements of NMC 15.420.010(B)(4) or
discussing conflicts prohibiting street tree installation (i.e. utilities).

Page 90 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

¢ installation of street trees located on individual lots intended for residential use shall be
verified at the time of final planning inspection prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy.
Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit revised site plans indicating
street trees located on lots intended for residential use. The installation of street trees located on
tracts not intended for residential use will be verified at the time of the final planning inspection
prior to issuance of the certificate of occupancy of the first single-family dwelling.

U. Street Lights. All developments shall include underground electric service, light standards,
wiring and lamps for street lights according to the specifications and standards of the
Newberg public works design and construction standards. The developer shall install all such
facilities and make the necessary arrangements with the serving electric utility as approved by
the city. Upon the city’s acceptance of the public improvements associated with the
development, the street lighting system, exclusive of utility-owned service lines, shall be and
become property of the city unless otherwise designated by the city through agreement with a
private utility.

Finding: The submitted materials include a Photometrics Plan that includes a plan to install
street-lights and power lines as part of the proposed development and NE Springbrook Road
frontage improvements.

The necessary public improvement permit will require the Applicant to provide a street lighting
analysis along NE Springbrook Road and newly constructed streets for additional PGE Option A
street lights meeting city standards. Plans submitted with the public improvement permit
application are to include PGE Option A street lights necessary to meet City standards.

Plans will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards as part of the permit plan review process.

Because the submitted materials do not address the need for possible permits from Yamhill
County for installation of streetlights along the NE Springbrook Road frontages, the Applicant
will be required to obtain any necessary Yamhill County permits to perform work within
Yamhill County right-of-way. Any necessary Yamhill County permits are to be obtained and

This crt erlon[ w1(111 bemet1 tﬁf 1g'lltloremegrlloned conditions of %p roval are adhered to.
submitted as part o € public 1mprovement permit process.

V. Transit Improvements. Development proposals for sites that include or are adjacent to
existing or planned transit facilities, as shown in the Newberg transportation system plan or
adopted local or regional transit plan, shall be required to provide any of the following, as
applicable and required by the review authority:

1. Reasonably direct pedestrian connections between the transit facility and building
entrances of the site. For the purpose of this section, “reasonably direct” means a route
that does not deviate unnecessarily from a straight line or a route that does not involve a
significant amount of out-of-direction travel for users.

2. A transit passenger landing pad accessible to disabled persons.

Page 91 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

. An easement of dedication for a passenger shelter or bench if such facility is in an
adopted plan.

4. Lighting at the transit facility. [Ord. 2889 § 2 (Exh. B §§ 43 — 45), 12-6-21; Ord. 2880 §
2 (Exh. B §§ 51, 52), 6-7-21; Ord. 2871 § 3 (Exh. D), 3-1-21; Ord. 2862 § 1 (Exh. A § 1),
6-15-20; Ord. 2822 § 1 (Exh. A), 2-5-18; Ord. 2810 § 2 (Exhs. B, C), 12-19-16; Ord. 2763
§1(Exh.A§19),9-16-13; Ord. 2736 § 1 (Exh. A §§ 1, 3, 4), 3-21-11; Ord. 2619, 5-16-05;
Ord. 2513, 8-2-99; Ord. 2507, 3-1-99; Ord. 2494, 4-6-98; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001
§§151.681, 151.683, 151.684 — 151.686, 151.689 — 151.692, 151.694, 151.695, 151.701 —
151.703, 151.705.]

Finding: The project site is not adjacent to existing or planned transit facilities.
This criterion is not applicable.

15.505.040 Public utility standards.
A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide adequate services and facilities
appropriate to the scale and type of development.

B. Applicability. This section applies to all development where installation, extension or
improvement of water, wastewater, or private utilities is required to serve the development or
use of the subject property.

C. General Standards.

1. The design and construction of all improvements within existing and proposed rights-
of-way and easements, all improvements to be maintained by the city, and all
improvements for which city approval is required shall conform to the Newberg public
works design and construction standards and require a public improvements permit.

2. The location, design, installation and maintenance of all utility lines and facilities shall
be carried out with minimum feasible disturbances of soil and site. Installation of all
proposed public and private utilities shall be coordinated by the developer and be approved
by the city to ensure the orderly extension of such utilities within public right-of-way and
easements.

D. Standards for Water Improvements. All development that has a need for water service shall
install the facilities pursuant to the requirements of the city and all of the following standards.
Installation of such facilities shall be coordinated with the extension or improvement of
necessary wastewater and stormwater facilities, as applicable.

1. All developments shall be required to be linked to existing water facilities adequately
sized to serve their intended area by the construction of water distribution lines, reservoirs
and pumping stations which connect to such water service facilities. All necessary
easements required for the construction of these facilities shall be obtained by the
developer and granted to the city pursuant to the requirements of the city.

2. Specific location, size and capacity of such facilities will be subject to the approval of
the director with reference to the applicable water master plan. All water facilities shall

Page 92 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

conform with city pressure zones and shall be looped where necessary to provide adequate
pressure and fire flows during peak demand at every point within the system in the
development to which the water facilities will be connected. Installation costs shall remain
entirely the developer’s responsibility.

3. The design of the water facilities shall take into account provisions for the future
extension beyond the development to serve adjacent properties, which, in the judgment of
the city, cannot be feasibly served otherwise.

4. Design, construction and material standards shall be as specified by the director for the
construction of such public water facilities in the city.

The water main to serve the proposed development must connect to the existing

. ]12-inch water main on the west side of NE Springbrook Road.
Findt < dubmitied materials appear to Snow walter Service laterals al meters 1o Serve each

dwelling unit.

The Applicant is also proposing to construct a water distribution pump station to provide and
maintain necessary water pressure in the proposed development. The pump station is proposed to
be constructed along NE Springbrook Road at the intersection to the access street to the proposed
development. A draft Basis of Design technical memo was provided with the submitted materials
which details the preliminary engineering analysis completed so far for the new pump station.
Water distribution pump stations are listed in section 1.11.3 of the City of Newberg Public
Works Design and Construction Standards as a special design facility not addressed in these
standards. For these types of facilities appropriate design, operating and maintenance criteria for
the specific project are determined through coordination between the design engineer and the
City’s Public Works Department.

The Applicant is required to submit the water distribution pump station Basis of Design technical
memo with the public improvement permit application. To determine the appropriate design,
operating and maintenance criteria, the Basis of Design technical memo for the proposed water
booster pump station will be fully reviewed as part of the public improvement permit approval
process. This review is to occur in accordance with section 1.11.3 of the City of Newberg Public
Works Design and Construction Standards for special facility designs. The Basis of Design
technical memo will need to be updated with input provided by City’s Public Works Department
during the public improvement permit approval process.

The Applicant is required to incorporate City feedback concerning the Basis of Design technical
memo into a final Basis of Design and into final plans for the project.

The developer may be required to cover the expense of a consultant with specialty engineering
experience selected by the city for a technical review of the Basis of Design and plans for the
water booster pump station. The consultant selected by the city for a technical review is to act as
an extension of city staff for this unique addition to the public water system.

Page 93 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

ot and each dwelling under separate ownership must have separate private utility laterals to
a water meter at the right-of-way line prior to connecting to the public main or to a double water
service where allowed per the Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant is required to submit
construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit for proposed water services. These
plans are to be submitted with the application for a public improvement permit.

Plans will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards as part of the permit plan review process.

The closest existing fire hydrant and any new fire hydrants are to be shown on plans included
with permit submittals. Fire hydrant spacing is to be consistent with City of Newberg Public
Works Design and Construction standards and TVF&R requirements.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned conditions of approval are adhered to.
E. Standards for Wastewater Improvements. All development that has a need for wastewater
services shall install the facilities pursuant to the requirements of the city and all of the
following standards. Installation of such facilities shall be coordinated with the extension or
improvement of necessary water services and stormwater facilities, as applicable.

1. All septic tank systems and on-site sewage systems are prohibited. Existing septic
systems must be abandoned or removed in accordance with Yamhill County standards.

2. All properties shall be provided with gravity service to the city wastewater system, except
for lots that have unique topographic or other natural features that make gravity
wastewater extension impractical as determined by the director. Where gravity service is
impractical, the developer shall provide all necessary pumps/lift stations and other
improvements, as determined by the director.

3. All developments shall be required to be linked to existing wastewater collection
facilities adequately sized to serve their intended area by the construction of wastewater
lines which connect to existing adequately sized wastewater facilities. All necessary
easements required for the construction of these facilities shall be obtained by the
developer and granted to the city pursuant to the requirements of the city.

4. Specific location, size and capacity of wastewater facilities will be subject to the
approval of the director with reference to the applicable wastewater master plan. All
wastewater facilities shall be sized to provide adequate capacity during peak flows from
the entire area potentially served by such facilities. Installation costs shall remain entirely
the developer’s responsibility.

Page 94 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

. Temporary wastewater service facilities, including pumping stations, will be permitted
only if the director approves the temporary facilities, and the developer provides for all
facilities that are necessary for transition to permanent facilities.

6. The design of the wastewater facilities shall take into account provisions for the future
extension beyond the development to serve upstream properties, which, in the judgment of
the city, cannot be feasibly served otherwise.

7. Design, construction and material standards shall be as specified by the director for the
construction of such wastewater facilities in the city.

Finding: Submitted materials appear to show wastewater service laterals to serve each dwelling
unit consistent with NMC 13.10.070(K) below. The wastewater main to serve the proposed
development must connect to the existing 15-inch wastewater gravity main beneath NE
Springbrook Road.

NMC 13.10.070 (K) - Independent Drainage Systems. Every dwelling and/or building
under separate ownership shall have an independent wastewater system connection with
a public or private collection system. Additionally, each parcel shall be served by
individual laterals.

The Applicant prepared a wastewater downstream analysis provided with the submitted
materials. The downstream analysis evaluated whether the existing public wastewater collection
system has the necessary capacity to support the additional wastewater flows from the dwellings
constructed as part of the proposed development. The Applicant utilized a modified hydraulic
model from the City of Newberg Wastewater Master Plan prepared in March 2018 and amended
in 2021 using XPSTORM. The downstream analysis concluded that the additional loads
generated from the proposed development will have a negligible effect on the existing
downstream wastewater system.

The wastewater analysis of impacts to the wastewater system from the proposed development is
required to be submitted with permit applications.

Each lot and each dwelling under separate ownership must have separate private utility laterals to
a cleanout at the right-of-way line prior to connecting to the public main or to a double wye
service where allowed per the Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant is required to submit

This gisEautids BraHsP GBEMIPEDLHE I prerPenicrehaise ®or proposed wastewater services.

These plans are to be submitted with the application for a public improvement permit.

Plans will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards as part of the permit plan review process.

Page 95 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

. Easements. Easements for public and private utilities shall be provided as deemed
necessary by the city, special districts, and utility companies. Easements for special purpose
uses shall be of a width deemed appropriate by the responsible agency. Such easements shall
be recorded on easement forms approved by the city and designated on the final plat of all
subdivisions and partitions. Minimum required easement width and locations are as provided
in the Newberg public works design and construction standards. [Ord. 2810 § 2 (Exhs. B, C),
12-19-16.]

Finding: Submitted materials indicate a 10-foot wide PUE along public street frontages (NE
Springbrook Road and newly constructed local streets within the proposed development) as is
required for land division projects such as subdivisions and partitions for future, franchise utility
installations, including potential future undergrounding of overhead utilities.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development;
therefore, final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works Design
and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant is required to include a
10-foot wide PUE along public street frontages (NE Springbrook Road and newly constructed
local streets within proposed development).

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

15.505.050 Stormwater system standards.

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide for the drainage of surface water from all
development; to minimize erosion; and to reduce degradation of water quality due to
sediments and pollutants in stormwater runoff.

B. Applicability. The provisions of this section apply to all developments subject to site
development review or land division review and to the reconstruction or expansion of such
developments that increases the flow or changes the point of discharge to the city stormwater
system. Additionally, the provisions of this section shall apply to all drainage facilities that
impact any public storm drain system, public right-of-way or public easement, including but
not limited to off-street parking and loading areas.

C. General Requirement. All stormwater runoff shall be conveyed to a public storm
wastewater or natural drainage channel having adequate capacity to carry the flow without
overflowing or otherwise causing damage to public and/or private property. The developer
shall pay all costs associated with designing and constructing the facilities necessary to meet
this requirement.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate the installation of stormwater conveyance piping and
periodic storm drain inlets along the constructed local-residential streets within the proposed
development and along NE Springbrook Road. The stormwater piping routes flows to one of two
stormwater detention basins. The northern basin collects stormwater drainage from a portion of
the proposed development and appears to route pretreated stormwater flow to a drainage ditch
and culvert beneath NE Springbrook Road near the intersection of Benjamin Road. The southern
basin collects stormwater drainage from the NE Springbrook Road frontage and a portion of the
proposed development and appears to route pretreated stormwater to the existing 12-inch main
beneath NE Springbrook Drive near the southeastern property boundary.

Page 96 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

€ stormwater management plan is to be prepared in accordance with the Public Works Design
and Construction Standards. This includes demonstrating compliance with the stormwater
facility selection hierarchy described in Section 4.6.8 of the Public Works Design and
Construction Standards.

The provided preliminary stormwater management plan lacks figures of the upstream and
downstream basin (per requirements outlined in the Public Works Design and Construction
Standards Section II, a and b), lacks a stamped certificate of investigation for downstream
analysis, and operation and maintenance plan for proposed stormwater management facilities for
the proposed development. The Applicant is required to amend this stormwater management
plan to include required components identified in the Public Works Design and Construction
Standards concerning the preparation of a stormwater management plan.

The Applicant has not yet submitted formal construction plans for the proposed development.
With Public Improvement Permit submittals the Applicant is required to submit plans that clearly
show public and private stormwater management and conveyance facilities for the proposed
project that are in accordance with Newberg Municipal Code sections 13.20 and 13.25.

The Applicant is required to submit construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit
for proposed public stormwater facilities. Final plans and stormwater report for the management
of stormwater which comply with the Newberg Public Works Design and Construction
Standards and with NMC Sections 13.20 and 13.25 shall be submitted with building and public
improvement permit applications.

Plans will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards, including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards, as part of the permit plan review process.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

D. Plan for Stormwater and Erosion Control. No construction of any facilities in a
development included in subsection (B) of this section shall be permitted until an engineer
registered in the State of Oregon prepares a stormwater report and erosion control plan for the
project. This plan shall contain at a minimum:

1. The methods to be used to minimize the amount of runoff, sedimentation, and pollution
created from the development both during and after construction.

2. Plans for the construction of stormwater facilities and any other facilities that depict
line sizes, profiles, construction specifications, and other such information as is necessary
for the city to review the adequacy of the stormwater plans.

3. Design calculations shall be submitted for all drainage facilities. These drainage
calculations shall be included in the stormwater report and shall be stamped by a licensed
professional engineer in the State of Oregon. Peak design discharges shall be computed
based upon the design criteria outlined in the public works design and construction
standards for the city.

Finding: Submitted materials indicate the installation of stormwater conveyance piping and
periodic storm drain inlets along the constructed local-residential streets within the proposed
development and along NE Springbrook Road. The stormwater piping routes flows to one of two

Page 97 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

ormwater detention basins. The northern basin collects stormwater drainage from a portion of
the proposed development and appears to route pretreated stormwater flow to a drainage ditch
and culvert beneath NE Springbrook Road near the intersection of Benjamin Road. The southern
basin collects stormwater drainage from the NE Springbrook Road frontage and a portion of the
proposed development and appears to route pretreated stormwater to the existing 12-inch main
beneath NE Springbrook Drive near the southeastern property boundary.

The Applicant is required to submit plans clearly showing the area of disturbance and to obtain a
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality 1200-C Erosion Control Permit prior to any
ground disturbing activity if 1 acre or more will be disturbed.

With Public Improvement Permit submittals the Applicant is required to submit plans that clearly
show public and private stormwater management and conveyance facilities for the proposed
project that are in accordance with Newberg Municipal Code sections 13.20 and 13.25.

The Applicant is required to submit construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit
for proposed public stormwater facilities. Final plans and stormwater report for the management
of stormwater which comply with the Newberg Public Works Design and Construction
Standards and with NMC Sections 13.20 and 13.25 shall be submitted with building and public
improvement permit applications.

Plans will be fully reviewed for compliance with city standards, including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards, as part of the permit plan review process.

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.

E. Development Standards. Development subject to this section shall be planned, designed,
constructed, and maintained in compliance with the Newberg public works design and
construction standards. [Ord. 2810 § 2 (Exhs. B, C), 12-19-16.]

Finding: Because the Applicant has not submitted construction plans, construction plans which
comply with the Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards shall be submitted
with the public works improvement permit application.

This Rhameinill beofulyikexicavestibasaconanlianesoprith ¢itvistandards including the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards as part of the permit plan review process.

CONCLUSION:

Based on the above-mentioned findings and adherence to the above-mentioned conditions of
approval, the application meets the criteria of the Newberg Development Code for the
development of a 100-unit planned unit development as noted in this staff report.

Page 98 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov




Community Development Department

EXHIBIT “B” TO PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER NO. 2025-01
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Planned Unit Development
3809 NE Springbrook Road (File No. PUD24-0001)

A. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE PUD STEP 2 FINAL
PLANS APPROVAL WILL BE ISSUED:

1. Prior to Step 2 of the PUD process, a revised site plan and landscape plan that
demonstrates additional information on the shared recreation area and outdoor
furnishings shall be provided.

2. Prior to Step 2 of the PUD process and submittal of Final Plans for compliance
and before submittal of building permits the Applicant shall submit a Measure 49
waiver related to the City’s decision on the planned development.

3. Prior to Step Two PUD approval, the Applicant shall provide updated landscape
plans meeting the street tree spacing requirements of NMC 15.420.010(B)(4) or
discussing conflicts prohibiting street tree installation (i.e. utilities).

4. Prior to the issuance of the Type I PUD Step Two approval, the Applicant shall
provide irrigation plans for these landscaped areas.

5. The landscaping proposed for tracts and areas not intended for single family
development shall be continuously maintained and prior to the Step Two PUD
approval the Applicant shall submit a mechanism for maintenance of privately
owned landscaped areas.

6. Prior to Step 2 of the PUD process, an access easement will need to be prepared
for the shared driveway serving Lots 82 and 83, and any additional shared
driveways that may be added as development design continues or changes.

B. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE THE CITY WILL
ISSUE A PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PERMIT:

1. The Applicant shall provide final plans for public improvements which meet City
of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards and applicable City
standards. The Applicant is required to include a 10-foot wide PUE along public
street frontages (NE Springbrook Road and newly constructed local streets within
the proposed development).

2. The Applicant shall provide final plans for public improvements which meet City
of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards and applicable City
standards. The Applicant is required to underground newly constructed public

Page 99 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

utilities along public street frontages (NE Springbrook Road and newly
constructed local streets within the proposed development).

3. Prior to the issuance of public improvement permits, the Applicant shall submit
revised landscape plans showing the proposed landscaping in the planting strips.

4. Final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works
Design and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant
is required to underground all constructed public utilities along public street
frontages (NE Springbrook Road and newly constructed local streets within
proposed development).

5. Plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements, or
for public improvements as found to be required during the permit plan review
process, are to meet the requirements of the current City of Newberg Public
Works Design and Construction Standards.

6. Proposed improvements should also be completed in tandem with the extension of
public utility lines to serve the new development. The Applicant is required to
submit construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit for required
public improvements.

7. Condition of Approval 2.b of the Ordinance NO. 2024-2931 for annexation of the
proposed project site requires the Applicant to complete improvements along both
sides of NE Springbrook Road. The Applicant will need to align the
improvements with the existing configuration of the NE Springbrook Road
immediately south of the project boundary. Street improvements shall include
bike lanes, curbs, and sidewalks on either side of NE Springbrook Road.

8. The water main to serve the proposed development must connect to the existing
12-inch water main on the west side of NE Springbrook Road.

9. Each lot and each dwelling under separate ownership must have separate private
utility laterals to a water meter at the right-of-way line prior to connecting to the
public main or to a double water service where allowed per the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards.

10. Final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works
Design and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant
is required to submit construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit
for proposed water services. These plans are to be submitted with the application
for a public improvement permit.

Page 100 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

. The closest existing fire hydrant and any new fire hydrants are to be shown on
plans included with Public Improvement Permit submittals. Fire hydrant spacing
is to be consistent with City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction
standards and Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVF&R) requirements.

12. The wastewater main to serve the proposed development must connect to the
existing 15-inch wastewater gravity main beneath NE Springbrook Road.

13. Each lot and each dwelling under separate ownership must have separate private
utility laterals to a cleanout at the right-of-way line prior to connecting to the
public main or to a double wye service where allowed per the Public Works
Design and Construction Standards.

14. The wastewater analysis of impacts to the wastewater system from the proposed
development is required to be submitted with permit applications.

15. Final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works
Design and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant
is required to submit construction plans and obtain a public improvement permit
for proposed wastewater services. These plans are to be submitted with the
application for a public improvement permit.

16. With Public Improvement Permit submittals the Applicant is required to submit
plans that clearly show public and private stormwater management and
conveyance facilities for the proposed project that are in accordance with
Newberg Municipal Code sections 13.20 and 13.25.

17. The Applicant is required to submit construction plans and obtain a public
improvement permit for proposed public stormwater facilities. Final plans and
stormwater report for the management of stormwater which comply with the
Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards and with NMC
Sections 13.20 and 13.25 shall be submitted with building and public
improvement permit applications.

18. Final plans for public improvements are to meet City of Newberg Public Works
Design and Construction Standards and applicable City standards. The Applicant
is required to include a 10-foot wide PUE along public street frontages (NE
Springbrook Road and newly constructed local streets within proposed
development).

19. The proposed layout of streets is to conform with the requirements of the current

NMC, City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards, and
any other adopted City plans.

Page 101 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

20. Improvements should be made to both sides of NE Springbrook Road in
accordance with condition of approval 2.b for annexation of the subject property,
ANX24-0001 approved with Ordinance NO. 2024-2931.

21. The plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements,
or as found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the
requirements of the current City of Newberg Public Works Design and
Construction Standards.

22. The proposed streets should conform with the requirements of the current NMC
and City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

23. The Applicant will be required to pay a Traffic Impact Fee for the two
intersections which is being assessed based on the proportional impact of the
development on public facilities and services.

a. For N Springbrook Road/E Mountainview Drive: (93 PM trips directly
proportional to the development)/(1,341 PM peak hour total forecasted
trips through the intersection)*($356,000 for the TSP cost of an
intersection upgrade) = $24,689.04 Traffic Impact Fee.

b. For N Springbrook Road/Haworth Avenue: (31 AM trips directly
proportional to the development)/(1,071 AM peak hour total forecasted
trips through the intersection)*($528,000 for the TSP cost of an
intersection upgrade) = $15,282.91 Traffic Impact Fee.

24. The Traffic Impact Fees of $24,689.04 for Project 108 and $15,282.91 for Project
109 shall be paid at the time of, or prior to, building permit issuance.

25. The plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements,
or as found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the
requirements of the current City of Newberg Public Works Design and
Construction Standards. This includes a sidewalk width of 5-feet with 1-foot of
separation between the sidewalk and the new right-of-way line for Type A
sidewalks.

26. The plans submitted with a permit application for proposed public improvements,
or as found to be required during the permit plan review process, are to meet the
requirements of the current City of Newberg Public Works Design and
Construction Standards. This would include planter strips of at least 5-feet in
width along any constructed or improved public streets.

Page 102 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

. Prior to the issuance of public improvement permits, an updated site plan shall be
submitted indicating that the layout of lots in this area have been reworked to
eliminate the presence of this jog and ensure a consistent ROW length across the
entire stretch of Street A to accommodate a future street extension, or an
agreement in a form acceptable to the City shall be submitted guaranteeing the
dedication of the required right-of-way and any required easements at the time of
extension of Street “A” to serve future development.

28. Prior to the issuance of a public improvement permit, the Applicant shall propose
street names for review which do not unnecessarily duplicate or resemble any
existing streets within the City with their formal construction plan submission.

29. The plans submitted should include block configurations consistent with the
requirements of the Newberg Municipal Code and current City of Newberg Public
Works Design and Construction Standards.

30. The Applicant will either need to reconfigure the intersection to exceed the 400-
feet spacing requirement or apply for an exception to access spacing standards for
a reduced spacing that is contingent on director approval in accordance with
15.505.030(R)(10) and 15.505.030(R)(11).

31. Permit approval from Yamhill County is required for the proposed public
improvements in NE Springbrook Road and will be required prior to issuance of a
City of Newberg Public Improvement Permit.

32. The necessary public improvement permit will require the Applicant to provide a
street lighting analysis along NE Springbrook Road and newly constructed streets
for additional PGE Option A street lights meeting city standards. Plans submitted
with the public improvement permit application are to include PGE Option A
street lights necessary to meet City standards.

33. The Applicant will be required to obtain any necessary Yambhill County permits to
perform work within Yamhill County right-of-way. Any necessary Yambhill
County permits are to be obtained and submitted as part of the public
improvement permit process.

34. The Applicant is required to submit the water distribution pump station Basis of
Design technical memo with the public improvement permit application. To
determine the appropriate design, operating and maintenance criteria, the Basis of
Design technical memo for the proposed water booster pump station will be fully
reviewed as part of the public improvement permit approval process. This review
is to occur in accordance with section 1.11.3 of the City of Newberg Public
Works Design and Construction Standards for special facility designs. The Basis

Page 103 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

of Design technical memo will need to be updated with input provided by City’s
Public Works Department during the public improvement permit approval
process.

a. The Applicant is required to incorporate City feedback concerning the
Basis of Design technical memo into a final Basis of Design and into final
plans for the project.

b. The developer may be required to cover the expense of a consultant with
specialty engineering experience selected by the city for a technical review
of the Basis of Design and plans for the water booster pump station. The
consultant selected by the city for a technical review is to act as an
extension of city staff for this unique addition to the public water system.

35. The closest existing fire hydrant and any new fire hydrants are to be shown on
plans included with permit submittals. Fire hydrant spacing is to be consistent
with City of Newberg Public Works Design and Construction standards and
TVF&R requirements.

36. The stormwater management plan is to be prepared in accordance with the Public
Works Design and Construction Standards. This includes demonstrating
compliance with the stormwater facility selection hierarchy described in Section
4.6.8 of the Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

37. The Applicant is required to amend this stormwater management plan to include
required components identified in the Public Works Design and Construction
Standards concerning the preparation of a stormwater management plan.

38. With permit submittals the Applicant is required to submit plans that clearly show
public and private stormwater management and conveyance facilities for the
proposed project that are in accordance with Newberg Municipal Code sections
13.20 and 13.25.

39. The Applicant is required to submit construction plans and obtain a public
improvement permit for proposed public stormwater facilities. Final plans and
stormwater report for the management of stormwater which comply with the
Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards and with NMC
Sections 13.20 and 13.25 shall be submitted with building and public
improvement permit applications.

40. construction plans which comply with the Newberg Public Works Design and

Construction Standards shall be submitted with the public works improvement
permit application.

Page 104 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE THE CITY WILL
ISSUE A BUILDING PERMIT:

1. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit final plans
for approval of the Step Two — Final PUD Plan review process using the City’s
Type I procedure.

2. The Applicant shall provide lot coverage calculations for buildings, parking, and
combined building and parking at the time of building permit submission.

3. The Applicant shall provide building height and sun exposure diagrams at the
time of building permit submission.

4. The Applicant shall indicate and provide usable outdoor living area calculations at
the time of building permit submittal.

5. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit site plans
indicating adherence to lot, parking, and combined lot and parking coverage
calculations.

6. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall indicate adherence to
yard setback requirements on site plans submitted for building permit review.

7. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit a revised site
plan indicating the yard setback which includes the building setback line required
in 15.410.050(C).

8. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit revised site
plans depicting applicable vision clearance triangles.

9. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall indicate compliance
with the building height limitation on site plans submitted for building permit
review.

10. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall indicate the required
private outdoor area on site plans submitted for building permit review

11. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit revised site
plans indicating street trees located on lots intended for residential use. The
installation of street trees located on tracts not intended for residential use will be
verified at the time of the final planning inspection prior to issuance of the
certificate of occupancy of the first single-family dwelling.

12. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit lighting plan
information to verify compliance with the standards in NMC 15.425.

Page 105 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



Community Development Department

13. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit updated site
plans including the location of required off-street parking.

14. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit updated site
plans including the location and design of required off-street parking.

15. The Traffic Impact Fees of $24,689.04 for Project 108 and $15,282.91 for Project
109 shall be paid at the time of, or prior to, building permit issuance.

16. Any required public improvement permit(s) for this project must be submitted,
approved and issued prior to building permits being issued.

D. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE ISSUANCE OF
CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY:

1. Prior to the issuance of certificates of occupancy, all landscaping required shall
be installed or the Applicant shall provide security equal to 110 percent of the cost
of the landscaping as specified in NMC 15.420.010(C).

E. DEVELOPMENT NOTES:

1. Prior to any site modification, including but not limited to grading, the Applicant
shall submit a Stream Corridor Modification request per NMC 15.342.

2. The Applicant is required to submit plans clearly showing the area of disturbance
and to obtain a Oregon Department of Environmental Quality 1200-C Erosion
Control Permit prior to any ground disturbing activity if 1 acre or more will be
disturbed.

Page 106 of 106

Newberg Community Development © 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 « 503-537-1240 « www.newbergoregon.gov



PUD24-0001
Attachment 1:

Application and Supplemental Materials



3J CONSULTING

9600 SW NIMBUS AVENUE, SUITE 100
BEAVERTON, OREGON 97008
MEMORANDUM PH: (503) 946.9365

WWW.3JCONSULTING.COM

To: James Dingwall
Assistant Planner
City of Newberg

From: Sam Huck
Planner

Date: November 21, 2024

Project Name: 3809 NE Springbrook Road Annexation
Project No: ANX24-0001
RE: Incomplete Notice Letter Response

This memorandum has been prepared to respond to the comments and request for additional
information from the City in the Incomplete Notice letter dated November 5, 2024, for case file PUD24-
0001. Submitted with this memorandum is the additional information requested.

Additional Information Requested by the City:

e Measure 49 Waiver: Please provide a signed Measure 49 waiver. The waiver can be found on
page 38 of the application form.

Applicant's Response: The Applicant has provided the City with a copy of the Measure 49 waiver
that was submitted for the annexation of the property, case files ANX24-0001/CPMA24-
0001/ZMA24-0001. The Measure 49 Waiver is provided with this memorandum.

e Site Development Plan: Please provide site plans including the following:
o Existing Conditions - features within 100 feet of the site do not appear on any of the
provided plans.

Applicant's Response: The Applicant has provided the City with a revised existing conditions plan
(Sheet C100) that include existing conditions within 100 feet of the site. The existing conditions
shown within 100 feet of the site are limited to publicly available data and information. This
revised plan has been prepared for informative purposes only. Site background information and
features have been generated from a combination of topographic survey data provided by
Compass Land Surveyors, May 2024, aerial imagery, public GIS data, and site
assessment/observation. No warranty or guarantee of accuracy is expressed or implied. The
resubmitted Appendix E-Land Use Plans contains the revised Existing Conditions plan (Sheet
C100) is provided with this memorandum.

o Site Grading and Drainage -
» The grading plan lacks a clear figure indicating anticipated drainage patterns.

?‘J/

’

CIVIL ENGINEERING | WATER RESOURCES | COMMUNITY PLANNING



Springbrook Annexation MEMORANDUM
Incomplete Notice Letter Response Page 2 of 3
November 21, 2024

Applicant's Response: The Applicant has provided the City with a revised Grading Plan that shows
a clear figure, represented by arrows, indicating the anticipated drainage patters. The
resubmitted Appendix E-Land Use Plans contains a revised Grading Plan (Sheet C210) is provided
with this memorandum.

»  The Preliminary Stormwater Management Plan shows drainage basins but does
not appear to clearly indicate drainage directions.

Applicant's Response: The Applicant has provided the City with a revised Appendix D-Stormwater
Management Plan, which shows a clear figure, represented by arrows, indicating the anticipated
drainage directions. The revised Stormwater Management Plan is provided with this
memorandum.

o Architectural Drawings: Please provide floor plans and elevations for all planned
structures.

Applicant’s Response: The Applicant has provided floor plans and elevations for all planned
residential homes with this memorandum, attached as separate Home Plans with the following
names:

e Nagomi at Springbrook-PUD-Home Plan-3-CAR-NEW 1-BD SG

e Nagomi at Springbrook-PUD-Home Plan-3-CAR-NEW 2-BD CA

e Nagomi at Springbrook-PUD-Home Plan-ASPEN

e Nagomi at Springbrook-PUD-Home Plan-BD-NG

e Nagomi at Springbrook-PUD-Home Plan-ENJI

e Nagomi at Springbrook-PUD-Home Plan-HAGI

In addition to the revisions requested, a revised Narrative has been provided with minor changes.

Thank you for providing this opportunity to provide a response to the Incomplete Notice letter. Please
find the additional and revised application materials submitted with this memorandum, and please
don't hesitate to reach out with any questions.

Sincerely,

i W

Sam Huck, AICP Candidate
Planner
3J Consulting, Inc.




Springbrook Annexation
Incomplete Notice Letter Response
November 21, 2024

MEMORANDUM
Page 3 of 3

Attached:
1. Measure 49 Waiver
Revised Appendix D-Stormwater Management Plan
Revised Appendix E-Land Use Plans
Floor Plans and Elevations
Revised Narrative

uAs W




3J CONSULTING ICHIJO

I
CIVIL ENGINEERING | WATER RESOURCES | LAND USE PLANNING Technological Homes

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK

3809 NE SPRINGBROOK ROAD, NEWBERG, OR 97132

APPLICANT APPLICATION TYPE

ICHIJO USA CO., LTD. TYPE IIl - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)
3800 SW CEDAR HILLS BOULEVARD, SUITE 131

BEAVERTON, OR 97005

CONTACT: MASAKI NARITA

SUBMITTAL DATE
SEPTEMBER 27, 2024

APPLICANT’S REPRESENTATIVE

3] CONSULTING, INC.

3600 NW NIMBUS AVENUE, SUITE 100 SUBMITTAL DATE - REVISED/ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
BEAVERTON, OR 97008 NOVEMBER 21, 2024

CONTACT: SAM HUCK

PHONE: (503) 946-9365 x251




Table of Contents

GENERAL INFORMATION ...ttt sttt b et sb s aesa et 1
SITE INFORMATION L.ttt s b bbb bbb bt bt s b b e nene s 1
INTRODUGCTION ..ottt h e bbbt bbbt b e b b e bt s b b e bt ne 2
APPLICANT'S REQUEST ...ttt 2
SITE DESCRIPTION/SURROUNDING LAND USE ....ccoociiiiiiiiiiiiiiieicinesresctetsrerese e 2
PROPOSAL ...ttt bbb bbb bbb bbb 2
APPLICABLE CRITERIA ..ottt 4
TITLE 15 DEVELOPMENT CODE......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiitctcitcrcre et eresr e st se b sre s s sne s 4
15.100 LAND USE PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES. ......c.coctiiiiiiiniiiiiiiientcrcreniestrerenre e 4
15.200 LAND USE APPLICATIONS......coiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiit ettt 6
15.220 SITE DESIGN REVIEW ...ttt 6
15.240 PD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ......ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiniiciicreie, 6
15.300 ZONING DISTRICTS .ttt 24
15.305 ZONING USE TABLE ..ottt 24
15.340 AIRPORT OVERLAY (AO) SUBDISTRICT ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiniiciiniercs s 25
15.342 STREAM CORRIDOR OVERLAY (SC) SUBDISTRICT ...ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiicieicsiceienns 25
15.400 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS ......ootiiititiiinteteiriteteieestetete sttt sttt sne s s nesnes 27
15.405 LOT REQUIREMENTS L.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic st 27
15.410 YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS ...ooiiiiiiiiiiiiniinieieieniterenreneerere e snesne s snens 32
15.415 BUILDING AND SITE DESIGN STANDARDS ...ttt seesne e 36
15.420 LANDSCAPING AND OUTDOOR AREAS ..ottt snesnens 37
15.425 EXTERIOR LIGHTING .....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et 40
14.430 UNDERGROUND UTILITY INSTALLATION ...cciiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiircicrcneis e 43
15.440 OFF-STREET PARKING, BICYCLE PARKING, AND PRIVATE WALKWAYS .......ccoovivininiiiinnens 43
15.500 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS STANDARDS......ccccoiiiniiiiiiiiiirircireesnresre e 47
15.505.30  STREET STANDARDS ....cc.iitiiiitiniiiiitiiniiri e ss b s nesne s 48
15.505.40  PUBLIC UTILITY STANDARDS......cccotiiiriiniiiiiiiiiircncc e ssenesnens 61
15.505.50  STORMWATER SYSTEM STANDARDS. .....ccceciiniiiiiiniininiiiiininrcnenenesnesnenenens 64

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION ..ottt ss e bbb 65



Appendices
Appendix A - Application Forms
Exhibit 1: Application Form
Exhibit 2: Current Title Report
Appendix B - Vicinity Map and Land Use Designations
Exhibit 3: Vicinity Map
Exhibit 4: Proposed Land Use Designations (ANX24-0001, CPMA24-0001, and ZMA24-0001)
Exhibit 5: General Land Use Plan (ANX24-0001, CPMA24-0001, and ZMA24-0001)
Appendix C - Public Notice Materials
Exhibit 6: Mailed Notice
Exhibit 7: Mailing List
Exhibit 8: Posted Notice
Exhibit 9: Affidavit of Notice
Appendix D - Supporting Documents
Exhibit 10: Stormwater Management Plan
Exhibit 11: Traffic Impact Analysis
Exhibit 12: TVF&R Permit
Exhibit 13: Wastewater Downstream Analysis
Exhibit 14: Water System Analysis Report
Appendix E - Land Use Plans
Sheet C000: Cover Sheet
Sheet C100: Existing Conditions and Demolition Plan
Sheet C110: Tree Removal and Preservation Plan
Sheet C150: Overall Tentative Plat
Sheet C151: Tentative Plat |
Sheet C152: Tentative Plat Il
Sheet C153: Tentative Plat Il
Sheet C154: Tentative Plat IV
Sheet C200: Overall Site Plan
Sheet C201: Proposed Zoning Map
Sheet C210: Grading Plan
Sheet C220: Typical Sections
Sheet C230: Circulation Plan
Sheet C240: Fire Access Plan
Sheet C250: Photometrics Plan
Sheet C300: Composite Utility Plan
Sheet L101: Planting Plan
Sheet L102: Planting Plan
Sheet L103: Planting Plan
Sheet L104: Planting Plan
Sheet L105: Planting Plan
Sheet L106: Plant Schedule
Sheet L107: Planting Details and Notes



GENERAL INFORMATION

Applicant:

Planning Consultant:

Civil Engineer:

SITE INFORMATION
Parcel Number:
Address:

Gross Site Area:
Zoning Designation:
Existing Use:
Surrounding Zoning:

Street Classification:

Ichijo USA Co., LTD.

3800 SW Cedar Hills Boulevard, Suite 131
Beaverton, OR 97005

Contact: Masaki Narita

Phone: (503) 430-7413

Email: m-narita@ichijousa.com

3J Consulting, Inc.

9600 SW Nimbus Avenue, Suite 100
Beaverton, OR 97008

Contact: Sam Huck

Phone: (503) 946-9365 x251

Email: sam.huck@3j-consulting.com

3J Consulting, Inc.

9600 SW Nimbus Avenue, Suite 100
Beaverton, OR 97008

Contact: Chase Welborn, PE

Phone: (503) 946-9365 x215

Email: chase.welborn@3j-consulting.com

3209 02300

3809 NE Springbrook Road

19.16 acres

AF-10 (Proposed City Zoning R-1/R-3)

Single Family Residential - Farm Use

The properties to the north, east, and west are located in
unincorporated Yamhill County and are zoned AF-10. The
properties to the South are located in the City of Newberg and are
zoned Springbrook District Hospitality (SD/H).

N Springbrook Road is classified as a Major Collector.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



INTRODUCTION

APPLICANT'S REQUEST

Ichijo USA (“the Applicant”) proposes to construct a 100-unit residential development and seeks
approval of Type Ill Planned Unit Development (“PUD") application. This narrative has been prepared
to describe the proposed development and to document compliance with the relevant sections of the
City of Newberg's Municipal Code (“NMC"), Title 15 Development Code.

Planned Unit Developments are evaluated under the Type Il Quasi-judicial decision process. The
Newberg Planning Commission will render the Type Il decision after a public hearing on the
application is held.

SITE DESCRIPTION/SURROUNDING LAND USE

Located at 3809 Northeast Springbrook Road, the subject site is 19.16 acres in size. Identified as tax
lot 3209 02300, the site is currently located within unincorporated Yamhill County, but is being
annexed into the City limits through a separate land use application (ANX24-0001, CPMA24-0001,
ZMA24-0001). The site is located within the City of Newberg's Urban Growth Boundary, and will have
a comprehensive plan designated of Low Density Residential (LDR), and High-density Residential
(HDR) on the City's Comprehensive Plan Map upon approval of the previously submitted
Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment for the subject property. Upon annexation, the subject
property will be predominately zoned R-1, with portions of the property zoned R-3 in accordance with
the City of Newberg's comprehensive plan and development code. The development code requires
any land proposed for annexation to apply a comprehensive plan designation and corresponding
zoning to the site that is being annexed into the City. The LDR and HDR comprehensive plan map
designations and corresponding R-1 and R-3 zoning on the property were established in accordance
with the requirement to establish R-3 zoning throughout the community for larger units of land
proposed for annexation. In accordance with the comprehensive plan policies and the development
code, the Applicant proposed R-3 zoned lands on approximately 16 percent of the net size of the site.

Portions of the property along the southern edge abut the Springbrook Master Plan boundary.
However, the subject site itself is not included within the Springbrook District. The property has
frontage and takes access from Northeast Springbrook Road, which is classified as a Major Collector.
A mapped stream and the associated vegetative corridor run along portions of the east property
boundary. The site currently has a single-family residence and several other structures that are used
for agricultural purposes. The site has a number of trees, a stand of fir trees that is a matured tree
farm, and fields that have been used in the past for agriculture. The terrain of the property has a
generally sloping topography from the west to the east /southeast of the property.

PROPOSAL

The proposed PUD will provide a diversity of single-family detached homes on 100 single-family lots
with associated roadways, walkways, hardscaping, landscaping, and utility improvements. The
proposal also includes frontage improvements on Northeast Springbrook Road. The single-family lots
are located in both the R-1 and R-3 zones. The proposal includes a shared open space area to be

- NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



located within a separate Tract A near the proposed Lot 100, which will provide an amenity for the
residents of the neighborhood that includes landscaping, benches, and a shared amenity structure to
be determined. The Applicant is considering a gazebo, a play structure, or a similar type of shared
amenity structure for future residents to have access to.

Due to existing topography and the location of existing municipal water facilities, the site will be served
by a proposed water pump station located at the southeast corner of the site in Tract A near
Springbrook Road. This water pump station is to be constructed to serve this proposed residential
development within the urban growth boundary which does not currently have municipal water
service available. The entirety of the site will be served by gravity sewer mains, which will join the
existing municipal system within Northeast Springbrook Road.

Stormwater runoff from the proposed development will drain to proposed storm drain systems,
which consists of proposed stormwater best management practices (BMPs) for water quality and
detention prior to discharging offsite. Runoff associated with the single-family residences will outfall
to Spring Brook to the east of the project site. Runoff associated with the frontage improvements and
the southeastern portion of the site will outfall to the existing storm drain system southwest of the
project site. Stormwater ponds are proposed to be located at the southeast portion of the property
on Tract A and Tract B.

- NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



APPLICABLE CRITERIA

The following sections of the Newberg Development Code have been extracted as they have been
deemed to be applicable to the proposal. Following each bold applicable criteria or design standard,
the Applicant has provided a series of draft findings. The intent of providing code and detailed
responses and findings is to document, with absolute certainty, that the proposed development has
satisfied the approval criteria for the Planned Unit Development application.

TITLE 15 DEVELOPMENT CODE
15.100 LAND USE PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES
15.100.050 Type Ill procedure - Quasi-judicial hearing.
A. All Type Ill decisions shall be heard and decided by the planning commission. The planning
commission’s decision shall be final unless the decision is appealed or the decision is a
recommendation to the city council.
B. Type Ill actions include, but are not limited to:
3. Planned unit developments: This action is a final decision unless appealed.

Applicant’'s The proposed Planned Unit Development will be processed through a Type lll review.
Findings: This narrative acknowledges the applicable provisions of section 15.100.050.C
through 15.100.050.H for the Type Il review procedures. This standard is met.

15.100.090 Development permit application.

Applications for development permits shall be submitted upon forms established by the
director. An application shall consist of all materials required by this code, including the
following information:

A. A completed development permit application form.

B. Proof that the property affected by the application is in the exclusive ownership of the
applicant, or that the applicant has the consent of all owners of the affected property.

C. Other information required by this code.

D. The applicable fees.

Applicant’'s A completed Land Use Application form and proof that the Applicant has the consent

Findings: of all owners of the affected property are provided with this application in Appendix
A. Application fees have been provided to the City at the time of submittal and all
other applicable information required by the code is provided with this narrative and
the submitted appendices. This standard is met.

15.100.210 Mailed notice.

Mailed notice shall be provided as follows:

B. Type Il and Type Ill Actions. The applicant shall provide public notice to:
1. The owner of the site for which the application is made; and

- NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



2. Owners of property within 500 feet of the entire site for which the application is made.
The list shall be compiled from the most recent property tax assessment roll. For
purposes of review, this requirement shall be deemed met when the applicant can
provide an affidavit or other certification that such notice was deposited in the mail or
personally delivered.

15.100.230 Additional notice procedures for Type Ill quasi-judicial hearing.

In addition to the requirements of NMC 15.100.210, mailed notice for Type Ill development
actions shall also contain the following:

A. State that an issue which may be the basis for an appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals
shall be raised not later than the close of the record at or following the final new hearing on
the proposal before the city. Such issues shall be raised with sufficient specificity so as to afford
the hearing body and the parties an adequate opportunity to respond to each issue;

B. State the date, time and location of the hearing;

C. State that the failure of an issue to be raised in a hearing, in person or by letter, or failure to
provide sufficient specificity to afford the hearing body an opportunity to respond to the issue
may preclude appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals on that issue;

D. State that a copy of the staff report will be available for inspection at no cost at least seven
calendar days prior to the hearing and will be provided at reasonable cost;

E. Include a general explanation of the requirements for submission of testimony and the
procedure for conduct of hearings.

Applicant’s Prior to approval of this application, the Applicant will give notice to all applicable

Findings: parties pursuant to the applicable provisions of Section 15.100.210, and Section
15.100.230. A draft mailed notice and the neighboring property owners’ contact
information will be reviewed and approved by the City prior to being mailed. A copy
of these drafts is provided in Appendix C. After the mailed notice is sent, a signed
Affidavit of Noticing will be included in this application. This standard is met.

15.100.260 Procedure for posted notice for Type Il and Il procedures.

[Details of the posted notice procedures are omitted for brevity.]

15.100.270 Procedure for published notice on Type Ill and Type IV procedures.
[Details of the posted notice procedures are omitted for brevity.]

Applicant’s Prior to approval of this application, the Applicant will give notice to all applicable

Findings: parties pursuant to the applicable provisions of Section 15.100.260, and Section
15.100.270. A draft posted notice sign and draft affidavit of posting which will be
reviewed and approved by the City prior to being posted is provided in Appendix C.
After the posting of the public notice is completed, a signed Affidavit of Noticing will
be included in this application. This standard is met.

- NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



15.200 LAND USE APPLICATIONS

15.220 SITE DESIGN REVIEW

15.220.060 Additional requirements for multifamily residential projects.

The purpose of this section is to ensure that multifamily residential containing five or more
units meet minimum standards for good design, provide a healthy and attractive environment
for those who live there, and are compatible with surrounding development.

As part of the discretionary site design review process, an applicant for a new multifamily
residential project must demonstrate that some of the following site and building design
elements, each of which has a point value, have been incorporated into the design of the
project. At least 14 points are required for smaller multifamily projects with five to eight units
and at least 20 points are required for multifamily projects with nine or more units. For more
information and illustrations of each element, refer to the Newberg Residential Development
Design Guidelines (July 1997).

B. Design Guidelines and Standards. Applicable guidelines and standards for multi-unit and
congregate housing are located in Table 15.220.060(B). These standards should not be
interpreted as requiring a specific architectural style.

[Table 15.220.060(B): Multifamily Residential Design Guidelines and Standards is omitted for
brevity.]

Applicant’s Inaccordance with Section 15.240.020.Q., the standards of this section are applicable

Findings: for the proposed PUD and the Applicant must provide a minimum of 40% of the
points required for multifamily projects. As such, the proposed development must
provide a minimum of 9 site design and 10 building design points (40% of each). The
Applicant has addressed how the proposal meets this requirement in the PUD
findings below. This standard is met.

15.240 PD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

The city's planned unit development regulations are intended to:

A. Encourage comprehensive planning in areas of sufficient size to provide developments at
least equal in the quality of their environment to traditional lot-by-lot development and that
are reasonably compatible with the surrounding area; and

B. Provide flexibility in architectural design, placement and clustering of buildings, use of open
space and outdoor living areas, and provision of circulation facilities, parking, storage and
related site and design considerations; and

C. Promote an attractive, safe, efficient and stable environment which incorporates a
compatible variety and mix of uses and dwelling types; and

D. Provide for economy of shared services and facilities; and

E. Implement the density requirements of the comprehensive plan and zoning districts through
the allocation of the number of permitted dwelling units based on the number of bedrooms
provided.

- NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Applicant’'s The Applicant proposed PUD meets the stated purposes of the PUD regulations. The

Findings: site is 19.16 acres. This is a sufficient size to warrant comprehensive planning rather
than traditional lot-by-lot development. The proposed PUD development will provide
for flexibility in the lot size and placement of buildings and related site and design
considerations. The proposed PUD will provide residential neighborhood with an
interconnected pedestrian and vehicle circulation system to promote a safe,
attractive, efficient, and stable residential environment adjacent to Northeast
Springbrook Road, which is classified as a major collector road facility.

This standard is met.

15.240.020 General provisions.

A. Ownership. Except as provided herein, the area included in a proposed planned unit
development must be in single ownership or under the development control of a joint
application of owners or option holders of the property involved.

Applicant’'s  The proposed planned unit development is under single ownership.
Findings:
This standard is met.

B. Processing Steps - Type lll. Prior to issuance of a building permit, planned unit development
applications must be approved through a Type Il procedure and using the following steps:

1. Step One - Preliminary Plans. Consideration of applications in terms of on-site and off-
site factors to assure the flexibility afforded by planned unit development regulations
is used to preserve natural amenities; create an attractive, safe, efficient, and stable
environment; and assure reasonable compatibility with the surrounding area.
Preliminary review necessarily involves consideration of the off-site impact of the
proposed design, including building height and location.

2. Step Two - Final Plans. Consideration of detailed plans to assure substantial
conformance with preliminary plans as approved or conditionally approved. Final plans
need not include detailed construction drawings as subsequently required for a
building permit.

Applicant’'s The Applicant acknowledges the two-step process to PUD approval and submits
Findings: these materials in support of Step One - Preliminary Plans.

This standard is met.
C. Phasing. If approved at the time of preliminary plan consideration, final plan applications

may be submitted in phases. If preliminary plans encompassing only a portion of a site under
single ownership are submitted, they must be accompanied by a statement and be sufficiently

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



detailed to prove that the entire area can be developed and used in accordance with city
standards, policies, plans and ordinances.

Applicant’'s No phasing is proposed for the development, therefore this standard is not
Findings: applicable.

D. Lapse of Approval. If the applicant fails to submit material required for consideration at the
next step in accordance with the schedule approved at the previous step or, in the absence of
a specified schedule, within one year of such approval, the application as approved at the
previous step expires. If the applicant fails to obtain a building permit for construction in
accordance with the schedule as previously approved, or in the absence of a specified schedule,
within three years of a preliminary plan approval, preliminary and final plan approvals expire.
Prior to expiration of plan approval at any step, the hearing authority responsible for approval
may, if requested, extend or modify the schedule, providing it is not detrimental to the public
interest or contrary to the findings and provisions specified herein for planned unit
developments. Unless the preliminary plan hearing authority provides to the contrary,
expiration of final plan approval of any phase automatically renders all phases void that are
not yet finally approved or upon which construction has not begun.

Applicant’'s The Applicant acknowledges the process for lapse of PUD approval and intends to
Findings: follow through with development of the site based on the original approval timeline.

This standard is met.

E. Resubmittal Following Expiration. Upon expiration of preliminary or final plan approval, a
new application and fee must be submitted prior to reconsideration. Reconsideration shall be
subject to the same procedures as an original application.

Applicant’'s The Applicant acknowledges the process for resubmittal following expiration.
Findings:
This standard is met.

F. Density. Except as provided in NMC 15.302.040 relating to subdistricts, dwelling unit density
provisions for residential planned unit developments shall be as follows:
1. Maximum Density.
a. Except as provided in adopted refinement plans, the maximum allowable density
for any project shall be as follows:

District | Density Points

R-1 175 density points per gross acre, as calculated
in subsection (F)(1)(b) of this section

‘ NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



R-3 640 density points per gross acre, as calculated
in subsection (F)(1)(b) of this section

b. Density point calculations in the following table are correlated to dwellings based
on the number of bedrooms, which for these purposes is defined as an enclosed
room which is commonly used or capable of conversion to use as sleeping quarters.
Accordingly, family rooms, dens, libraries, studies, studios, and other similar rooms
shall be considered bedrooms if they meet the above definitions, are separated by
walls or doors from other areas of the dwelling and are accessible to a bathroom
without passing through another bedroom. Density points may be reduced at the
applicant’s discretion by 25 percent for deed-restricted affordable dwelling units
and/or middle housing dwelling units as follows:

Density Point Table

Dwelling Type Density Points: | Density Points: Income-
Standard Restricted Affordable
Dwelling Dwelling Unit

Studio and efficiency 12 9

One-bedroom 14 11

Two-bedroom 21 16

Three-bedroom 28 21

Four or more bedrooms 35 26

Duplex, triplex or quadplex dwellings shall be counted as a single dwelling unit,
inclusive of all bedrooms in the two duplex combined dwelling units, for purposes of
calculating density points. Four townhouse dwellings or cottage dwellings shall count
as one standard dwelling, inclusive of all bedrooms in the combined dwelling units.

The density points in the right-hand column are applicable to income-restricted
affordable dwelling units, provided the dwelling units meet the affordability criteria
under NMC 15.242.030 regarding affordable housing requirements for developments
using the flexible development standards.

2. Approved Density. The number of dwelling units allowable shall be determined by the
hearing authority in accordance with the standards set forth in these regulations. The
hearing authority may change density subsequent to preliminary plan approval only if
the reduction is necessary to comply with required findings for preliminary plan
approval or if conditions of preliminary plan approval cannot otherwise be satisfied.

3. Easement Calculations. Density calculations may include areas in easements if the
applicant clearly demonstrates that such areas will benefit residents of the proposed
planned unit development.

4. Dedications. Density calculations may include areas dedicated to the public for
recreation or open space.

‘ NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



5. Cumulative Density. When approved in phases, cumulative density shall not exceed the

overall density per acre established at the time of preliminary plan approval.

Applicant's The total number of density points available to this site, as detailed on the Density
Findings: Matrix, is 4,757.30.
Zone Gross Size Density Points/ Max. Density Points
(Acre) Gross Acre Allowed
R-1 16.14 175 2,824.50
R-3 3.02 640 1,932.80
Total 19.16 815 4,757.30

The proposed PUD development will include 100 single-family detached homes.
The single-family homes will have predominately four or more bedrooms each,
with 17 of the 100 proposed as three bedroom homes.

1-Bed | 2-Bed | 3-Bed | 4+Bed | Total Units
Single-Family Detached 0 0 17 83 100
Total Bedrooms 0 0 17 83 100
Dwelling Type Number of Density Points/Unit Total Density
Units Points Provided
Studio 0 12 0
One-bedroom 0 14 0
Two-bedroom 0 21 0
Three-bedroom 17 28 476
Four-bedroom 83 35 2,905
Total 100 3,381

The total number and type of residential dwelling units proposed requires 3,381
density points, which is less than the 4,757.30 points available to this site. If all
homes were to have four or more bedrooms, the proposal would still not exceed
the total density points allowed.

This standard is met.

G. Buildings and Uses Permitted. Buildings and uses in planned unit developments are
permitted as follows:
1. R-1,R-2, R-3 and RP Zones.
a. Buildings and uses permitted outright or conditionally in the use district in which
the proposed planned unit development is located.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



b. Accessory buildings and uses.
Dwellings, single, manufactured, and multifamily.

d. Convenience commercial services which the applicant proves will be patronized
mainly by the residents of the proposed planned unit development.

Applicant’'s The proposal includes single-family detached residential uses within the R-1 and R-3
Findings: portions of this site, both of which are permitted by subsection c. above.

This standard is met.

H. Professional Coordinator and Design Team. Professional coordinators and design teams
shall comply with the following:

1. Services. A professional coordinator, licensed in the State of Oregon to practice
architecture, landscape architecture or engineering, shall ensure that the required
plans are prepared. Plans and services provided for the city and between the applicant
and the coordinator shall include:

a. Preliminary design;

b. Design development;

¢. Construction documents, except for single-family detached dwellings and duplexes
in subdivisions; and

d. Administration of the construction contract, including, but not limited to,
inspection and verification of compliance with approved plans.

2. Address and Attendance. The coordinator or the coordinator's professional
representative shall maintain an Oregon address, unless this requirement is waived by
the director. The coordinator or other member of the design team shall attend all public
meetings at which the proposed planned unit development is discussed.

3. Design Team Designation. Except as provided herein, a design team, which includes an
architect, a landscape architect, engineer, and land surveyor, shall be designated by the
professional coordinator to prepare appropriate plans. Each team member must be
licensed to practice the team member’s profession in the State of Oregon.

4. Design Team Participation and Waiver. Unless waived by the director upon proof by the
coordinator that the scope of the proposal does not require the services of all members
at one or more steps, the full design team shall participate in the preparation of plans
at all three steps.

5. Design Team Change. Written notice of any change in design team personnel must be
submitted to the director within three working days of the change.

6. Plan Certification. Certification of the services of the professionals responsible for
particular drawings shall appear on drawings submitted for consideration and shall be
signed and stamped with the registration seal issued by the State of Oregon for each
professional so involved. To assure comprehensive review by the design team of all
plans for compliance with these regulations, the dated cover sheet shall contain a

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



statement of review endorsed with the signatures of all designated members of the
design team.

Applicant’s This PUD application includes all of the required plans and documents. A professional

Findings:

engineer licensed in the State of Oregon has ensured that all required plans are
prepared, certified as necessary, and submitted. The Applicant acknowledges the
process for a design team change. This standard is met.

I. Modification of Certain Regulations. Except as otherwise stated in these regulations, fence
and wall provisions, general provisions pertaining to height, yards, area, lot width, frontage,
depth and coverage, number of off-street parking spaces required, and regulations pertaining
to setbacks specified in this code may be modified by the hearing authority, provided the
proposed development will be in accordance with the purposes of this code and those

regulations. Departures from the hearing authority upon a finding by the engineering director
that the departures will not create hazardous conditions for vehicular or pedestrian traffic.
Nothing contained in this subsection shall be interpreted as providing flexibility to regulations
other than those specifically encompassed in this code.

Applicant’s
Findings:

This application is proposed as a PUD primarily based on the Zoning Use Table of
NMC 15.305, which indicates in Note 3 that “Homes on individual lots created on or
after November 17, 1992, will only be permitted through the planned unit
development process.”. However, several minor requests to modify lot requirements
are also requested with this PUD in accordance with this standard. The proposed
modifications are for lot frontage, lot area, and lot coverage in the R-1 zone.

R-1 Modification Requests
The R-1 zone requires a minimum width of 35 feet from the front building line, and

all lots proposed in the R-1 zone will have at least 35 feet at the front building line.
The frontage requirements of that section also require that all lots shall have either
a frontage or access to a public street through an easement that is at least 25 feet
wide. The Applicant requests a modification to the access width standard of 25 feet
for three lots in the R-1 zone. The modification will accommodate two flag lots on
lots 82 and 83 to have access to a public street through a driveway with an easement
that has a width of 20 feet. This modification will also accommodate lot 12 to have
access to a public street on a driveway with a width of 20.1 feet. All access widths for
the proposed lots are demonstrated on the Tentative Plats (Sheets C151-C154)
provided in Appendix E.

The R-1 zone allows for a maximum lot coverage of 40 percent with some exceptions,
and allows a combined maximum lot and parking coverage of 60 percent. The
Applicant is requesting a modification to this standard for all lots in the R-1 zone to
have a maximum lot coverage of 50 percent and a combined maximum lot and

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



parking coverage of 60 percent. This will allow for the development of slightly larger
homes on the lots, which will provide more bedrooms to become available to
community members and future residents of the neighborhood. Some of the homes
proposed in the neighborhood will be single story homes, which will meet the
maximum lot coverage requirements of the code and do not require a modification.
The proposed single story homes mixed with the two-story homes will provide for a
desirable diversity in housing type throughout the neighborhood. The diversity in
housing types across the neighborhood will provide not only a visually appealing
streetscape, but will also provide different types of homes for different people with
varying physical abilities, ages, and preferences.

R-3 Modification Requests
The Applicant is requesting a modification to the sun exposure plan requirements of
the code, and requesting a modification to the standard. The Applicant proposes lots

that will not adversely affect the occupants or potential occupants of adjacent
properties even though minor intrusion of structures into the sun exposure plane is
proposed. The lots are proposed in a denser manner, and some lots in the
north/south orientation in the R-3 zone intrude the sun exposure plane.

The benefits of housing configured in this manner provides numerous benefits to
the future residents and provides opportunities for the creation of a highly efficient
and well-designed community. Future residents will have access to open space and
will use an efficient street and pedestrian network that has been designed with safety
in mind. Residents in closer proximity to neighbors fosters social interactions and
can promote community engagement and a sense of belonging. Housing configured
in this manner incorporates Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design
(CPTED) principals, including “eyes on the street”, which is a key principle of CPTED
and encourages neighbors to be present and active in their surroundings. By
increasing visibility and promoting interactions among residents, a safer and more
cohesive community will be built in this neighborhood. By providing varying lot sizes
and multiple housing types a greater diversity in the neighborhood makeup may be
established, with different incomes, ages, and backgrounds choosing to live in the
neighborhood. This modification is requested in order to meet the requirements for
lot area, density, site configuration, parking, block length, and access. The Applicant
requests a departure from the strict application of the sun exposure plane code from
the Planning Commission.

The above requested modifications will allow the Applicant to provide the number
of homes proposed and create a well-designed and high-quality single-family home

neighborhood within the City.

No other modifications are requested.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



This standard is met.

J. Lot Coverage. Maximum permitted lot and parking area coverage as provided in this code
shall not be exceeded unless specifically permitted by the hearing authority in accordance with
these regulations.

Applicant’'s As detailed in the above findings, the Applicant is requesting a modification to the

Findings: maximum permitted lot and parking area coverage. The Applicant is requesting this
modification to be specifically permitted by the hearing authority in accordance with
these regulations.

This standard is met.

K. Height. Unless determined by the hearing authority that intrusion of structures into the sun
exposure plane will not adversely affect the occupants or potential occupants of adjacent
properties, all buildings and structures shall be constructed within the area contained
between lines illustrating the sun exposure plane (see Appendix A, Figure 8 and the definition
of “sun exposure plane” in NMC 15.05.030). The hearing authority may further modify heights
to:

1. Protect lines of sight and scenic vistas from greater encroachment than would occur as

a result of conventional development.
2. Protect lines of sight and scenic vistas.
3. Enable the project to satisfy required findings for approval.

Applicant’'s The maximum permitted height in the R-1 zone is 30 feet, and the maximum

Findings: permitted height in the R-3 zone is 30 feet due to the zones directly abutting the R-1
district boundaries. The proposed single-family detached homes will be primarily
two-stories in height, with a portion of the homes proposed at one-story. All homes
will meet the height requirement of the zone. All of the proposed types of homes will
be interspersed throughout the neighborhood. This means that larger homes in the
R-1 zones as well as smaller homes in the R-3 zones will have both north/south and
east/west orientations across the site. The Applicant has prepared sun exposure
diagrams (Figures 1 and 2) showing the north/south orientation and east/west
orientation of the lots.

The front and rear yards for all homes in the R-1 zones, no matter the way the
buildings are oriented will meet the sun exposure plane requirements of NMC
15.05.030.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



va

Aovdlas
LNOYAH

Aoval3s
o3y

Vd

Aoval3s
Hv3d

»0vdal3s
1INOY4

d

SN U ——.
~

15.0" —=

68.0'

93.0'

10.0'

[=—15.0"

LOTS 32-40_43-51 - N-S DIRECTION

d - -

AdvEglAS — — — —
3ais

~
~
~
~

Moval3s N

as— — — — <
~ ~

56.5'

5.0'

61.5'

Td -- --

- ~
Aovalass— — — —
3ais i
~
-

-~
-

Moval3as

56.5'

615"

LOTS 32-40, 43-51 - E-W DIRECTION

Figure 1: R-1 Homes Sun Exposure Diagram

W NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



¥ ¥ w ¥
3] O 3] O
L é L g w é w g
- 200 ol o ol ol o <
o a »on BHIT DD o0 o T
| ||| |
| ||| |
I I I I I
| \\|\ | | | | // | | |
\I‘ | //
I I ~ ) I I
I I ~_ I, I I
~
/{\
I~
50 —I——¢—100'
I 41.0 36.0' _—! I 36.0' 41.0' |
41.0' 41.0'
LOTS 1-8 - N-S DIRECTION
¥ X x ¥
3] O @] &}
w @ Wd o W @

- 2 of =N =i (=R <
o T »n DO T DD HoH o o
| ]| |
| ]| |
I b ol | l

] N R L
I I Mo I I
I I Ny I I
AR
[=={5.0" 5.0 5.0 5.0' ==y
, 41.0 36.0 !..-! 36.0 a0 ,
41.0' 41.0'

LOTS 89-99 - E-W DIRECTION

Figure 2: R-3 Homes Sun Exposure Diagram

All homes in the east/west orientation will meet the sun exposure plane
requirements of NMC 15.05.030. Some homes in the R-3 zone in the north/south
orientation will be without sun exposure at the 30-degree slope for portions of the
day. A modification request from this standard has been requested above in the
Modification of Certain Regulations section of this narrative.

L. Dedication, Improvement and Maintenance of Public Thoroughfares. Public thoroughfares
shall be dedicated, improved and maintained as follows:

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



1. Streets and Walkways. Including, but not limited to, those necessary for proper
development of adjacent properties. Construction standards that minimize
maintenance and protect the public health and safety, and setbacks as specified in NMC
15.410.050, pertaining to special setback requirements to planned rights-of-way, shall
be required.

Applicant’s Public thoroughfares, including all streets and walkways proposed with this PUD

Findings: application, will be dedicated to the City of Newberg. Construction standards as
specified by the City will be followed to protect public health and safety. The yard
setback requirements are addressed further in this narrative.

This standard is met.

2. Notwithstanding subsection (L)(1) of this section, a private street may be approved if
the following standards are satisfied.

a. An application for approval of a PUD with at least 50 dwelling units may include
a private street and the request for a private street shall be supported by the
evidence required by this section. The planning commission may approve a
private street if it finds the applicant has demonstrated that the purpose
statements in NMC 15.240.010(A) through (D) are satisfied by the evidence in
subsections (L)(2)(a)(i) through (v) of this section.

i. A plan for managing on-street parking, maintenance and financing of
maintenance of the private street, including a draft reserve study
showing that the future homeowners association can financially
maintain the private street;

ii. A plan demonstrating that on- and off-street parking shall be sufficient
for the expected parking needs and applicable codes;

iii. Proposed conditions, covenants and restrictions that include a
requirement that the homeowners association shall be established in
perpetuity and shall continually employ a community management
association whose duties shall include assisting the homeowners
association with the private street parking management and
maintenance, including the enforcement of parking restrictions;

iv.  Evidence that the private street is of sufficient width and construction to
satisfy requirements of the fire marshal and city engineer; and

v. The PUD shall be a Class | planned community as defined in ORS Chapter
94.

b. If the PUD is established, the homeowners association shall provide an annual
written report on the anniversary date of the final approval of the PUD approval
to the community development director that includes the following:

i. The most recent reserve study.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



ii. The name and contact information for the retained community
management association.

iii. A report on the condition of the private street and any plans for
maintenance of the private street.

Applicant’s No private streets are proposed with this application, therefore the standards of this
Findings: subsection are not applicable.

3. Easements. As are necessary for the orderly extension of public utilities and bicycle and
pedestrian access.

Applicant’'s Any easements deemed necessary will be executed and recorded in accordance with
Findings: this code.

This standard is met.

M. Underground Utilities. Unless waived by the hearing authority, the developer shall locate
all on-site utilities serving the proposed planned unit development underground in accordance
with the policies, practices and rules of the serving utilities and the Public Utilities Commission.

Applicant’'s The proposal includes all on-site utilities located underground.
Findings:
This standard is met.

N. Usable Outdoor Living Area. All dwelling units shall be served by outdoor living areas as
defined in this code. Unless waived by the hearing authority, the outdoor living area must
equal at least 10 percent of the gross floor area of each unit. So long as outdoor living area is
available to each dwelling unit, other outdoor living space may be offered for dedication to the
city, in fee or easement, to be incorporated in a city-approved recreational facility. A portion
or all of a dedicated area may be included in calculating density if permitted under these
regulations.

Applicant’s All dwelling units are served by outdoor living areas equal to at least 10 percent of

Findings: the gross floor area of each unit. The single-family units will have outdoor living on
individual lots provided in back and side yards, which are able to provide at least 10
percent of the gross floor area in outdoor living space. Outdoor living spaces for each
unit can be verified at the time of building permit issuance.

This standard is met.
O. Site Modification. Unless otherwise provided in preliminary plan approval, vegetation,

topography and other natural features of parcels proposed for development shall remain
substantially unaltered pending final plan approval.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Applicant’'s A stream corridor is located on portions of the subject property near the east

Findings: property line. Grading for the proposed water treatment facility in Tract B is proposed
within the stream corridor. The design and engineering of the proposed water
treatment facility will be finalized during the construction document phase and
permitting process. Because of this, the extent of the proposed modifications within
the stream corridor is not finalized at this time. Therefore, the Applicant requests and
would accept a condition of approval for a Type Il Stream Corridor Modification
application to be submitted prior to any grading activities.

Notwithstanding the above-mentioned stream corridor, no other vegetation,
topography or other natural features will be substantially altered prior to final plan
approval.

This standard is met.

P. Completion of Required Landscaping. If required landscaping cannot be completed prior to
occupancy, or as otherwise required by a condition of approval, the director may require the
applicant to post a performance bond of a sufficient amount and time to assure timely
completion.

Applicant’'s The Applicant acknowledges the possibility of a performance bond being required to
Findings: assure timely completion of any delayed landscaping.

This standard is met.

Q. Design Standards. The proposed development shall meet the design requirements for
multifamily residential projects identified in NMC 15.220.060. A minimum of 40 percent of the
required points shall be obtained in each of the design categories.

Applicant’'s This development proposal does not propose any multifamily dwelling units,

Findings: however the single-family detached homes proposed have been evaluated using the
design requirements for multifamily residential projects identified in NMC
15.220.060. There are 23 possible site design points, and 25 possible building design
points identified; therefore, this project must obtain 9 site design and 10 building
design points (40% of each). Below are the site design and building design elements
that will be incorporated into the site, meeting this standard.

Site Design:
Shared Recreation Areas: 3 points

Good-quality coordinated site landscaping: 2 points

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Street trees: 1 point

Outdoor site furnishing: 1 point
Entrance building accents: 1 point
Appropriate Outdoor Lighting: 1 point
Total Site Design Points: 9 points

Building Design:

Building Orientation and Entrances toward the street: 3 points

Respect the scale and patterns of nearby buildings height: 3 points

Provide variation in repeated units using color, porches, balconies, windows, railings,
building materials and form, alone or in combination: 3 points

Building materials: Wood or wood-like siding applied horizontally or vertically as
board and batten at entry ways; shingles, as roofing; wood or wood-like sash
windows; and wood or wood-like trim: 2 points

Total Building Design Points: 11 points

This standard is met as described above.

15.240.030 Preliminary plan consideration - Step one.

A. Preapplication Conference. Prior to filing an application for preliminary plan consideration,
the applicant or coordinator may request through the director a preapplication conference to
discuss the feasibility of the proposed planned unit development and determine the
processing requirements.

Applicant’'s The Applicant attended a pre-application conference with the City on January 24,
Findings: 2024.

This standard is met.

B. Application. An application, with the required fee, for preliminary plan approval shall be
made by the owner of the affected property, or the owner's authorized agent, on a form
prescribed by and submitted to the director. Applications, accompanied by such additional
copies as requested by the director for purposes of referral, shall contain or have attached
sufficient information as prescribed by the director to allow processing and review in
accordance with these regulations. As part of the application, the property owner requesting
the planned development shall file a waiver stating that the owner will not file any demand
against the city under Ballot Measure 49, approved November 6, 2007, that amended ORS
Chapters 195 and 197 based on the city’s decision on the planned development.

Applicant’'s This land use application includes all required fees, forms and documentation for
Findings: review of the Planned Unit Development and Conditional Use Permit requests.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



This standard is met.

C. Type lll Review and Decision Criteria. Preliminary plan consideration shall be reviewed
through the Type Ill procedure. Decisions shall include review and recognition of the potential
impact of the entire development, and preliminary approval shall include written affirmative

findings that:

1. The proposed development is consistent with standards, plans, policies and ordinances
adopted by the city; and

Applicant’'s
Findings:

As described in this narrative, the proposed development is consistent with
standards, plans, policies and ordinances adopted by the City.

This standard is met.

2. The proposed development’s general design and character, including but not limited to
anticipated building locations, bulk and height, location and distribution of recreation
space, parking, roads, access and other uses, will be reasonably compatible with
appropriate development of abutting properties and the surrounding neighborhood;

and

Applicant’'s
Findings:

The proposed PUD includes medium lot and large lot single-family detached homes
at the edge of the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. The single-family lot
neighborhood is reasonably compatible with the abutting properties and
surrounding neighborhood, which is more rural in character, due to the larger lots
provided in the proposed neighborhood. A higher density of housing than what is
proposed would be less compatible with the abutting properties at the subject site.
The homes on the site will all be designed and constructed so as to provide a cohesive
design and character to the entire development. The distribution of homes, open
space, parking, roads, access and other uses is reasonably compatible with the
appropriate development of abutting properties and the surrounding neighborhood.

This standard is met.

3. Public services and facilities are available to serve the proposed development. If such
public services and facilities are not at present available, an affirmative finding may be
made under this criterion if the evidence indicates that the public services and facilities
will be available prior to need by reason of:

a.
b.

Public facility planning by the appropriate agencies; or

A commitment by the applicant to provide private services and facilities
adequate to accommodate the projected demands of the project; or
Commitment by the applicant to provide for offsetting all added public costs or
early commitment of public funds made necessary by the development; and

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Applicant’s Public services and facilities are either available to serve the proposed development

Findings: or can be reasonably conditioned to be installed and provided. The public
improvement plans included with the land use submittal demonstrate full public
facilities will be provided, including water, sanitary sewer, storm sewetr, electricity and
potentially natural gas. Public services are currently available to serve this site,
including police, fire, garbage/recycling, and US Mail.

This standard is met.
4. The provisions and conditions of this code have been met; and

Applicant’s As discussed in detail in this narrative, the provisions and conditions of this code have
Findings: been met.

This standard is met.

5. Proposed buildings, roads, and other uses are designed and sited to ensure
preservation of features, and other unique or worthwhile natural features and to
prevent soil erosion or flood hazard; and

Applicant’s The buildings, roads and other site features are located so as to preserve the stream
Findings: corridor adjacent to the site and to prevent soil erosion or flood hazard.

This standard is met.

6. There will be adequate on-site provisions for utility services, emergency vehicular
access, and, where appropriate, public transportation facilities; and

Applicant’s The site is well provisioned for utility services, emergency vehicular access and, if the

Findings: opportunity arises in the future, public transportation facilities. The public roadways
are designed to public street standards. The application includes a letter from
Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue indicating that the streets are adequate for emergency
vehicle access.

This standard is met.
7. Sufficient usable recreation facilities, outdoor living area, open space, and parking

areas will be conveniently and safely accessible for use by residents of the proposed
development; and

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Applicant’'s The proposed single-family housing has outdoor living areas located on individual
Findings: lots and garages and driveways that provide convenient and safely accessible parking
areas for use by residents.

This standard is met.

8. Proposed buildings, structures, and uses will be arranged, designed, and constructed so
as to take into consideration the surrounding area in terms of access, building scale,
bulk, design, setbacks, heights, coverage, landscaping and screening, and to assure
reasonable privacy for residents of the development and surrounding properties.

Applicant’s This site has been designed to reflect the surrounding area and to provide a

Findings: reasonable level of privacy for residents of the development and surrounding
properties. Large lot single-family detached dwellings are proposed throughout the
proposed PUD, which is a moderate transition from unincorporated county
properties to residential urban densities as required by this code. The site as a whole
is designed to provide safe and convenient access. The building scale, bulk, design,
setbacks, heights, coverage, and landscaping are designed to provide harmony within
the site while respecting and reflecting design patterns utilized in other nearby
properties.

This standard is met.

D. Conditions. Applications may be approved subject to conditions necessary to fulfill the
purpose and provisions of these regulations.

Applicant’'s The Applicant acknowledges the possibility of conditions imposed to fulfill the

Findings: purpose and provisions of the PUD regulations. However, based on the findings
identified in this narrative, the Applicant finds the proposal in full compliance with
the PUD standards.

This standard is met.

15.240.040 Final plan consideration - Step two.

A. Application. An application, with the required fee, for final plan approval shall be submitted
in accordance with the provisions of this code, and must be in compliance with all conditions
imposed and schedules previously prescribed.

B. Referral. Referral of final plans and supportive material shall be provided to appropriate
agencies and departments.

C. Decision Type | Procedure. The final plan consideration shall be reviewed through the Type |
procedure. Upon receipt of the application and fee, final plans and required supportive
material, the director shall approve, conditionally approve or deny the application for final
plan approval. The decision of the director to approve or deny the application shall be based
on written findings of compliance or noncompliance with approved preliminary plans and city

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.




standards, plans, policies and ordinances. Minor variations from approved preliminary plans
may be permitted if consistent with the general character of the approved preliminary plans.
D. Conditions. Applications may be approved subject to such conditions as are necessary to
fulfill the purpose and provisions of this code.

E. Performance Agreement.

1.

Preparation and Signatures. A duly notarized performance agreement binding the
applicant, and the applicant’s successors in interest, assuring construction and
performance in accordance with the approved final plans shall be prepared by the city
and executed by the applicant and city prior to issuance of a building permit.

Return. Unless an executed copy of the agreement is returned to the director within 60
days of its delivery to the applicant, final plan approval shall expire, necessitating the
reapplication for final plan reapproval.

Filing. The director shall file a memorandum of the performance agreement with the
Yambhill County recorder.

Improvement Petitions and Dedications. Improvement petitions and all documents
required with respect to dedications and easements shall be submitted prior to
completion of the agreement.

Project Changes. The director may permit project changes subsequent to execution of
the agreement upon finding the changes substantially conform to final approved plans
and comply with city standards, plans, policies and ordinances. Other modifications are
subject to reapplication at the appropriate step.

Compliance. Compliance with this section is a prerequisite to the issuance of a building
permit.

Applicant’'s The Applicant acknowledges the process for Step Two of a PUD review.
Findings:

This standard is met.

15.300 ZONING DISTRICTS
15.305 ZONING USE TABLE

Use ‘ R-1 ‘ R-3 Notes and Special Use Standards
Residential Uses
Dwelling, P(2) P(3) Subject to lot or development site
single-family area requirements of NMC 15.405.010
detached

Notes.

(2) Limited to one per lot as a permitted use. More than one per lot allowed only through a
conditional use permit or planned unit development, subject to density limits of NMC
15.405.010(B).

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



(3) Permitted on individual lots created prior to November 17, 1992. Homes on individual lots
created on or after November 17, 1992, will only be permitted through the planned unit
development process.

Applicant’'s The proposed PUD will include single-family detached residential development in the

Findings: R-1 and R-3 zones. The individual lots where single-family homes will be located are
being created after November 17, 1992, therefore the PUD development process is
being followed. The applicable Development Standards of NMC 15.415.010 are
addressed in this narrative.

The single-family detached homes will be located on individual lots per Note (2). Not
more than one dwelling per lot is proposed, therefore a conditional use permit or
planned unit development for this is requested.

This standard is met.

15.340 AIRPORT OVERLAY (AO) SUBDISTRICT

15.340.010 Purpose.

A. In order to carry out the provisions of this airport overlay subdistrict, there are created and
established certain zones which include all of the land lying beneath the airport imaginary
surfaces as they apply to Sportsman Airpark in Yamhill County. Such zones are shown on the
current airport overlay zone map and the displaced threshold approach surface map, prepared
by the Newberg engineering department (see Appendix B, Maps 2 and 3).

Applicant’'s  The subject property is shown in the mapped Airport Conical Surface overlay. No
Findings: standards of this section are applicable to the proposed development.

15.342 STREAM CORRIDOR OVERLAY (SC) SUBDISTRICT

15.342.020 Where these regulations apply.

The regulations of this chapter apply to the portion of any lot or development site which is
within an SC overlay subdistrict. Unless specifically exempted by NMC 15.342.040, these
regulations apply to the following:

A. New structures, additions, accessory structures, decks, addition of concrete or other
impervious surfaces;

B. Any action requiring a development permit by this code;

C. Changing of topography by filling or grading;

D. Installation or expansion of utilities including but not limited to phone, cable TV, electrical,
wastewater, storm drain, water or other utilities;

E. Installation of pathways, bridges, or other physical improvements which alter the lands
within the stream corridor overlay subdistrict.

Applicant’'s  No new structures are being proposed within the Stream Corridor, but a grading
Findings: permit will be obtained, and a Type Il application for Modifications within the Stream

Corridor will be submitted to the City for review.

This standard is met.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



15.342.030 General information.

The delineated stream corridor overlay subdistrict is described by boundary lines delineated
on the City of Newberg zoning map indicated with an SC symbol. The boundaries of the SC areas
were established by an ecologist analyzing several environmental values including erosion
potential, wildlife habitat, riparian water quality protection, floodplain water quality
protection, natural condition, and ecological integrity. This information is contained in more
detail in a document titled “City of Newberg, Stream Corridors as a Goal 5 Resource.” This
document includes a Goal 5 ESEE (economic, social, environment and energy consequences)
analysis and was the basis for the preparation of this chapter. The boundaries of the SC overlay
subdistrict are typically located at a logical top of bank, or where no obvious top of bank exists,
are located at a distance 50 feet from the edge of the wetland.

Applicant’'s  The location of the steam corridor on the subject property is shown on the City of
Findings: Newberg zoning map.

15.342.040 Activities exempt from these regulations.
[Details of the exempt activities are omitted for brevity.]

Applicant’'s  The applicant is not proposing any exempt activities with this application and
Findings: therefore, the thresholds of this section are not applicable.

15.342.070 Activities requiring a Type Il process.
The installation, construction or relocation of the following improvements shall be processed
as a Type Il decision. The proposal shall be accompanied by a plan as identified in NMC
15.342.080 and conform to the mitigation standards contained in NMC 15.342.090.
A. Public or private street crossings, sidewalks, pathways, and other transportation
improvements that generally cross the stream corridor in a perpendicular manner.
B. Bridges and other transportation improvements that bridge the wetland area.
C. Railroad trackage crossings over the SC overlay subdistrict that bridge the wetland area.
D. Water, wastewater, and stormwater systems already listed within approved City of Newberg
master infrastructure plans.
E. New single-family or duplex dwellings which meet all of the following requirements:
1. The lot was created prior to December 4, 1996, is currently vacant, has at least 75
percent of the land area located within the SC overlay subdistrict and has less than
5,000 square feet of buildable land located outside the SC overlay subdistrict.
2. No more than one single-family or duplex dwelling and its expansion is permitted on
the property, which shall occupy a coverage area not to exceed 1,500 square feet in
area.
3. The single-family or duplex dwelling shall be sited in a location which minimizes the
impacts to the stream corridor.
4. The improvements and other work are not located within the 100-year flood
boundary.
F. Reduced front yard setback. Properties within the SC subdistrict may reduce the front yard
setback for single-family or duplex dwellings or additions where the following requirements
are met:
1. The reduction in the front yard setback will allow no less than five feet between the
property line and the proposed structure.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



2. The reduction in the setback will allow the footprint of the proposed dwelling or
addition to be located entirely out of the SC overlay subdistrict.
3. Two 20-foot-deep off-street parking spaces can be provided which do not project into
the street right-of-way.
4. Maximum coverage within the stream corridor subdistrict shall not exceed 1,500
square feet.
G. Temporary construction access associated with authorized Type Il uses. The disturbed area
associated with temporary construction access shall be restored pursuant to NMC 15.342.090.
H. Grading and fill for recreational uses and activities, which shall include revegetation, and
which do not involve the construction of structures or impervious surfaces.
I. Public parks.
J. Stream corridor enhancement activities which are reasonably expected to enhance stream
corridor resource values and generally follow the restoration standards in NMC 15.342.060.

Applicant’'s  The Applicant proposes stream corridor enhancement activities that are reasonably

Findings: expected to enhance stream corridor resource values and generally follow the
restoration standards in NMC 15.342.060. A Type Il application for Modifications
within the Stream Corridor will be submitted to the City for review. All other findings
will be addressed in that application and related narrative.

This standard is met.

15.400 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS
15.405 LOT REQUIREMENTS
15.405.010 Minimum and maximum lot area.
A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown below
except as otherwise permitted by this code:
1. IntheR-1, R-2, R-3, R-P and AR districts, the following minimum lot area standards apply:

Zone Minimum lot area for single family
R-1 5,000 SF
R-3 2,500 SF

Applicant’'s The proposed PUD will meet the minimum lot area for single family dwellings for

Findings: both the R-1 and R-3 zones on the subject property. The lot sizes proposed in each
of the zones on the subject site are demonstrated on the Proposed Zoning Map
(Sheet C201) provided in Appendix E.

This standard is met.

B. Maximum Lot or Development Site Area per Dwelling Unit.
1. In the R-1 district, the average size of lots in a subdivision intended for single-family
development shall not exceed 10,000 square feet.
4. In the R-3 district, lots or development sites in excess of 15,000 square feet used for
multiple single-family, duplex, triplex, quadplex, multifamily dwellings or cottage

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



cluster projects shall be developed at a minimum of one dwelling per 2,500 square feet

lot area.
C. In calculating lot area for this section, lot area does not include land within public or private
streets. In calculating lot area for maximum lot area/minimum density requirements, lot area
does not include land within stream corridors, land reserved for public parks or open spaces,
commons buildings, land for preservation of natural, scenic, or historic resources, land on
slopes exceeding 15 percent or for avoidance of identified natural hazards, land in shared
access easements, public walkways, or entirely used for utilities, land held in reserve in
accordance with a future development plan, or land for uses not appurtenant to the residence.

Applicant’'s The proposed PUD includes lot in the R-1 and R-3 zones. The standards for a PUD
Findings: are discussed previously within this narrative.

The proposed lots in the R-1 zone contains lots greater than 5,000 square feet with
an average lot size that will not exceed 10,000 square feet. All lots in the R-1 zone
exceed the minimum lot size requirement.

The proposed lots in the R-3 zone contains lots of greater than 2,500 square feet for
single-family dwellings. All lots in the R-3 zone exceed the minimum lot size

requirement.

None of the lots proposed on the R-3 zoned lands will exceed 15,000 square feet,
and therefore they do not meet the definition of a “development site".

The lots have the following size and density range:

Zoning Largest Lot Smallest Lot Average Lot Size
R-1 7,987 square feet 5,022 square feet 5,619 square feet
R-3 4,493 square feet 4,033 square feet 4,216 square feet

These standards are met.

D. Lot size averaging is allowed for any subdivision. Some lots may be under the minimum lot
size required in the zone where the subdivision is located, as long as the average size of all lots
is at least the minimum lot size.

Applicant’'s No lots are proposed to be under the minimum lot size for the R-1 and R-3 zones,

Findings: therefore lot size averaging is not required. The average size of all R-1 lots proposed
in the PUD is 5,619 square feet, and the average lot size of all R-3 lots proposed is
4,216 square feet.

This standard is met.

15.405.020 Lot area exceptions.

The following shall be exceptions to the required lot areas:
The following shall be exceptions to the required lot areas:

A. Lots of record with less than the area required by this code.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



B. Lots or development sites which, as a process of their creation, were approved in accordance
with this code.

C. Planned unit developments, provided they conform to requirements for planned unit
development approval.

Applicant’s This proposal complies with subsection A, because the one lot that is smaller than

Findings: the minimum requirement is “less than the area required by this code”. This proposal
also complies with subsection C of this section because this is a proposed Planned
Unit Development. This narrative demonstrates compliance to all PUD approval
standards.

This standard is met.

15.405.030 Lot dimensions and frontage.
A. Width. Widths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code.

Applicant’s All proposed lots satisfy the width criterion of this code.
Findings:
This standard is met.

B. Depth to Width Ratio. Each lot and parcel shall have an average depth between the front and
rear lines of not more than two and one-half times the average width between the side lines.
Depths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. Development of lots under 15,000
square feet are exempt from the lot depth to width ratio requirement.

Applicant’s All proposed lots are under 15,000 square feet, and are therefore exempt from the
Findings: lot depth to width ration requirement.

This standard is met.

C. Area. Lot sizes shall conform to standards set forth in this code. Lot area calculations shall
not include area contained in public or private streets as defined by this code.

Applicant’'s All proposed lot sizes conform to standards set forth in this code as demonstrated in
Findings: this narrative.

This standard is met.

D. Frontage.
1. No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot frontage standards:
a. Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public street for a
distance of at least 25 feet or have access to a public street through an easement
that is at least 25 feet wide. No new private streets, as defined in NMC 15.05.030,
shall be created to provide frontage or access except as allowed by NMC
15.240.020(L)(2).

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



b. Each lot in R-2 zone shall have a minimum width of 25 feet at the front building line
and R-3 zone shall have a minimum width of 30 feet at the front building line, except
that duplex, triplex, quadplex and cottage cluster project lots in the R-3 zone shall
have a minimum width of 25 feet at the front building line.

c. Each lot in R-1 zone shall have a minimum width of 35 feet at the front building line
and Al or RP shall have a minimum width of 50 feet at the front building line.

d. Each lot in an AR zone shall have a minimum width of 45 feet at the front building
line.

2. The above standards apply with the following exceptions:

a. Lots for townhouse dwellings in any zone where they are permitted shall have a
minimum frontage on a public street for a distance of at least 20 feet, shall have a
minimum width of 20 feet at the front building line and shall have access meeting
the provisions of NMC 15.415.050.B.

b. Legally created lots of record in existence prior to the effective date of the
ordinance codified in this code.

c. Lots or development sites which, as a process of their creation, were approved with
sub-standard widths in accordance with provisions of this code.

d. Existing private streets may not be used for new dwelling units, except private
streets that were created prior to March 1, 1999, including paving to fire access
roads standards and installation of necessary utilities, and private streets allowed
in the airport residential and airport industrial districts. However, existing single-
family detached dwellings on existing private streets may be converted to duplex,
triplex, or quadplex dwellings.

Applicant’'s The Applicant is requesting a modification to the lot frontage standard D.1.a. for lots

Findings: 12, 82 and 83. Lot 12 is proposed with a 20.1 foot wide access to a public street, as
shown on the Tentative Plat Il (Sheet C152), provided in Appendix E. The Applicant is
requesting the modification for the approval of a 20.1 foot wide access to a public
street.

Lots 82 and 83 are proposed with a shared access to a public street that is 20 feet
wide in total as shown on the Tentative Plat Ill (Sheet C153), provided in Appendix E.
The Applicant is requesting the modification for the approval of a 20 foot wide access
to a public street. This modification request is consistent with the PUD modification
standards and is proposed in accordance with the provisions of this code.

All other lots meet the requirements of this section for minimum frontage, and all
lots meet the requirements for width at the front building line for the R-1 and R-3
zoned lots. Compliance is demonstrated on the Tentative Plats (sheets C151 through
C154) on the Land Use Plans provided in Appendix E.

All streets created as part of this PUD proposal are public streets that will conform to
the above-mentioned criteria related to frontage requirements. No private streets
are proposed with this application.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



This standard is met.

15.405.040 Lot coverage and parking coverage requirements.
A. Purpose. The lot coverage and parking coverage requirements below are intended to:
1. Limit the amount of impervious surface and storm drain runoff on residential lots.
2. Provide open space and recreational space on the same lot for occupants of that lot.
3. Limit the bulk of residential development to that appropriate in the applicable zone.
B. Residential uses in residential zones shall meet the following maximum lot coverage and
parking coverage standards however, cottage cluster projects shall be exempt from the
standards. See the definitions in NMC 15.05.030 and Appendix A, Figure 4.
1. Maximum Lot Coverage.
a. R-1:40 percent, except;
i. 50 percent if all structures on the lot are one story; and
ii. 60 percent for townhouse dwellings
b. R-2 and RP: 60 percent.
c. AR and R-3: 60 percent.
2. Maximum Parking Coverage. R-1, R-2, R-3, and RP: 30 percent.
3. Combined Maximum Lot and Parking Coverage.
a. R-1:60 percent.
b. R-2, R-3 and RP and townhouse dwellings in R-1: 70 percent.
C. All other districts and uses not listed in subsection (B) of this section shall not be limited as
to lot coverage and parking coverage except as otherwise required by this code.

Applicant’'s The proposed residential lots within the R-1 zones in the PUD range in size from 5,022

Findings: square feet to 7,987 square feet with an average lot size of 5,619 square feet. The
maximum permitted lot coverage within the R-1 zoning district is 40 percent for two
story homes or 50 percent for single story homes.

17 out of the 64 homes in the R-1 zone will be one story homes, which will meet the
50 percent maximum lot coverage, and combined 60 percent maximum lot and
parking coverage.

The remaining 47 homes proposed in the R-1 zone will be two stories and the
anticipated lot coverage will be more than the stated maximum of 40 percent for a
majority of the proposed lots. Therefore, the Applicant is requesting a modification
to lot coverage maximums under the PUD criteria. The Applicant is proposing that
the maximum lot coverage in the R-1 zones on the site be 50 percent for structures.
With the approval of this modification to the standard, the combined maximum lot
and parking coverage on the R-1 zoned lots will still not exceed the 60 percent
combined maximum, as the driveways on these lots will be approximately 400 square
feet. Building footprints and overall lot coverage can be verified at the time of building
permit issuance.

The R-3 lots range in size between 4,030 square feet and 4,493 square feet with an
average lot size of 4,216 square feet. The maximum permitted lot coverage in the R-
3 zone is 60 percent no matter the number of stories of the home. The anticipated

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



coverage for these lots will be less than the stated maximum. The total lot coverage
on the R-3 zoned lots will not exceed 70 percent, as driveways on these lots will be
approximately 400 square feet. Building footprints and overall lot coverage can be
verified at the time of building permit issuance.

This standard is met.

15.410 YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

15.410.010 General yard regulations.

A. No yard or open space provided around any building for the purpose of complying with the
provisions of this code shall be considered as providing a yard or open space for any other
building.

B. No yard or open space on adjoining property shall be considered as providing required yard
or open space for another lot or development site under the provisions of this code.

C. No front yards provided around any building for the purpose of complying with the
regulations of this code shall be used for public or private parking areas or garages, or other
accessory buildings, except as specifically provided elsewhere in this code.

D. When the common property line separating two or more contiguous lots is covered by a
building or a permitted group of buildings with respect to such common property line or lines
does not fully conform to the required yard spaces on each side of such common property line
or lines, such lots shall constitute a single development site and the yards as required by this
code shall then not apply to such common property lines.

E. Dwellings Where Permitted above Nonresidential Buildings. The front and interior yard
requirements for residential uses shall not be applicable; provided, that all yard requirements
for the district in which such building is located are complied with.

F. In the Al airport industrial district, clear areas, safety areas, object-free areas, taxiways,
parking aprons, and runways may be counted as required yards for a building, even if located
upon an adjacent parcel.

G. In the AR airport residential district, clear areas, safety areas, object-free areas, taxiways,
parking aprons, and runways may be counted as required yards for a building, if located upon
an adjacent parcel.

15.410.020 Front yard setback.
A. Residential (see Appendix A, Figure 10).

1. AR, R-1 and R-2 districts shall have a front yard of not less than 15 feet. Said yard shall
be landscaped and maintained.

2. R-3 and RP districts shall have a front yard of not less than 12 feet. Said yard shall be
landscaped and maintained.

3. The entrance to a garage or carport, whether or not attached to a dwelling, shall be set
back at least 20 feet from the nearest property line of the street to which access will be
provided. However, the foregoing setback requirement shall not apply where the
garage or carport will be provided with access to an alley only.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



4. Cottage cluster projects in any zone in which they are permitted shall have a front yard
of not less than 10 feet. Any garage, carport, or parking areas that are part of a cottage
cluster shall be set back at least 20 feet from the nearest property line of the street to
which access will be provided. However, the foregoing setback requirement shall not
apply where the garage or carport will be provided with access to an alley only.

15.410.030 Interior yard setback.
A. Residential.
1. Alllots or development sites in the AR, R-1, R-2 and R-3 districts shall have interior yards
of not less than five feet, except that where a utility easement is recorded adjacent to
a side lot line, there shall be a side yard no less than the width of the easement.
2. Alllots or development sites in the RP district shall have interior yards of not less than
eight feet.
3. All lots with townhouse dwellings shall have no minimum interior yard setback where
units are attached.

Applicant’'s The proposed homes in the R-1 and R-3 zones will meet all front and interior yard
Findings: setback requirements. Building footprints yard setbacks can be verified at the time
of building permit issuance.

This standard is met.

15.410.060 Vision clearance setback.

The following vision clearance standards shall apply in all zones (see Appendix A, Figure 9).

A. At the intersection of two streets, including private streets, a triangle formed by the
intersection of the curb lines, each leg of the vision clearance triangle shall be a minimum of
50 feet in length.

B. At the intersection of a private drive and a street, a triangle formed by the intersection of
the curb lines, each leg of the vision clearance triangle shall be a minimum of 25 feet in length.
C. Vision clearance triangles shall be kept free of all visual obstructions from two and one-half
feet to nine feet above the curb line. Where curbs are absent, the edge of the asphalt or future
curb location shall be used as a guide, whichever provides the greatest amount of vision
clearance.

D. There is no vision clearance requirement within the commercial zoning district(s) located
within the riverfront (RF) overlay subdistrict.

Applicant’'s The proposed development maintains all required vision clearance setbacks, as
Findings: demonstrated on the submitted Land Use Plans provided in Appendix E.

This standard is met.

15.410.070 Yard exceptions and permitted intrusions into required yard setbacks.
The following intrusions may project into required yards to the extent and under the
conditions and limitations indicated:

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.




A. Depressed Areas. In any district, open work fences, hedges, guard railings or other
landscaping or architectural devices for safety protection around depressed ramps, stairs or
retaining walls may be located in required yards; provided, that such devices are not more than
three and one-half feet in height.
B. Accessory Buildings. In front yards on through lots, where a through lot has a depth of not
more than 140 feet, accessory buildings may be located in one of the required front yards;
provided, that every portion of such accessory building is not less than 10 feet from the nearest
street line.
C. Projecting Building Features. The following building features may project into the required
front yard no more than five feet and into the required interior yards no more than two feet;
provided, that such projections are no closer than three feet to any interior lot line:
1. Eaves, cornices, belt courses, sills, awnings, buttresses or other similar features.
2. Chimneys and fireplaces, provided they do not exceed eight feet in width.
3. Porches, platforms or landings which do not extend above the level of the first floor of
the building.
4. Mechanical structures (heat pumps, air conditioners, emergency generators and
pumps).
D. Fences and Walls.
1. Inthe residential district, a fence or wall shall be permitted to be placed at the property
line or within a yard setback as follows:

a. Not to exceed six feet in height. Located or maintained within the required interior
yards. For purposes of fencing only, lots that are corner lots or through lots may
select one of the street frontages as a front yard and all other yards shall be
considered as interior yards, allowing the placement of a six-foot fence on the
property line. In no case may a fence extend into the clear vision zone as defined in
NMC 15.410.060.

b. Notto exceed four feet in height. Located or maintained within all other front yards.

2. In any commercial, industrial, or mixed employment district, a fence or wall shall be
permitted to be placed at the property line or within a yard setback as follows:

a. Not to exceed eight feet in height. Located or maintained in any interior yard
except where the requirements of vision clearance apply. For purposes of
fencing only, lots that are corner lots or through lots may select one of the street
frontages as a front yard and all other yards shall be considered as interior
yards, allowing the placement of an eight-foot fence on the property line.

b. Not to exceed four feet in height. Located or maintained within all other front
yards.

3. If chain link (wire-woven) fences are used, they are manufactured of corrosion-proof
materials of at least 11-1/2 gauge.
4. The requirements of vision clearance shall apply to the placement of fences.

Applicant’'s The Applicant acknowledges permitted intrusions into required yard setbacks. The
Findings: fences surrounding the single-family residential homes in the R-1 and R-3 zoning
areas will not exceed six feet in height and will be made of wood. Several retaining

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



walls will be installed to protect the future homes. The location of the proposed
retaining walls is demonstrated on the Grading Plan (Sheet C210) provided in
Appendix E. Fencing surrounding the storm pond will be chain link, manufactured of
corrosion-proof materials of at least 11-1/2 gauge, and will be 4-feet in height. No
fence exceeding four feet in height will be placed in a front yard setback.

This standard is met.

E. Parking and Service Drives (Also Refer to NMC 15.440.010 through 15.440.080).

In any district, service drives or accessways providing ingress and egress shall be
permitted, together with any appropriate traffic control devices in any required yard.
In any residential district, public or private parking areas and parking spaces shall not
be permitted in any required yard except as provided herein:

1.

3.

a.

Required parking spaces shall be permitted on service drives in the required
front yard in conjunction with any single-family, duplex dwelling, triplex
dwelling, quadplex dwelling, or townhouse dwelling on a single lot.
Recreational vehicles, boat trailers, camperettes and all other vehicles not in
daily use are restricted to parking in the front yard setback for not more than
48 hours; and recreational vehicles, boat trailers, camperettes and all other
vehicles not in daily use are permitted to be located in the required interior
yards.

Public or private parking areas, parking spaces or any building or portion of any
building intended for parking which have been identified as a use permitted in
any residential district shall be permitted in any interior yard that abuts an
alley, provided said parking areas, structures or spaces shall comply with NMC
15.440.070, Parking tables and diagrams (Diagrams 1 through 3).

Public or private parking areas, service drives or parking spaces which have
been identified as a use permitted in any residential district shall be permitted
in interior yards; provided, that said parking areas, service drives or parking
spaces shall comply with other requirements of this code.

In any commercial or industrial district, except C-1, C-4, M-1, and M-E, public or private
parking areas or parking spaces shall be permitted in any required yard (see NMC
15.410.030). Parking requirements in the C-4 district and the M-E district within the
riverfront overlay subdistrict are described in NMC 15.352.040(H).

In the | district, public or private parking areas or parking spaces may be no closer to a
front property line than 20 feet, and no closer to an interior property line than five feet.
F. Public Telephone Booths and Public Transit Shelters. Public telephone booths and public
transit shelters shall be permitted; provided, that vision clearance is maintained for vehicle

requirements for vision clearance.

G. Hangars within the AR airport residential district may be constructed with no yard setbacks
to property lines adjacent to other properties within the airport residential or airport
industrial districts.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Applicant’s Parking is proposed on each individual single-family designated private lot in
Findings: driveways and garages. Each lot will have between two and four parking spaces per

home within the garages and driveways of the single-family homes. The location of
the proposed parking areas meets the requirements of this standard.

This standard is met.

15.415 BUILDING AND SITE DESIGN STANDARDS

15.415.010 Main buildings and uses as accessory buildings.

A. Hereinafter, any building which is the only building on a lot is a main building.

B. In any residential district except RP, there shall be only one main use per lot or development
site; provided, that home occupations shall be allowed where permitted.

C. In any residential district, there shall be no more than two accessory buildings on any lot or
development site.

15.415.020 Building height limitation.

A. Residential.

1. In the R-1 district, no main building shall exceed 30 feet in height, except that
townhouse dwellings shall not exceed 35 feet in height.

2. Inthe R-2, AR, and RP districts, no main building shall exceed 35 feet in height.

3. In the R-3 district, no main building shall exceed 45 feet in height, except, where an R-3
district abuts upon an R-1 district, the maximum permitted building height shall be
limited to 30 feet for a distance of 50 feet from the abutting boundary of the
aforementioned district.

4. Accessory buildings in the R-1, R-2, R-3, AR, and RP districts are limited to 16 feet in
height, except as follows:

a. Up to 800 square feet of an accessory building may have a height of up to 24 feet.
b. Aircraft hangars in the AR district may be the same height as the main building.

5. No cottage cluster dwelling shall exceed 25 feet in height in any zone where the use is
permitted.

6. Single-family dwellings permitted in commercial or industrial districts shall not exceed

35 feet in height, or the maximum height permitted in the zone, whichever is less.

Applicant’'s The single-family homes in the R-1 zone will have a maximum height of 30 feet,
Findings: consistent with the requirements of the zone. The proposed single-family homes in

the R-3 zones will have a maximum height of 30 feet, consistent with the
requirements of the zone.

This standard is met.

C. The maximum height of buildings and uses permitted conditionally shall be stated in the
conditional use permits.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Applicant’'s The proposed application does not include a conditional use permit. This standard
Findings: is not applicable.

15.415.040 Public access required.

No building or structure shall be erected or altered except on a lot fronting or abutting on a
public street or having access to a public street over a private street or easement of record
approved in accordance with provisions contained in this code. New private streets may not
be created to provide access except as allowed under NMC 15.332.020(B)(24), 15.336.020(B)(8),
and in the M-4 zone. Existing private streets may not be used for access for new dwelling units,
except as allowed under NMC 15.405.030. No building or structure shall be erected or altered
without provisions for access roadways as required in the Oregon Fire Code, as adopted by the
city.

Applicant’s All proposed residential structures will have direct access to a public street. The

Findings: Applicant has obtained a Service Provider Letter (SPL) from Tualatin Valley Fire and
Rescue indicating that the proposed development has been reviewed and approved
by the Fire Marshall or Designee. A copy of the SPL has been submitted with this
application within Appendix D.

This standard is met.

15.420 LANDSCAPING AND OUTDOOR AREAS
15.420.010 Required minimum standards.
A. Private and Shared Outdoor Recreation Areas in Residential Developments.

1. Private Areas. Each ground-level living unit in a residential development subject to a
design review plan approval shall have an accessible outdoor private space of not less
than 48 square feet in area. The area shall be enclosed, screened or otherwise designed
to provide increased privacy for unit residents, their guests and neighbors.

2. Individual and Shared Areas. Usable outdoor recreation space shall be provided for the
individual and/or shared use of residents and their guests in any multifamily residential
development, as follows:

a. One- or two-bedroom units: 200 square feet per unit.

b. Three- or more bedroom units: 300 square feet per unit.

c. Storage areas are required in residential developments. Convenient areas shall be
provided in residential developments for the storage of articles such as bicycles,
barbecues, luggage, outdoor furniture, and the like. These shall be entirely
enclosed.

3. In the AR airport residential district a five percent landscaping standard is required
with the goal of “softening” the buildings and making the development “green” with
plants, where possible. The existence of the runway, taxiway, and approach open areas
already provide generally for the 15 percent requirement.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Applicant’'s Each single-family home within the neighborhood will have a minimum of 48 square
Findings: feet of private outdoor open space. Private open space areas can be verified at the
time of building permit issuance.

This standard is met.

B. Required Landscaped Area. The following landscape requirements are established for all
developments except single-family detached dwellings, duplex dwellings, triplex dwellings,
quadplex dwellings, townhouse dwellings and cottage cluster projects:

Applicant’'s The proposed single-family detached dwellings are exempt from these
Findings: requirements.

15.420.020 Landscaping and amenities in public rights-of-way.
The following standards are intended to create attractive streetscapes and inviting pedestrian
spaces. A review body may require any of the following landscaping and amenities to be placed
in abutting public rights-of-way as part of multifamily, commercial, industrial, or institutional
design reviews, or for subdivisions and planned unit developments. In addition, any entity
improving existing rights-of-way should consider including these elements in the project. A
decision to include any amenity shall be based on comprehensive plan guidelines, pedestrian
volumes in the area, and the nature of surrounding development.
A. Pedestrian Space Landscaping. Pedestrian spaces shall include all sidewalks and medians
used for pedestrian refuge. Spaces near sidewalks shall provide plant material for cooling and
dust control, and street furniture for comfort and safety, such as benches, waste receptacles
and pedestrian-scale lighting. These spaces should be designed for short-term as well as long-
term use. Elements of pedestrian spaces shall not obstruct sightlines and shall adhere to any
other required city safety measures. Medians used for pedestrian refuge shall be designed for
short-term use only with plant material for cooling and dust control, and pedestrian-scale
lighting. The design of these spaces shall facilitate safe pedestrian crossing with lighting and
accent paving to delineate a safe crossing zone visually clear to motorists and pedestrians
alike.

1. Street trees planted in pedestrian spaces shall be planted according to NMC

15.420.010(B)(4).
2. Pedestrian spaces shall have low (two and one-half feet) shrubs and ground covers for
safety purposes, enhancing visibility and discouraging criminal activity.

a. Plantings shall be 90 percent evergreen year-round, provide seasonal interest
with fall color or blooms, and at maturity maintain growth within the planting
area (refer to plant material matrix below).

b. Plant placement shall also adhere to clear sight line requirements as well as any
other relevant city safety measures.

3. Pedestrian-scale lighting shall be installed along sidewalks and in medians used for
pedestrian refuge.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Pole lights as well as bollard lighting may be specified; however, the amount and
type of pedestrian activity during evening hours, e.g., transit stops, nighttime
service districts, shall ultimately determine the type of fixture chosen.
Luminaire styles shall match the area/district theme of existing luminaires and
shall not conflict with existing building or roadway lights causing glare.
Lighting heights and styles shall be chosen to prevent glare and to designate a
clear and safe path and limit opportunities for vandalism (see Appendix A,
Figure 17, Typical Pedestrian Space Layouts).

Lighting shall be placed near the curb to provide maximum illumination for
spaces furthest from building illumination. Spacing shall correspond to that of
the street trees to prevent tree foliage from blocking light.

4. Street furniture such as benches and waste receptacles shall be provided for spaces
near sidewalks only.

a.

Furniture should be sited in areas with the heaviest pedestrian activity, such as
downtown, shopping districts, and shopping centers.

Benches should be arranged to facilitate conversation between individuals with
L-shaped arrangements and should face the area focal point, such as shops,
fountains, plazas, and should divert attention away from nearby traffic.

5. Paving and curb cuts shall facilitate safe pedestrian crossing and meet all ADA
requirements for accessibility.

Applicant’s
Findings:

The submitted Land Use Plans identify and demonstrate the landscaping proposed
on the site. Due to the residential nature of the site the public rights-of-way have
been provided with plantings. Landscaping and additional public amenities are
proposed in Tract A near Lot 100, which will include planted areas, bench seating, a
crushed rock pathway, and a shared amenity structure to be determined. The
Applicant is considering either a gazebo, a play structure, or a similar type of shared
amenity structure to be located in the area described on Planting Plan (Sheet L104)
in the Land Use Plans.

This standard is met.

B. Planting Strip Landscaping. All planting strips shall be landscaped. Planting strips provide a
physical and psychological buffer for pedestrians from traffic with plant material that reduces
heat and dust, creating a more comfortable pedestrian environment. Planting strips shall have
different arrangements and combinations of plant materials according to the frequency of on-
street parking (see Appendix A, Figures 18 and 19).

1. Planting strips which do not have adjacent parking shall have a combination of ground
covers, low (two and one-half feet) shrubs and trees. Planting strips adjacent to
frequently used on-street parking, as defined by city staff, shall only have trees
protected by tree grates, and planting strips adjacent to infrequently used on-street
parking shall be planted with ground cover as well as trees (see Appendix A, Figures 18
and 19, Typical Planting Strip Layouts). District themes or corridor themes linking
individual districts should be followed utilizing a unifying plant characteristic, e.g.,

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



bloom color, habit, or fall color. When specifying thematic plant material, monocultures
should be avoided, particularly those species susceptible to disease.

2. Street trees shall be provided in all planting strips as provided in NMC 15.420.010(B)(4).

a. Planting strips without adjacent parking or with infrequent adjacent parking
shall have street trees in conjunction with ground covers and/or shrubs.

b. Planting strips with adjacent parking used frequently shall have only street
trees protected by tree grates.

3. Shrubs and ground covers shall be provided in planting strips without adjacent parking
with low (two and one-half feet) planting masses to enhance visibility, discourage
criminal activity, and provide a physical as well as psychological buffer from passing
traffic.

a. Plantings shall be 90 percent evergreen year-round, provide seasonal interest
with fall color or blooms and at maturity maintain growth within the planting
area.

b. Ground cover able to endure infrequent foot traffic shall be used in combination
with street trees for planting strips with adjacent occasional parking (refer to
plant material matrix below).

c. All plant placement shall adhere to clear sight line requirements as well as any
other relevant city safety measures.

C. Maintenance. All landscapes shall be maintained for the duration of the planting to
encourage health of plant material as well as public health and safety. All street trees and
shrubs shall be pruned to maintain health and structure of the plant material for public safety
purposes.

Applicant’s As identified in the included landscaping plan, all planting strips will be landscaped

Findings: with a combination of ground covers, shrubs and trees. All landscaping will be
maintained for the duration of the planting and all street trees and shrubs will be
pruned to maintain the health and structure of the plants.

This standard is met.

D. Exception. In the Al airport industrial district and AR airport residential district, no
landscape or amenities except for grass are required for any area within 50 feet of aircraft
operation areas including aircraft parking areas, taxiways, clear areas, safety areas, object-
free areas, and the runway.

Applicant’'s This property is not in the Al or AR zone and, as such, this standard is not applicable.
Findings:

15.425 EXTERIOR LIGHTING

15.425.010 Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate the placement, orientation, distribution patterns,
and fixture types of on-site outdoor lighting. The intent of this section is to provide minimum

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



lighting standards that promote safety, utility, and security, prevent glare on public roadways,
and protect the privacy of residents.

15.425.020 Applicability and exemptions.

A. Applicability. Outdoor lighting shall be required for safety and personal security in areas of
assembly, parking, and traverse, as part of multifamily residential, commercial, industrial,
public, recreational and institutional uses. The applicant for any Type | or Type Il development
permit shall submit, as part of the site plan, evidence that the proposed outdoor lighting plan
will comply with this section. This information shall contain but not be limited to the following:

1.

2.

The location, height, make, model, lamp type, wattage, and proposed cutoff angle of
each outdoor lighting fixture.

Additional information the director may determine is necessary, including but not
limited to illuminance level profiles, hours of business operation, and percentage of site
dedicated to parking and access.

If any portion of the site is used after dark for outdoor parking, assembly or traverse,
an illumination plan for these areas is required. The plan must address safety and
personal security.

B. Exemptions. The following uses shall be exempt from the provisions of this section:

1.
2.
3.

Public street and airport lighting.

Circus, fair, carnival, or outdoor governmentally sponsored event or festival lighting.
Construction or emergency lighting, provided such lighting is discontinued immediately
upon completion of the construction work or abatement of the emergency
necessitating said lighting.

Temporary Lighting. In addition to the lighting otherwise permitted in this code, a lot
may contain temporary lighting during events as listed below:

a. Grand Opening Event. A grand opening is an event of up to 30 days in duration
within 30 days of issuance of a certificate of occupancy for a new or remodeled
structure, or within 30 days of change of business or ownership. No lot may have
more than one grand opening event per calendar year. The applicant shall notify
the city in writing of the beginning and ending dates prior to the grand opening
event.

b. Other Events. A lot may have two other events per calendar year. The events
may not be more than eight consecutive days in duration, nor less than 30 days
apart.

Lighting activated by motion sensor devices.

Nonconforming lighting in place as of September 5, 2000. Replacement of
nonconforming lighting is subject to the requirements of NMC 15.205.010 through
15.205.100.

Light Trespass onto Industrial Properties. The lighting trespass standards of NMC
15.425.040 do not apply where the light trespass would be onto an industrially zoned
property.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.


https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/defs.pl?def=141

Applicant’'s The land use submittal includes a photometrics plan demonstrating the proposed

Findings: street lighting on the site identifying the location, height, make, model, lamp type,
wattage, and proposed cutoff angle of each outdoor lighting fixture. The
Photometrics Plan (Sheet C250) is provided in Appendix E.

This standard is met.

15.425.030 Alternative materials and methods of construction, installation, or operation.

The provisions of this section are not intended to prevent the use of any design, material, or
methods of installation or operation not specifically prescribed by this section, provided any
such alternate has been approved by the director. Alternatives must be an approximate
equivalent to the applicable specific requirement of this section and must comply with all
other applicable standards in this section.

Applicant’'s This land use submittal does not include a request for alternative materials and
Findings: methods of construction, installation or operation.

This standard is met.

15.425.040 Requirements.
A. General Requirements - All Zoning Districts.

1. Low-level light fixtures include exterior lights which are installed between ground level
and six feet tall. Low-level light fixtures are considered nonintrusive and are
unrestricted by this code.

2. Medium-level light fixtures include exterior lights which are installed between six feet
and 15 feet above ground level. Medium-level light fixtures must either comply with the
shielding requirements of subsection (B) of this section, or the applicant shall show that
light trespass from a property has been designed not to exceed one-half foot-candle at
the property line.

3. High-level light fixtures include exterior lights which are installed 15 feet or more above
ground level. High-level light fixtures must comply with the shielding requirements of
subsection (B) of this section, and light trespass from a property may not exceed one-
half foot-candle at the property line.

B. Table of Shielding Requirements.

Fixture Lamp Type Shielded
Fully

Low/high pressure sodium, mercury vapor,
metal halide and fluorescent over 50 watts

Incandescent over 160 watts

Fully
Incandescent 160 watts or less None
Fossil fuel None
Any light source of 50 watts or less None

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Other sources As approved by NMC 15.425.030

Applicant’'s The land use submittal includes a lighting plan identifying the location, height, make,

Findings: model, lamp type, wattage, and proposed cutoff angle of each outdoor lighting
fixture. Lighting is provided for all proposed public streets. All lighting is designed to
meet the standards of this section.

This standard is met.

14.430 UNDERGROUND UTILITY INSTALLATION
15.430.010 Underground utility installation.
A. All new utility lines, including but not limited to electric, communication, natural gas, and
cable television transmission lines, shall be placed underground. This does not include surface-
mounted transformers, connections boxes, meter cabinets, service cabinets, temporary
facilities during construction, and high-capacity electric lines operating at 50,000 volts or
above.
B. Existing utility lines shall be placed underground when they are relocated, or when an
addition or remodel requiring a Type Il design review is proposed, or when a developed area is
annexed to the city.
C. The director may make exceptions to the requirement to underground utilities based on one
or more of the following criteria:

1. The cost of undergrounding the utility is extraordinarily expensive.

2. There are physical factors that make undergrounding extraordinarily difficult.

3. Existing utility facilities in the area are primarily overhead and are unlikely to be

changed.

Applicant’s All new utility lines will be located underground.
Findings:
This standard is met.

15.440 OFF-STREET PARKING, BICYCLE PARKING, AND PRIVATE WALKWAYS
Article I. Off-Street Parking Requirements
15.440.010 Required off-street parking.
A. Off-street parking shall be provided on the development site for all R-1, C-1, M-1, M-2 and M-
3 zones. In all other zones, the required parking shall be on the development site or within 400
feet of the development site which the parking is required to serve. All required parking must
be under the same ownership as the development site served except through special covenant
agreements as approved by the city attorney, which bind the parking to the development site.
1. In cases where the applicant is proposing off-street parking, refer to subsection (F) of
this section for the maximum number of parking spaces.
B. Off-street parking is required pursuant to NMC 15.440.030 in the C-2 district.
1. In cases where the applicant is proposing off-street parking, refer to subsection (F) of
this section for the maximum number of parking spaces.
C. Off-street parking is not required in the C-3 district, except for:

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15425.html#15.425.030

1. Dwelling units meeting the requirements noted in NMC 15.305.020.

2. New development which is either immediately adjacent to a residential district or
separated by nothing but an alley.

3. In cases where the applicant is proposing off-street parking, refer to subsection (F) of
this section for the maximum number of parking spaces.

Applicant’'s The proposed parking for the single-family homes will be on the same lot as the use.
Findings: There are no commercial, office or industrial developments proposed and, as such,
no carpool/vanpool parking spaces are required.

This standard is met.

15.440.020 Parking area and service drive design.

A. All public or private parking areas, parking spaces, or garages shall be designed, laid out and
constructed in accordance with the minimum standards as set forth in NMC 15.440.070.

B. Groups of three or more parking spaces, except those in conjunction with a single-family
detached dwelling, duplex dwelling, triplex dwelling, quadplex dwelling, townhouse dwelling
or cottage cluster project on a single lot, shall be served by a service drive so that no backward
movement or other maneuvering of a vehicle within a street, other than an alley, will be
required. Service drives shall be designed and constructed to facilitate the flow of traffic,
provide maximum safety in traffic access and egress and maximum safety of pedestrian and
vehicular traffic on the site, but in no case shall two-way and one-way service drives be less
than 20 feet and 12 feet, respectively. Service drives shall be improved in accordance with the
minimum standards as set forth in NMC 15.440.060.

C. Gates. A private drive or private street serving as primary access to more than one dwelling
unit shall not be gated to limit access, except as approved by variance.

D. In the Al airport industrial district and AR airport residential district, taxiways may be used
as part of the service drive design where an overall site plan is submitted that shows how the
circulation of aircraft and vehicles are safely accommodated, where security fences are
located, if required, and is approved by the fire marshal, planning director, and public works
director. The following submittal must be made:

1. A drawing of the area to be developed, including the probable location, height, and
description of structures to be constructed; the location and description of a security
fence or gate to secure the aircraft operations areas of off-airport property from the
other nonsecured pedestrian/auto/truck areas of on-airport property; the proposed
location of the proposed taxiway access in accordance with FAA specifications (refer to
Federal Aviation Administration Advisory Circular No. 150/5300-13 regarding airport
design, and AC/5370-10B regarding construction standards for specifications that
should be used as a guideline); and the identification of the vehicular traffic pattern
area clearly separated from aircraft traffic. Once specific buildings have been designed,
FAA Form 7460-1, Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, must be submitted to
the City of Newberg, the private airport owner, and the FAA for airspace review.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



15.440.030 Parking spaces required.

Use ‘ Minimum Parking Spaces Required
Residential Types
Dwelling, single-family 2 for each dwelling unit on a single lot

Applicant’s All single-family detached homes will have at least two parking spaces provided on
Findings: each lot, with car garages and driveways.

This standard is met.

15.440.060 Parking area and service drive improvements.
All public or private parking areas, outdoor vehicle sales areas, and service drives shall be
improved according to the following:
A. All parking areas and service drives shall have surfacing of asphaltic concrete or Portland
cement concrete or other hard surfacing such as brick or concrete pavers. Other durable and
dust-free surfacing materials may be approved by the director for infrequently used parking
areas. All parking areas and service drives shall be graded so as not to drain stormwater over
the public sidewalk or onto any abutting public or private property.
B. All parking areas shall be designed not to encroach on public streets, alleys, and other rights-
of-way. Parking areas shall not be placed in the area between the curb and sidewalk or, if there
is no sidewalk, in the public right-of-way between the curb and the property line. The director
may issue a permit for exceptions for unusual circumstances where the design maintains
safety and aesthetics.
C. All parking areas, except those required in conjunction with single-family or duplex
dwellings, shall provide a substantial bumper which will prevent cars from encroachment on
abutting private and public property.
D. All parking areas, including service drives, except those required in conjunction with single-
family or duplex dwellings, shall be screened in accordance with NMC 15.420.010(B).
E. Any lights provided to illuminate any public or private parking area or vehicle sales area shall
be so arranged as to reflect the light away from any abutting or adjacent residential district.
F. All service drives and parking spaces shall be substantially marked and comply with NMC
15.440.070.
G. Parking areas for residential uses shall not be located in a required front yard, except as
follows:
1. Attached or detached single-family or duplex: parking is authorized in a front yard on a
service drive which provides access to an improved parking area outside the front yard.
2. Three- or four-family: parking is authorized in a front yard on a service drive which is
adjacent to a door at least seven feet wide intended and used for entrance of a vehicle
(see Appendix A, Figure 12).
H. A reduction in size of the parking stall may be allowed for up to a maximum of 30 percent of
the total number of spaces to allow for compact cars. For high turnover uses, such as

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.


http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=104
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178

convenience stores or fast-food restaurants, at the discretion of the director, all stalls will be
required to be full-sized.

I. Affordable housing projects may use a tandem parking design, subject to approval of the
community development director.

J. Portions of off-street parking areas may be developed or redeveloped for transit-related
facilities and uses such as transit shelters or park-and-ride lots, subject to meeting all other
applicable standards, including retaining the required minimum number of parking spaces.

Applicant’s As identified on the submitted site plan and utility plans, all parking areas and service

Findings: drives will be constructed to City standards. Parking areas do not encroach on public
streets. All lighting will be designed to reduce light spill and glare away from any
proposed or existing neighboring developments.

This standard is met.

15.440.075 Residential garage standards.

A. Single-car garages for residential uses shall have a minimum inside width of 10 feet by 20
feet.

B. Two-car garages for residential uses shall have a minimum inside width of 20 feet by 20 feet.
C. Three-car garages for residential uses shall have a minimum inside width of 30 feet by 20
feet.

Applicant’s All single-car garages will have a minimum inside width of 10 feet by 20 feet. All two-

Findings: car garages will have a minimum inside width of 20 feet by 20 feet. All three-car
garages will have a minimum inside width of 30 feet by 20 feet. Compliance with this
standard can be verified at the time of building permit issuance.

This standard is met.

Article Ill. Private Walkways

15.440.120 Purpose.

Sidewalks and private walkways are part of the city’s transportation system. Requiring their
construction is part of the city’s plan to encourage multimodal travel and to reduce reliance
on the automobile. Considerable funds have and will be expended to install sidewalks along
the streets in the city. Yet there is little point to this expense if it is not possible for people to
walk from the sidewalk to the developments along each side. The following requirements are
intended to provide safe and convenient paths for employees, customers, and residents to
walk from public sidewalks to development entrances, and to walk between buildings on larger
sites.

15.440.130 Where required.

Private walkways shall be constructed as part of any development requiring Type Il design
review, including mobile home parks. In addition, they may be required as part of conditional
use permits or planned unit developments. In the airport industrial (Al) district and residential

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



(AR) district, on-site walks are not required in aircraft operations areas, such as parking aprons,
taxiways, and runways.

Applicant’s As this application is for a Planned Unit Development, walkways and sidewalks are
Findings: required and are provided as shown on the submitted plans.

This standard is met.

15.440.140 Private walkway design.

A. All required private walkways shall meet the applicable building code and Americans with
Disabilities Act requirements.

B. Required private walkways shall be a minimum of four feet wide.

C. Required private walkways shall be constructed of portland cement concrete or brick.

D. Crosswalks crossing service drives shall, at a minimum, be painted on the asphalt or clearly
marked with contrasting paving materials or humps/raised crossings. If painted striping is
used, it should consist of thermoplastic striping or similar type of durable application.

E. At a minimum, required private walkways shall connect each main pedestrian building
entrance to each abutting public street and to each other.

F. The review body may require on-site walks to connect to development on adjoining sites.

G. The review body may modify these requirements where, in its opinion, the development
provides adequate on-site pedestrian circulation, or where lot dimensions, existing building
layout, or topography preclude compliance with these standards.

Applicant’'s The proposal includes public sidewalks connecting the single-family homes to NE

Findings: Springbrook Road. All walkways will be 5 feet in width, and will be constructed of
concrete. Crosswalks will be provided on the site and will be painted/clearly striped
in conformance with these requirements.

This standard is met.

15.500 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS STANDARDS

15.505.010 Purpose.

This chapter provides standards for public infrastructure and utilities installed with new
development, consistent with the policies of the City of Newberg comprehensive plan and
adopted city master plans. The standards are intended to minimize disturbance to natural
features, promote energy conservation and efficiency, minimize and maintain development
impacts on surrounding properties and neighborhoods, and ensure timely completion of
adequate public facilities to serve new development

15.505.020 Applicability.

The provision and utilization of public facilities and services within the City of Newberg shall
apply to all land developments in accordance with this chapter. No development shall be
approved unless the following improvements are provided for prior to occupancy or operation,
unless future provision is assured in accordance with NMC 15.505.030(E).

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



A. Public Works Design and Construction Standards. The design and construction of all
improvements within existing and proposed rights-of-way and easements, all improvements
to be maintained by the city, and all improvements for which city approval is required shall
comply with the requirements of the most recently adopted Newberg public works design and
construction standards.

B. Street Improvements. All projects subject to a Type Il design review, partition, or subdivision
approval must construct street improvements necessary to serve the development.

C. Water. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall be served by the
municipal water system as specified in Chapter 13.15 NMC.

D. Wastewater. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall be served
by the municipal wastewater system as specified in Chapter 13.10 NMC.

E. Stormwater. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall manage
stormwater runoff as specified in Chapters 13.20 and 13.25 NMC.

F. Utility Easements. Utility easements shall be provided as necessary and required by the
review body to provide needed facilities for present or future development of the area.

G. City Approval of Public Improvements Required. No building permit may be issued until all
required public facility improvements are in place and approved by the director, or are
otherwise bonded for in a manner approved by the review authority, in conformance with the
provisions of this code and the Newberg Public Works Design and Construction Standards.

Applicant’s As identified on the included public improvement plans, the design and construction

Findings: of all improvements within existing and proposed public rights-of-way and
easements and all improvements to be maintained by the city are designed to comply
with the requirements of the most recently adopted Newberg public works design
and construction standards. All improvements for which city approval is required are
proposed to the most recently adopted Newberg public works design and
construction standards or as reviewed and approved by the Newberg Engineering
Department. The site development plan includes public streets, utility easements,
connections to public water and water booster system, connections to sanitary sewer
services, and management of stormwater runoff.

This standard is met.

15.505.30 STREET STANDARDS
A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to:

1. Provide for safe, efficient, and convenient multi-modal transportation within the
City of Newberg.

2. Provide adequate access to all proposed and anticipated developments in the City
of Newberg. For purposes of this section, “adequate access” means direct routes of
travel between destinations; such destinations may include residential
neighborhoods, parks, schools, shopping areas, and employment centers.

3. Provide adequate area in all public rights-of-way for sidewalks, wastewater and
water lines, stormwater facilities, natural gas lines, power lines, and other utilities
commonly and appropriately placed in such rights-of-way. For purposes of this

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



section, “adequate area” means space sufficient to provide all required public
services to standards defined in this code and in the Newberg public works design
and construction standards.

B. Applicability. The provisions of this section apply to:

1.

The creation, dedication, and/or construction of all public streets, bike facilities, or
pedestrian facilities in all subdivisions, partitions, or other developments in the City
of Newberg.

The extension or widening of existing public street rights-of-way, easements, or
street improvements including those which may be proposed by an individual or the
city, or which may be required by the city in association with other development
approvals.

The construction or modification of any utilities, pedestrian facilities, or bike
facilities in public rights-of-way or easements.

The designation of planter strips. Street trees are required subject to Chapter 15.420
NMC.

Developments outside the city that tie into or take access from city streets.

Applicant’'s As demonstrated in the public improvement plans, this development includes public

Findings:

streets designed to provide safe and convenient vehicular and pedestrian access.
Proposed improvements include paved streets, curbs, sidewalks, crosswalks, planter
strips with street trees and appropriate groundcover, and utility easements where
necessary.

This standard is met.

C. Layout of Streets, Alleys, Bikeways, and Walkways. Streets, alleys, bikeways, and
walkways shall be laid out and constructed as shown in the Newberg transportation
system plan. In areas where the transportation system plan or future street plans do
not show specific transportation improvements, roads and streets shall be laid out so
as to conform to previously approved subdivisions, partitions, and other developments
for adjoining properties, unless it is found in the public interest to modify these
patterns. Transportation improvements shall conform to the standards within the
Newberg Municipal Code, the Newberg public works design and construction
standards, the Newberg transportation system plan, and other adopted city plans.

Applicant’'s While no bikeways are proposed, the streets and walkways are designed to comply

Findings:

with the Newberg Transportation System Plan. Streets are planned to meet with
adjoining roadways and to provide for future connectivity to the west.

This standard is met.

D. Construction of New Streets. Where new streets are necessary to serve a new
development, subdivision, or partition, right-of-way dedication and full street
improvements shall be required. Three-quarter streets may be approved in lieu of full

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



street improvements when the city finds it to be practical to require the completion of

the other one-quarter street improvement when the adjoining property is developed;

in such cases, three-quarter street improvements may be allowed by the city only

where all of the following criteria are met:

1. The land abutting the opposite side of the new street is undeveloped and not part
of the new development; and

2. The adjoining land abutting the opposite side of the street is within the city limits
and the urban growth boundary.

Applicant’s Right-of-way dedication and full street improvements are proposed for all new public

Findings: streets within the development. NE Springbrook Road will serve the new
development. All public street improvements will be constructed to public street
standards and dedicated to the City of Newberg.

This standard is met.

E. Improvements to Existing Streets.

1. All projects subject to partition, subdivision, Type Il design review, or middle
housing land division approval shall dedicate right-of-way sufficient to improve the
street to the width specified in subsection (G) of this section.

2. All projects subject to partition, subdivision, or Type Il design review approval must
construct a minimum of a three-quarter street improvement to all existing streets
adjacent to, within, or necessary to serve the development. The director may waive
or modify this requirement where the applicant demonstrates that the condition of
existing streets to serve the development meets city standards and is in satisfactory
condition to handle the projected traffic loads from the development. Where a
development has frontage on both sides of an existing street, full street
improvements are required.

3. Inlieu of the street improvement requirements outlined in subsection (E)(2) of this
section, the review authority may elect to accept from the applicant monies to be
placed in a fund dedicated to the future reconstruction of the subject street(s). The
amount of money deposited with the city shall be 100 percent of the estimated cost
of the required street improvements (including any associated utility
improvements), and 10 percent of the estimated cost for inflation. Cost estimates
used for this purpose shall be based on preliminary design of the constructed street
provided by the applicant’s engineer and shall be approved by the director.

Applicant’'s NE Springbrook Road, an existing street, will serve the new development. Street
Findings: improvements are proposed for the majority of the frontage as demonstrated in the
Land Use Plans provided in Appendix E. The Applicant is dedicating more right-of-way
than normal due to the circumstance of the railroad being on the other side of the
road. Approximately 32 feet of pavement will be constructed, which exceeds the
three-quarter improvement requirement. For most of the frontage the Applicant is
proposing to replace the entire road width due to the vertical realignment proposed.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



In this area the Applicant is proposing to construct about 23 feet of road width and
leave approximately 9 feet on the other side, near the railroad, as it currently meets
City standards.

All street improvements will adhere to the Conditions of Approval from case file
ANX24-0001/CPMA24-0001/ZMA24-0001 for the annexation of the subject property.
All public street improvements will be constructed to public street standards and
dedicated to the City of Newberg.

This standard is met.

F. Improvements Relating to Impacts. Improvements required as a condition of
development approval shall be roughly proportional to the impact of the development
on public facilities and services. The review body must make findings in the
development approval that indicate how the required improvements are roughly
proportional to the impact. Development may not occur until required transportation
facilities are in place or guaranteed, in conformance with the provisions of this code. If
required transportation facilities cannot be put in place or be guaranteed, then the
review body shall deny the requested land use application.

Applicant’'s
Findings:

Development of the proposed street network and utilities within the development
and connecting to the existing system is roughly proportional to the transportation
and development impacts from the development. Transportation facilities will be in
place or guaranteed prior to development of the site.

This standard is met.

G. Street Width and Design Standards.

1. Design Standards. All streets shall conform with the standards contained in Table
15.505.030(G). Where a range of values is listed, the director shall determine the
width based on a consideration of the total street section width needed, existing
street widths, and existing development patterns. Preference shall be given to the
higher value. Where values may be modified by the director, the overall width shall
be determined using the standards under subsections (G)(2) through (10) of this
section.

Table 15.505(G) Street Design Standards

Type of | Right-of- Curb-to- Motor Median Striped On-street
Street way width | curb vehicle Type Bike lane | parking
pavement | travel (both
width lanes sides)
Local 54-60 feet | 32 feet 2 lanes None No Yes
Residential
Major 57 - 80 feet | 36 feet 2 lanes None* Yes No*
Collector

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.




2. Motor Vehicle Travel Lanes. Collector and arterial streets shall have a minimum
width of 12 feet.
a. Exception.

i. Minimum lane width of 11 feet along S River Street from E First Street to E
Fourteenth Street.

3. Bike Lanes. Striped bike lanes shall be a minimum of six feet wide. Bike lanes shall
be provided where shown in the Newberg transportation system plan.

a. Exception.

i. Minimum striped bike lane width of six feet with a one-foot wide buffer
along S River Street from E First Street to the bypass.

4. Parking Lanes. Where on-street parking is allowed on collector and arterial streets,
the parking lane shall be a minimum of eight feet wide.

a. Exception.
i. Minimum parking lane width of seven feet along S River Street from the bypass
to E Fourteenth Street.

5. Center Turn Lanes. Where a center turn lane is provided, it shall be a minimum of
12 feet wide.

6. Limited Residential Streets. Limited residential streets shall be allowed only at the
discretion of the review authority, and only in consideration of the following
factors:

a. The requirements of the fire chief shall be followed.

b. The estimated traffic volume on the street is low, and in no case more than
600 average daily trips.

c. Use for through streets or looped streets is preferred over cul-de-sac streets.
Use for short blocks (under 400 feet) is preferred over longer blocks.

The total number of residences or other uses accessing the street in that

block is small, and in no case more than 30 residences.

f. On-street parking usage is limited, such as by providing ample off-street
parking, or by staggering driveways so there are few areas where parking is
allowable on both sides.

7. Sidewalks. Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all public streets. Minimum
width is five feet.

a. Exception.

i. Twelve-foot-wide sidewalks, inclusive of the curb, with tree wells along S
River Street from the bypass to E Fourteenth Street.

ii. Twelve-foot-wide shared-use path and four-foot buffer, inclusive of the
curb, with tree wells along the east side of S River Street from the bypass
to E Fourteenth Street.

8. Planter Strips. Except where infeasible, a planter strip shall be provided between
the sidewalk and the curb line, with a minimum width of five feet. This strip shall
be landscaped in accordance with the standards in NMC 15.420.020. Curb-side

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



sidewalks may be allowed on limited residential streets. Where curb-side sidewalks
are allowed, the following shall be provided:

A. Additional reinforcement is done to the sidewalk section at corners.

B. Sidewalk width is six feet.

9. Slope Easements. Slope easements shall be provided adjacent to the street where
required to maintain the stability of the street.

10. Intersections and Street Design. The street design standards in the Newberg public
works design and construction standards shall apply to all public streets, alleys,
bike facilities, and sidewalks in the city.

11. The planning commission may approve modifications to street standards for the
purpose of ingress or egress to a minimum of three and a maximum of six lots
through a conditional use permit.

Applicant’s Streets, sidewalks and planter strips, as identified on the proposed public
Findings: improvement plans, are designed to meet the standards of the Newberg
Transportation System Plan and this section.

This standard is met.

I. Temporary Turnarounds. Where a street will be extended as part of a future phase of a
development, or as part of development of an abutting property, the street may be
terminated with a temporary turnaround in lieu of a standard street connection or
circular cul-de-sac bulb. The director and fire chief shall approve the temporary
turnaround. It shall have an all-weather surface, and may include a hammerhead-type
turnaround meeting fire apparatus access road standards, a paved or graveled circular
turnaround, or a paved or graveled temporary access road. For streets extending less
than 150 feet and/or with no significant access, the director may approve the street
without a temporary turnaround. Easements or right-of-way may be required as
necessary to preserve access to the turnaround.

Applicant’'s The Applicant has obtained a Service Provider Letter approval from Tualatin Valley

Findings: Fire and Rescue (TVF&R) indicating approval of the proposed lot configuration. The
approval has been given TVF&R Permit number 2024-0095. Where future
development may occur on adjacent properties to the west of the subject property,
road terminations are proposed. No termination of roads are provided to the north
of the subject property because this land is outside of the City's urban growth
boundary and city limits, and no road terminations are proposed to the east due to
existing habitat and associated stream corridor overlay. The road terminations
extend 150 feet or less at all locations proposed, and no temporary turnarounds are
proposed for streets that terminate to the west.

This standard is met.

J. Topography. The layout of streets shall give suitable recognition to surrounding
topographical conditions in accordance with the purpose of this code.

H NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



Applicant’'s The layout of the streets takes into consideration the surrounding topography.
Findings:
This standard is met.

K. Future Extension of Streets. All new streets required for a subdivision, partition, or a
project requiring site design review shall be constructed to be “to and through”:
through the development and to the edges of the project site to serve adjacent
properties for future development.

Applicant’'s The new streets proposed with this development have been designed and will be
Findings: constructed to be “to and through” for edges of the development site that will serve
adjacent properties inside the UGB for future development.

This standard is met.

L. Cul-de-Sacs.

1. Cul-de-sacs shall only be permitted when one or more of the circumstances listed in
this section exist. When cul-de-sacs are justified, public walkway connections shall
be provided wherever practical to connect with another street, walkway, school, or
similar destination.

a. Physical or topographic conditions make a street connection impracticable.
These conditions include but are not limited to controlled access streets,
railroads, steep slopes, wetlands, or water bodies where a connection could not
be reasonably made.

b. Buildings or other existing development on adjacent lands physically preclude a
connection now or in the future, considering the potential for redevelopment.

c. Where streets or accessways would violate provisions of leases, easements, or
similar restrictions.

d. Where the streets or accessways abut the urban growth boundary and rural
resource land in farm or forest use, except where the adjoining land is
designated as an urban reserve area.

2. Cul-de-sacs shall be no more than 400 feet long (measured from the centerline of
the intersection to the radius point of the bulb).

3. Cul-de-sacs shall not serve more than 18 single-family dwellings.

Each cul-de-sac shall have a circular end with a minimum diameter of 96 feet, curb-to-

curb, within a 109-foot minimum diameter right-of-way. For residential uses, a 35-foot

radius may be allowed if the street has no parking, a mountable curb, curbside
sidewalks, and sprinkler systems in every building along the street.

Applicant’'s Where the property abuts the UGB there are no future street connections proposed.

Findings: Other future street connections are proposed on the west side of the property, but
no culs-de-sac are proposed with this development and, as such, this standard is not
applicable.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



M. Street Names and Street Signs. Streets that are in alignment with existing named
streets shall bear the names of such existing streets. Names for new streets not in
alignment with existing streets are subject to approval by the director and the fire chief
and shall not unnecessarily duplicate or resemble the name of any existing or platted
street in the city. It shall be the responsibility of the land divider to provide street signs.

Applicant’'s The existing public street used to serve the site has an existing street name. The

Findings: public streets in the development are new and will be established with this
development. The Applicant acknowledges that street names are subject to approval
by the director and fire chief and shall not duplicate or resemble the name of any
existing platted streets in the city. The Applicant acknowledges it is the responsibility
of the developer to provide street signs.

This standard is met.

N. Platting Standards for Alleys.

1. An alley may be required to be dedicated and constructed to provide adequate
access for a development, as deemed necessary by the director.

2. The right-of-way width and paving design for alleys shall be not less than 20 feet
wide. Slope easements shall be dedicated in accordance with specifications adopted
by the city council under NMC 15.505.010 et seq.

3. Where two alleys intersect, 10-foot corner cut-offs shall be provided.

4. Unless otherwise approved by the city engineer where topographical conditions will
not reasonably permit, grades shall not exceed 12 percent on alleys, and centerline
radii on curves shall be not less than 100 feet.

5. All provisions and requirements with respect to streets identified in this code shall
apply to alleys the same in all respects as if the word “street” or “streets” therein
appeared as the word “alley” or “alleys” respectively.

Applicant’'s No alleys are proposed with this development and, as such, this standard is not
Findings: applicable.

O. Platting Standards for Blocks.

1. Purpose. Streets and walkways can provide convenient travel within a
neighborhood and can serve to connect people and land uses. Large, uninterrupted
blocks can serve as a barrier to travel, especially walking and biking. Large blocks
also can divide rather than unite neighborhoods. To promote connected
neighborhoods and to shorten travel distances, the following minimum standards
for block lengths are established.

2. Maximum Block Length and Perimeter. The maximum length and perimeters of
blocks in the zones listed below shall be according to the following table. The review
body for a subdivision, partition, conditional use permit, or a Type Il design review

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



may require installation of streets or walkways as necessary to meet the standards

below.
Zone Maximum Block Length Maximum Block Perimeter
R-1 800 feet 2,000 feet
R-2,R-3,RP, | 1,200 feet 3,000 feet

3. Exceptions.

a. If a public walkway is installed mid-block, the maximum block length and
perimeter may be increased by 25 percent.

b. Where a proposed street divides a block, one of the resulting blocks may exceed
the maximum block length and perimeter standards provided the average block
length and perimeter of the two resulting blocks do not exceed these standards.

c. Blocks in excess of the above standards are allowed where access controlled
streets, street access spacing standards, railroads, steep slopes, wetlands, water
bodies, preexisting development, ownership patterns or similar circumstances
restrict street and walkway location and design. In these cases, block length and
perimeter shall be as small as practical. Where a street cannot be provided
because of these circumstances but a public walkway is still feasible, a public
walkway shall be provided.

d. Institutional campuses located in an R-1 zone may apply the standards for the
institutional zone.

e. Where a block is in more than one zone, the standards of the majority of land in
the proposed block shall apply.

f. Where alocal street plan, concept master site development plan, or specific plan
has been approved for an area, the block standards shall follow those approved
in the plan. In approving such a plan, the review body shall follow the block
standards listed above to the extent appropriate for the plan area.

Applicant’s All blocks in this proposal meet the block length and perimeter standards of this code.

Findings: The development abuts both R-1 and R-3 zoning. Using the most restrictive approach,
the Applicant would apply the maximum block length and maximum block perimeter
standards for the R-1 zone.

Using exception a. above, public walkways are proposed to be installed midblock for
all of the proposed streets which increases the maximum block length by 200 feet to
a total of 1,000 feet. The proposed block length of all streets does not exceed 1,000
feet. All block perimeters proposed do not exceed 2,000 feet.

This standard is met.

4. Public Pedestrian Walkways and Bicycle Access. The approval authority in approving
a land use application with conditions may require a developer to provide an access
way where the creation of a street consistent with street spacing standards is

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



infeasible and the creation of a cul-de-sac or dead-end street is unavoidable. A
public walkway provides a connection through a block that is longer than
established standards or connects the end of the street to another right-of-way or
a public access easement. A public walkway shall be contained within a public right-
of-way or public access easement, as required by the city. A public walkway shall be
a minimum of 10 feet wide and shall provide a minimum six-foot-wide paved surface
or other all-weather surface approved by the city (see subsection (S) of this section
for public walkway standards).

Design features should be considered that allow access to emergency vehicles but
that restrict access to non-emergency motorized vehicles.

Applicant’'s The block length requirements have been met. Public pedestrian walkways and
Findings: bicycle access is not necessary to meet access requirements.

This standard is met.

P. Private Streets. New private streets, as defined in NMC 15.05.030, shall not be created,
except as allowed by NMC 15.240.020(L)(2).

Applicant’'s No private streets are proposed with this application.
Findings:
This standard is met.

Q. Traffic Calming.

1. The following roadway design features may be required in new street construction
where traffic calming needs are anticipated:

Serpentine alignment.

Curb extensions.

Traffic diverters/circles.

Raised medians and landscaping.

Other methods shown effective through engineering studies.

2. Traffic-calming measures such as speed humps should be applied to mitigate traffic
operations and/or safety problems on existing streets. They should not be applied
with new street constructions.

a0 Ty

Applicant’s Traffic calming measures are not proposed as the submitted Transportation Impact
Findings: Analysis demonstrates that the proposed street network is safe and effective.

This standard is met.

R. Vehicular Access Standards.
1. Purpose. The purpose of these standards is to manage vehicle access to maintain
traffic flow, safety, roadway capacity, and efficiency. They help to maintain an

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



adequate level of service consistent with the functional classification of the street.
Major roadways, including arterials and collectors, serve as the primary system for
moving people and goods within and through the city. Access is limited and
managed on these roads to promote efficient through movement. Local streets and
alleys provide access to individual properties. Access is managed on these roads to
maintain safe maneuvering of vehicles in and out of properties and to allow safe
through movements. If vehicular access and circulation are not properly designed,
these roadways will be unable to accommodate the needs of development and serve
their transportation function.

2. Access Spacing Standards. Public street intersection and driveway spacing shall
follow the standards in Table 15.505.R below. The Oregon Department of
Transportation (ODOT) has jurisdiction of some roadways within the Newberg city
limits, and ODOT access standards will apply on those roadways.

Table 15.505.R Access Spacing Standards.

Roadway Functional | Area Minimum Public Street | Driveway Setback

Classification Intersection Spacing from Intersecting
Street

Major Collector Urban CBD | 400 150

3. Properties with Multiple Frontages. Where a property has frontage on more than
one street, access shall be limited to the street with the lesser classification.

a. For a duplex, triplex or quadplex dwelling or a cottage cluster project with
frontage on two local streets, access may be permitted on both streets.

4. Driveways. More than one driveway is permitted on a lot accessed from either a
minor collector or local street as long as there is at least 40 feet of lot frontage
separating each driveway approach. More than one driveway is permitted on a lot
accessed from a major collector as long as there is at least 100 feet of lot frontage
separating each driveway approach.

a. For a duplex, triplex or quadplex dwelling or a cottage cluster project, more
than one driveway is permitted on a lot accessed from either a minor
collector or local street as long as there is at least 22 feet of lot frontage
separating each driveway approach.

5. Alley Access. Where a property has frontage on an alley and the only other frontages
are on collector or arterial streets, access shall be taken from the alley only. The
review body may allow creation of an alley for access to lots that do not otherwise
have frontage on a public street provided all of the following are met:

a. The review body finds that creating a public street frontage is not feasible.

b. The alley access is for no more than six dwellings and no more than six lots.

c. The alley has through access to streets on both ends.

d. One additional parking space over those otherwise required is provided for
each dwelling. Where feasible, this shall be provided as a public use parking
space adjacent to the alley.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



6. Closure of Existing Accesses. Existing accesses that are not used as part of
development or redevelopment of a property shall be closed and replaced with
curbing, sidewalks, and landscaping, as appropriate.

7. Shared Driveways.

a. The number of driveways onto arterial streets shall be minimized by the use
of shared driveways with adjoining lots where feasible. The city shall require
shared driveways as a condition of land division or site design review, as
applicable, for traffic safety and access management purposes. Where there
is an abutting developable property, a shared driveway shall be provided as
appropriate. When shared driveways are required, they shall be stubbed to
adjacent developable parcels to indicate future extension. “Stub” means
that a driveway temporarily ends at the property line, but may be accessed
or extended in the future as the adjacent parcel develops. “Developable”
means that a parcel is either vacant or it is likely to receive additional
development (i.e., due to infill or redevelopment potential).

b. Access easements (i.e., for the benefit of affected properties) and
maintenance agreements shall be recorded for all shared driveways,
including pathways, at the time of final plat approval or as a condition of site
development approval.

¢. No more than four lots may access one shared driveway, with the exception
of cottage dwellings on individual lots that are part of a cottage cluster.

d. Shared driveways shall be posted as no parking fire lanes where required by
the fire marshal.

e. Where three or more lots share one driveway, one additional parking space
over those otherwise required shall be provided for each dwelling. Where
feasible, this shall be provided as a common use parking space adjacent to
the driveway. However, duplex, triplex, quadplex, townhouse and cottage
dwellings with shared driveways shall be exempt from this standard.

8. Frontage Streets and Alleys. The review body for a partition, subdivision, or design
review may require construction of a frontage street to provide access to properties
fronting an arterial or collector street.

9. ODOT or Yamhill County Right-of-Way. Where a property abuts an ODOT or Yamlhill
County right-of-way, the applicant for any development project shall obtain an
access permit from ODOT or Yamhill County.

10. Exceptions. The director may allow exceptions to the access standards above in any
of the following circumstances:

a. Where existing and planned future development patterns or physical
constraints, such as topography, parcel configuration, and similar
conditions, prevent access in accordance with the above standards.

b. Where the proposal is to relocate an existing access for existing
development, where the relocated access is closer to conformance with the
standards above and does not increase the type or volume of access.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



c. Where the proposed access results in safer access, less congestion, a better
level of service, and more functional circulation, both on street and on site,
than access otherwise allowed under these standards.

11. Where an exception is approved, the access shall be as safe and functional as
practical in the particular circumstance. The director may require that the applicant
submit a traffic study by a registered engineer to show the proposed access meets
these criteria.

Applicant’s All driveway and intersection spacing standards are met, as demonstrated on the
Findings: submitted public improvement plans.

This standard is met.

S. Public Walkways.

1. Projects subject to Type Il design review, partition, or subdivision approval may be
required to provide public walkways where necessary for public safety and
convenience, or where necessary to meet the standards of this code. Public
walkways are meant to connect cul-de-sacs to adjacent areas, to pass through oddly
shaped or unusually long blocks, to provide for networks of public paths according
to adopted plans, or to provide access to schools, parks or other community
destinations or public areas. Where practical, public walkway easements and
locations may also be used to accommodate public utilities.

2. Public walkways shall be located within a public access easement that is a minimum
of 15 feet in width.

3. Awalk strip, not less than 10 feet in width, shall be paved in the center of all public
walkway easements. Such paving shall conform to specifications in the Newberg
public works design and construction standards.

4. Public walkways shall be designed to meet the Americans with Disabilities Act
requirements.

5. Public walkways connecting one right-of-way to another shall be designed to
provide as short and straight of a route as practical.

6. The developer of the public walkway may be required to provide a homeowners'
association or similar entity to maintain the public walkway and associated
improvements.

7. Lighting may be required for public walkways in excess of 250 feet in length.

8. The review body may modify these requirements where it finds that topographic,
preexisting development, or similar constraints exist.

Applicant’'s Public walkways are proposed to connect the residential development to NE
Findings: Springbrook Road. Public sidewalks have been provided on all public streets in
accordance with these standards.

This standard is met.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



T. Street Trees. Street trees shall be provided for all projects subject to Type Il design
review, partition, or subdivision. Street trees shall be installed in accordance with the
provisions of NMC 15.420.010(B)(4).

Applicant’s As indicated on the submitted landscaping plans provided in Appendix E, street trees
Findings: are proposed on all streets.

This standard is met.

U. Street Lights. All developments shall include underground electric service, light
standards, wiring and lamps for street lights according to the specifications and
standards of the Newberg public works design and construction standards. The
developer shall install all such facilities and make the necessary arrangements with the
serving electric utility as approved by the city. Upon the city’s acceptance of the public
improvements associated with the development, the street lighting system, exclusive
of utility-owned service lines, shall be and become property of the city unless otherwise
designated by the city through agreement with a private utility.

Applicant’'s This proposal includes developer-installed underground electric service, light
Findings: standards, wiring and lamps for streetlights according to the specifications and
standards of the Newberg public works design and construction standards.

This standard is met.

V. Transit Improvements. Development proposals for sites that include or are adjacent to
existing or planned transit facilities, as shown in the Newberg transportation system
plan or adopted local or regional transit plan, shall be required to provide any of the
following, as applicable and required by the review authority:

1. Reasonably direct pedestrian connections between the transit facility and building
entrances of the site. For the purpose of this section, “reasonably direct” means a
route that does not deviate unnecessarily from a straight line or a route that does
not involve a significant amount of out-of-direction travel for users.

2. A transit passenger landing pad accessible to disabled persons.

3. An easement of dedication for a passenger shelter or bench if such facility is in an
adopted plan.

4. Lighting at the transit facility.

Applicant’'s There are no transit facilities within or adjacent to this site and, as such, this standard
Findings: is not applicable.

15.505.40 PUBLIC UTILITY STANDARDS
A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide adequate services and facilities
appropriate to the scale and type of development.

NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



B. Applicability. This section applies to all development where installation, extension or
improvement of water, wastewater, or private utilities is required to serve the
development or use of the subject property.

C. General Standards.

1. The design and construction of all improvements within existing and proposed
rights-of-way and easements, all improvements to be maintained by the city, and
all improvements for which city approval is required shall conform to the Newberg
public works design and construction standards and require a public improvements
permit.

2. The location, design, installation and maintenance of all utility lines and facilities
shall be carried out with minimum feasible disturbances of soil and site. Installation
of all proposed public and private utilities shall be coordinated by the developer and
be approved by the city to ensure the orderly extension of such utilities within
public right-of-way and easements.

D. Standards for Water Improvements. All development that has a need for water service
shall install the facilities pursuant to the requirements of the city and all of the
following standards. Installation of such facilities shall be coordinated with the
extension or improvement of necessary wastewater and stormwater facilities, as
applicable.

i. All developments shall be required to be linked to existing water facilities
adequately sized to serve their intended area by the construction of water
distribution lines, reservoirs and pumping stations which connect to such water
service facilities. All necessary easements required for the construction of these
facilities shall be obtained by the developer and granted to the city pursuant to the
requirements of the city.

ii. Specific location, size and capacity of such facilities will be subject to the approval
of the director with reference to the applicable water master plan. All water
facilities shall conform with city pressure zones and shall be looped where
necessary to provide adequate pressure and fire flows during peak demand at every
point within the system in the development to which the water facilities will be
connected. Installation costs shall remain entirely the developer’s responsibility.

iii. The design of the water facilities shall take into account provisions for the future
extension beyond the development to serve adjacent properties, which, in the
judgment of the city, cannot be feasibly served otherwise.

iv. Design, construction and material standards shall be as specified by the director for
the construction of such public water facilities in the city.

E. Standards for Wastewater Improvements. All development that has a need for
wastewater services shall install the facilities pursuant to the requirements of the city
and all of the following standards. Installation of such facilities shall be coordinated
with the extension or improvement of necessary water services and stormwater
facilities, as applicable.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



1. All septic tank systems and on-site sewage systems are prohibited. Existing septic
systems must be abandoned or removed in accordance with Yamhill County
standards.

2. All properties shall be provided with gravity service to the city wastewater system,
except for lots that have unique topographic or other natural features that make
gravity wastewater extension impractical as determined by the director. Where
gravity service is impractical, the developer shall provide all necessary pumps/Ilift
stations and other improvements, as determined by the director.

3. All developments shall be required to be linked to existing wastewater collection
facilities adequately sized to serve their intended area by the construction of
wastewater lines which connect to existing adequately sized wastewater facilities.
All necessary easements required for the construction of these facilities shall be
obtained by the developer and granted to the city pursuant to the requirements of
the city.

4. Specific location, size and capacity of wastewater facilities will be subject to the
approval of the director with reference to the applicable wastewater master plan.
All wastewater facilities shall be sized to provide adequate capacity during peak
flows from the entire area potentially served by such facilities. Installation costs
shall remain entirely the developer’s responsibility.

5. Temporary wastewater service facilities, including pumping stations, will be
permitted only if the director approves the temporary facilities, and the developer
provides for all facilities that are necessary for transition to permanent facilities.

6. The design of the wastewater facilities shall take into account provisions for the
future extension beyond the development to serve upstream properties, which, in
the judgment of the city, cannot be feasibly served otherwise.

7. Design, construction and material standards shall be as specified by the director for
the construction of such wastewater facilities in the city.

F. Easements. Easements for public and private utilities shall be provided as deemed
necessary by the city, special districts, and utility companies. Easements for special
purpose uses shall be of a width deemed appropriate by the responsible agency. Such
easements shall be recorded on easement forms approved by the city and designated
on the final plat of all subdivisions and partitions. Minimum required easement width
and locations are as provided in the Newberg public works design and construction
standards.

Applicant’'s The development will connect to public utilities, including water and sanitary sewer.
Findings: as demonstrated on the submitted public improvement plans, all public utilities are
designed to be constructed to City standards.

This standard is met.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



15.505.50 STORMWATER SYSTEM STANDARDS.

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide for the drainage of surface water from
all development; to minimize erosion; and to reduce degradation of water quality due
to sediments and pollutants in stormwater runoff.

B. Applicability. The provisions of this section apply to all developments subject to site
development review or land division review and to the reconstruction or expansion of
such developments that increases the flow or changes the point of discharge to the city
stormwater system. Additionally, the provisions of this section shall apply to all
drainage facilities that impact any public storm drain system, public right-of-way or
public easement, including but not limited to off-street parking and loading areas.

C. General Requirement. All stormwater runoff shall be conveyed to a public storm
wastewater or natural drainage channel having adequate capacity to carry the flow
without overflowing or otherwise causing damage to public and/or private property.
The developer shall pay all costs associated with designing and constructing the
facilities necessary to meet this requirement.

D. Plan for Stormwater and Erosion Control. No construction of any facilities in a
development included in subsection (B) of this section shall be permitted until an
engineer registered in the State of Oregon prepares a stormwater report and erosion
control plan for the project. This plan shall contain at a minimum:

1. The methods to be used to minimize the amount of runoff, sedimentation, and
pollution created from the development both during and after construction.

2. Plans for the construction of stormwater facilities and any other facilities that
depict line sizes, profiles, construction specifications, and other such information
as is necessary for the city to review the adequacy of the stormwater plans.

3. Design calculations shall be submitted for all drainage facilities. These drainage
calculations shall be included in the stormwater report and shall be stamped by a
licensed professional engineer in the State of Oregon. Peak design discharges shall
be computed based upon the design criteria outlined in the public works design and
construction standards for the city.

E. Development Standards. Development subject to this section shall be planned,
designed, constructed, and maintained in compliance with the Newberg public works
design and construction standards.

Applicant’'s The submitted public improvement plans include details of the proposed stormwater

Findings: detention and treatment plan. The stormwater detention and treatment plan is
designed to meet City standards and to preclude stormwater drainage on
surrounding properties. Additional information on the stormwater management
system proposed for the development are provided in the Stormwater Report,
provided in Appendix D.

This standard is met.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Based upon the materials submitted herein, the application is consistent with the applicable
provisions of the Newberg Municipal Code and City of Newberg Comprehensive Plan. The evidence in
the record is substantial and supports approval of this application. The Applicant respectfully requests
approval from the City of Newberg Planning Commission for this Planned Unit Development
application on the subject property.

m NAGOMI AT SPRINGBROOK PUD | 3J CONSULTING, INC.



DigiSign Verified - 9c4de3ac-8d37-4c05-b778-36131b0b658b

TYPE Il APPLICATION (QUASI-JUDICIAL REVIEW)

File #:
TYPES - PLEASE CHECK ONE:
[1 Annexation [_Iconditional Use Permit
[_] Comprehensive Plan Amendment (site specific) 1 Type lll Major Modification
[_1Zoning Amendment (site specific) Planned Unit Development
[ 1Historic Landmark Modification/alteration [ Other: (Explain)

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

APPLICANT: !chijo USA Co.LTD C/O Masaki Narita

ADDRESS: 3800 Cedar Hills BLVD Suite 131 CITY: Beaverton STATE: OR ZIp: 97005
EMAIL ADDRESS: m-narita@ichijousa.com PHONE:503'430'7413 MOBILE:

OWNER{ifdifferent from above): ROSS D Kerr’ ROlland G Kerr Jr PHONE: 503‘537'6664

ADDRESS: 3809 NE Springbrook Rd ciry: Newberg state: OR  p. 97132

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR: 3J Consulting, Inc. CONTACT: Chase Welborn, PE

EMAIL ADDRESS: chase.welborn@3j-consulting.com PHONE: 503-946-9365x215 MOBILE:

GENERAL INFORMATION:

PROJECT LOCATION: 3809 NE Springbrook Road PROJECT VALUAT|ONZ$

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/USE: PUD - Residential Development

MAP/TAX LOT NO. (i.e.3200AB-400): _R3209 02300 SITE SIZE: 19.16 SQ.FT.O ACRE
COMP PLAN DES'GNAT'ON Low Density Residential (LDR) / High Density Residential (HDR) CURRENT ZONlNG R-1/R-3

CURRENT USE:; _Single Family Home TOPOGRAPY:_Sloping

SURROUNDING USES:

NORTH: Yamhill County AF-10 SOUTH: SD/H Springbrook District - Hospitality

EAST: Yamhill County AF-10/VLRD 2.5 WEST: Yamhill County AF-10

ATTACHED PROJECT CRITERIA AND REQUIREMENTS (check all that is included)

General Checklist: [Y]Fees Public Notice Information Current Title Report(60 days) Written Criteria Response Owner Signature
[v]1 -Digital Copy of Full Application Packet

For the type of project detailed checklists and applicable criteria for the written criteria response, turn to:

31T € 1 o o T PPN p. 11

Comprehensive Plan / Zoning Map Amendment (site specific) ..........cccovvuiiiniinnnnn p. 20
Conditional Use Permit ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiii e rr e re s e s e enre e s sannnenns p. 26
Historic Landmark Modification/Alteration e P32
Planned Unit Development ..........c.cceiviiiiiiiiiiii s s s s s e e e s e e rn e eannns p- 34

Submit a complete Application Packet to Planning@newbergoregon.gov

Tentative plans must substantially conform to all standards, regulations, and procedures officially adopted by the City of Newberg. All owners must sign the application or submit letters of consent.
Incomplete or missing information may delay the approval process.

The above statements and information herein contained are in all respects true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Nl 9/23/2024 Ross D Kern Relland. G Kew Ji. 09/23/2024
Applicant Signature Date Owner Signature Date
Masaki Narita Ross D Kerr Rolland G Kerr Jr.
Print Name Print Name

Newberg Community Development « 414 E First Street, Newberg, OR 97132 * 503-537-1240 ¢ planning@newbergoregon.gov




DigiSign Verified - 9c4de3ac-8d37-4c05-b778-36131b0b658b
NEWBERG PERMIT CENTER FEE SCHEDULE

Effective Date:

April 1,2024
5% TECHNOLOGY FEE WILL BE ADDED TO TOTAL FEES (Resolution No. 2016-3268)
PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW $100
TYPE | (ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW)
OTHER:ANY TYPE | ACTION NOT SPECIFICALLY LISTED IN THIS SECTION $208
HOME OCCUPATION BUSINESS LICENSE REVIEW $208
* ADU DESIGN REVIEW $208
* COTTAGE CLUSTER DESIGN REVIEW $417
PROPERTY CONSOLIDATION $208
CODE ADJUSTMENT $521
* DESIGN REVIEW (DUPLEX OR COM. /IND. MINOR ADDITION REVIEW 0.3% OF PROJECT VALUE, $521 MINIMUM
MINOR MODIFICATION OR EXTENSION OF TYPE | DECISION $208

MAJOR MODIFICATION OF TYPE | DECISION
PARTITION FINAL PLAT

*

50% OF ORIGINAL FEE
$1,048 + $90 PER PARCEL

PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENT $1,048
SIGN REVIEW $91 + $1.00 PER SQ. FT. OF SIGN FACE
* SUBDIVISION, PUD, OR CONDOMINIUM FINAL PLAT $2,101 + $90 PER LOT OR UNIT
HISTORIC LANDMARK MINOR ALTERATION/DEMOLITION $0

TYPE Il (LAND USE DECISION)
OTHER-ANY TYPE Il ACTION NOT SPECIFICALLY LISTED IN THIS SECTION $1,048
MINOR MODIFICATION OR EXTENSION OF TYPE Il DECISION $208

MAJOR MODIFICATION OF TYPE Il DECISION

50% OF ORIGINAL FEE

* DESIGN REVIEW (INCLUDING MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS) 0.6% OF TOTAL PROJECT COST, $1,048 MINIMUM
* PARTITION PRELIMINARY PLAT $1,048 + $90 PER PARCEL
* SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT $2,101 + $90 PER LOT
VARIANCE $1,048
TYPE 11l (QUASI-JUDICIAL REVIEW)
OTHER-ANY TYPE Ill ACTION NOT SPECIFICALLY LISTED IN THIS SECTION $2,226
ANNEXATION $2,926 + $278 PER ACRE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT (SITE SPECIFIC) $2,742
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT $2,226
MINOR MODIFICATION OR EXTENSION OF TYPE IIl DECISION $208
MAJOR MODIFICATION OF TYPE Ill DECISION 50% OF ORIGINAL FEE
HISTORIC LANDMARK ESTABLISHMENT OR MODIFICATION S0
HISTORIC LANDMARK ELIMINATION $2,552
* SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT $2,101 + $90 PER LOT
* PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT $4,446 + $90 PER LOT
ZONING AMENDMENT (SITE SPECIFIC) $2,772
TYPE IV (LEGISLATIVE AMENDMENTS)
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT OR LARGE SCALE MAP REVISION $3,153
DEVELOPMENT CODE TEXT AMENDMENT OR LARGE SCALE MAP REVISION $3,153
APPEALS
TYPE | OR Il APPEAL TO PLANNING COMMISSION $601
TYPE | OR Il APPEAL TO CITY COUNCIL $1,089
TYPE 11l APPEAL TO CITY COUNCIL $1,279
TYPE | ADJUSTMENTS OR TYPE Il VARIANCES (That are not designed to reculate the phyusical characteristics ofa use permitted outright) $336

EXHIBITOR LICENSE FEE APPPEAL TO THE CITY COUNCIL
OTHER FEES

50% OF EXIBITOR LICENSE FEE

TECHNOLOGY FEE (This fee will be added to all Planning, Engineering and Building Fees, does not apply to SDC fees )
TREES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY REMOVAL PERMIT

EXPEDITED LAND DIVISION

URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY AMENDMENT

VACATION OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

FEE-IN-LIEU OF PARKING PROGRAM

VERTICAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT ZONE FEES

5% OF TOTAL
$10.50

$7,812 + $90 PER LOT OR UNIT
$4,992

$2,071

$16,295 PER VEHICLE SPACE

$600 CERTIFICATION & APPLICATION FEE
$400 ANNUAL MONITORING FEE

BIKE RACK COST SHARING PROGRAM $100 PER RACK
LICENSE FEES

GENERAL BUSINESS $50

HOME OCCUPATION $25

PEDDLER/SOLICITOR/STREET VENDOR NO FEE (GENERAL BUSINESS LICENSE FEE ONLY)

EXHIBITOR $152

TEMPORARY MERCHANT

$123/45 DAYS OR $414/PERPETUAL

*ADDITIONAL LAND USE REVIEW FEES — ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

ALL DESIGN REVIEWS & TYPE II/1ll PARTITION, SUBDIVISION, PUD'S & MHLD. $340.79 + $15.14 PER LOT OVER 19 LOT'S
FINAL PLAT REVIEW: PARTITION, SUBDIVISION & MHLD $340.79 + $8.56 PER LOT OR PARCEL

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS ON COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, INSTITUTIONAL ZONES, &

MULTIFAMILY DEVELOPMENTS $476.60 1ST ACRE + $272.24 PER ADDITIONAL ACRES

Adoption: Resolution NO: 2024-3920, March 18,2024



DigiSign Verified - 9c4de3ac-8d37-4c05-b778-36131b0b658b

GENERAL INFORMATION
Type Il Development Permit Process (Quasi-Judicial Hearing)

Overview: Type Il Permit applications are reviewed by the Planning Commission and include a mix of
objective and subjective standards. Public notice is provided to property owners within 500 ft of the site.
Any interested party may appear before the Planning Commission and comment on the project. The
applicant or anyone commenting at the hearing may appeal the decision to the City Council. Some Type Il
decisions automatically proceed to the City Council with a recommendation by the Planning Commission.
Type Il decisions must be issued within 120 days of an application being determined complete.

Type Il Permits Include:

Annexations*

Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Map Amendments — site specific*

Conditional Use Permits

Historic Landmark Reviews

Planned Unit Developments

Subdivisions not meeting the criteria in Newberg Development Code (NDC) §15.100.040(A), or
proposed for Type Ill review by the applicant, or converted from a Type Il to a Type Ill process.

Pre-Application Conference:
Please call to schedule a time for a pre-application meeting (required on Type Ill applications) prior
to submitting an application. The Development Review Meetings are held every Wednesday. This
meeting provides the opportunity to get advance information from Planning, Engineering and Building
divisions all at once. It is likely to save you time and effort later. The non-refundable pre-application
conference fee is $105.00, payable prior to the conference.

Submit Application

Pay fees
Complete application form(s)
Submit plans and other required information

Processing

Staff will perform a completeness check of the application and notify applicant of any information
that is missing or incomplete. Processing time 0 to 30 days.

Staff will route the application to affected agencies and City departments Processing time 14 to 20
days

Applicant will provide copies of mailed and posted notices to the City for review, mail the approved
notice to property owners within 500 ft. of the site, post the site, and provide staff with an affidavit
verifying that the notice was mailed and posted. Processing time 14 to 20 days

Staff will prepare a written report for review by the Planning Commission. A copy will be available
for review seven (7) days prior to the hearing. A copy will be mailed to the applicant seven prior to
the hearing.

Planning Commission Hearing

At the Planning Commission Hearing, the applicant and all interested parties are encouraged to
testify. Testimony may be given orally or in writing.

After public testimony, the Planning Commission may approve, deny, table, make a
recommendation to the City Council or continue the item. If the decision is final at the Planning
Commission, then proceed to Appeals. Planning Commission decisions become effective upon
completion of the 14 day appeal period.



DigiSign Verified - 9c4de3ac-8d37-4c05-b778-36131b0b658b

City Council Hearing

B |f the decision is a recommendation from the Planning Commission that requires adoption of an
ordinance, then a new public hearing will be held at the City Council. At the City Council hearing,
the applicant and all interested parties are encouraged to testify. Testimony may be given orally or
in writing. After public testimony, the City Council may approve, deny, table, or continue the item.

Appeals

® |f the applicant, or other parties providing written testimony prior to or at the hearing, or parties
providing oral testimony at the hearing; are dissatisfied with the decision of the Planning
Commission, they may file an appeal within 14 calendar days of the issuance of the decision.
Appeals of Type Il decisions proceed to the City Council for a hearing on the record. City Council
decisions may only be appealed to the Land Use Board of Appeals.

Permits

B Once a final decision has been made, the applicant may proceed or submit other permits, if
necessary (i.e.: design review, building permits, subdivision approval, etc.). For applications
involving more than one application type, the permits may be processed individually under each
procedure or under the highest procedure number that applies.

Helpful Hints:

®  Questions? Information is free! Please do not hesitate to call (503) 537-1240 prior to submitting
the application.

= Partial Applications: Please do not submit partial applications. If the application, plans, and fee
are not submitted together; processing will be delayed and the application may not be accepted for
review.

B Face-to-Face: It is best to submit an application in person. That way you can receive immediate
feedback if there's missing information or suggestions for improvements.



PLANNING DIVISION planning@newbergoregon.gov

DigiSign Verified - 9c4de3ac-8d37-4c05-b778-36131b0b658b
I : COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (503) 537-1240

LAND USE REVIEW PROCEDURE

TYPE Ill

( A pre-application conference is optional, but encouraged, for Type |ll procedures. )

APPLICATION SUBMITTED /The city’s pustomer service go.allis
to determine completeness within

Completeness N
Check \_ 14 days.

f Deemed complete: \
o Letter is emailed to applicant explaining
the next required steps in the process.

DAY COMPLETENESS DETERMINATION «Application is referred to other city
ZERO AND REFERRAL departments and public agencies.
Comment _~ Deemed incomplete:
Pegod P ———— -Letter is emailed to the applicant
Staff i el [ 0D 6 \ detailing the needed information. /
a application will be denied and no
Analysis fees returned.
Notice of proposal mailed 20 days before
40 PUBLIC NOTICE the public hearing to all properties within
DAYS 500 ft of the site. A notice sign is also
posted on site.This is done by the Applicant
Published 7 days before hearing, includes )
STAFF REPORT staff recommendation to Planning
\ Commission. J

(The city’s customer service goal is to hold "\
PUBLIC HEARING a public hearing within approximately 45
days after it is deemed complete.

 Decision may be pronounced at hearing or
\ continued to a future date.

NOTICE OF DECISION (Tssued within 2 days of the Planning
14-Day \Commission decision

A e al An appeal may be made to the Planning
pp Commission.

Period The Planning Commission’s decision may be
appealed City Council.

TheCityCouncil’s decision can be appealed to the
LandUse Board of Appeals(LUBA)

77 DECISION IS FINAL Fl'he Decision is final in 14 days,
DAYS* Qf not appealed.

*Timeline reflects Newberg Municipal Code requirements and the city’s customer service goals. Oregon State law allows 30 days for
a completeness determination and requires a final local decision within 120 days of complete application. Applicants always retain

the right to postpone the decision or extend past 120 days.



DigiSign Verified - 9c4de3ac-8d37-4c05-b778-36131b0b658b

§ 15.240.070 TYPE lll PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA

The city's planned unit development requlations are intended to:

(A) Encourage comprehensive planning in areas of sufficient size to provide developments at least equal in the
quality of their environment to traditional lot by lot development and that are reasonably compatible with the
surrounding area; and

(B) Provide flexibility in architectural design, placement and clustering of buildings, use of open space and
outdoor living areas, and provision of circulation facilities, parking, storage and related site and design
considerations; and

(C) Promote an attractive, safe, efficient and stable environment which incorporates a compatible variety and
mix of uses and dwelling types; and

(D) Provide for economy of shared services and facilities; and

(E) Implement the density requirements of the comprehensive plan and zoning districts through the allocation
of the number of permitted dwelling units based on the number of bedrooms provided.

The applicant must apply for a Pre-Application meeting to discuss the feasibility of the proposed planned unit
development and determine the processing requirements.

An application, with the required fee, for preliminary plan approval shall be made by the owner of the affected
property, or the owner’s authorized agent.

The application shall contain or have attached sufficient information as prescribed by the director to allow
processing and review in accordance with these regulations. As part of the application, the property owner
requesting the planned development shall file a waiver stating that the owner will not file any demand against
the city under Ballot Measure 49, approved November 6, 2007, that amended ORS Chapters 195 and 197
based on the city’s decision on the planned development.

Decisions shall include review and recognition of the potential impact of the entire development,
and preliminary approval shall include written affirmative findings that::

(1) The proposed development is consistent with standards, plans, policies and ordinances adopted by the
city; and
(2) The proposed development's general design and character, including but not limited to anticipated building

locations, bulk and height, location and distribution of recreation space, parking, roads, access and other
uses, will be reasonably compatible with appropriate development of abutting properties and the
surrounding neighborhood; and

(3) Public services and facilities are available to serve the proposed development. If such public services and
facilities are not at present available, an affirmative finding may be made under this criterion if the evidence
indicates that the public services and facilities will be available prior to need by reason of:

a) Public facility planning by the appropriate agencies; or

b) A commitment by the applicant to provide private services and facilities adequate to accommodate the
projected demands of the project; or

c) Commitment by the applicant to provide for offsetting all added public costs or early commitment of
public funds made necessary by the development.

(4) The provisions and conditions of this code have been met; and

(5) Proposed buildings, roads, and other uses are designed and sited to ensure preservation of features, and
other unique or worthwhile natural features and to prevent soil erosion or flood hazard; and

(6) There will be adequate on-site provisions for utility services, emergency vehicular access, and, where
appropriate, public transportation facilities; and

(7) Sufficient usable recreation facilities, outdoor living area, open space, and parking areas will be
conveniently and safely accessible for use by residents of the proposed development; and

(8) Proposed buildings, structures, and uses will be arranged, designed, and constructed so as to take into
consideration the surrounding area in terms of access, building scale, bulk, design, setbacks, heights,
coverage, landscaping and screening, and to assure reasonable privacy for residents of the development
and surrounding properties.



DigiSign Verified - 9c4de3ac-8d37-4c05-b778-36131b0b658b

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT CHECKLIST

The following items must be submitted with each application. Incomplete applications will not be processed.
Incomplete or missing information may delay the review process. Check with the Planning Division regarding
additional requirements for your project.

v

v

FEES v | PUBLIC NOTICE INFORMATION — Draft of mailer

notice and sign; mailing list of all properties within 500’.

CURRENT TITLE REPORT (within 60 days)

MEASURE 49 WAIVER

v | WRITTEN CRITERIA RESPONSE — Address the criteria listed on page 30. In addition, the written response

should address the planned unit development general provisions found in § 15.240.020 of the Development
Code.

SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN - Make sure the plans are prepared so that they are at least 8 72 x 11 inches in
size and the scale is standard, being 10, 20, 30, 40, 50, 100 or multiples of 100 to the inch (such as 1”:10’,
17:20’ or other multiples of 10). Include the following information in the plan set (information may be shown on
multiple pages):

Existing Site Features: Show existing landscaping, grades, slopes and structures on the site and for areas

within 100’ of the site. Indicate items to be preserved and removed.

Drainage & Grading: Show the direction and location of on and off-site drainage on the plans. This shall
include site drainage, parking lot drainage, size and location of storm drain lines, and any retention or
detention facilities necessary for the project. Provide an engineered grading plan if necessary.

Utilities: Show the location of and access to all public and private utilities, including sewer, water, storm

water and any overhead utilities.

Public Improvements: Indicate any public improvements that will be constructed as part of the project,

including sidewalks, roadways, and utilities.

Access, Parking, and Circulation: Show proposed vehicular and pedestrian circulation, parking spaces,

parking aisles, and the location and number of access points from adjacent streets. Provide dimensions for

parking aisles, back-up areas, and other items as appropriate. Indicate where required bicycle parking will
be provided on the site along with the dimensions of the parking spaces.

Site Features: Indicate the location and design of all on-site buildings and other facilities such as mail

delivery, trash disposal, above ground utilities, loading areas, and outdoor recreation areas. Include

appropriate buffering and screening as required by the code.

Exterior Lighting Plan: Show all exterior lighting, including the direction of the lighting, size and type of

fixtures, and an indication of the amount of lighting using foot candles for analysis.

Landscape Plan: Include a comprehensive plan that indicates the size, species and locations of all

planned landscaping for the site. The landscape plan should have a legend that indicates the common and

botanical names of plants, quantity and spacing, size (caliper, height, or container size), planned
landscaping materials, and description of the irrigation system. Include a calculation of the percentage of
landscaped area.

ADA Plan Compliance: Indicate compliance with any applicable ADA provisions.

Architectural Drawings: Provide floor plans and elevations for all planned structures.

Sun Exposure Plan Diagram: All buildings and structures on the site must comply with the sun exposure

plan (see Figure VIII in the Development Code for more details).

Signs and Graphics: Show the location, size, colors, materials, and lighting of all exterior signs, graphics or

other informational or directional features if applicable.

Other: Show any other site elements which will assist in the evaluation of the site and the project.

M &

Ky

KK

KN IENEN K

TRAFFIC STUDY - A traffic study shall be submitted for any project that generates in excess of forty (40) trips
per p.m. peak hour. This requirement may be waived by the Director when a determination is made that a
previous traffic study adequately addresses the proposal and/or when off-site and frontage improvements have
already been completed which adequately mitigate any traffic impacts and/or the proposed use is not in a
location which is adjacent to an intersection which is functioning at a poor level of service. A traffic study may
be required by the Director for projects below forty (40) trips per p.m. peak hour where the use is located
immediately adjacent to an intersection functioning at a poor level of service.

TUALATIN VALLEY FIRE & RESCUE SERVICE PROVIDER PERMIT -
The permit form and detailed information can be found on TVFR website at:

https //www.tvfr.com/376/New-Construction-and-Service-Provider-Pe




@) TICOR TITLE"

Company of Oregon

2

PRELIMINARY REPORT

In response to the application for a policy of title insurance referenced herein Ticor Title Company of Oregon
hereby reports that it is prepared to issue, or cause to be issued, as of the specified date, a policy or policies of
title insurance describing the land and the estate or interest hereinafter set forth, insuring against loss which may
be sustained by reason of any defect, lien or encumbrance not shown or referred to as an exception herein or not
excluded from coverage pursuant to the printed Schedules or Conditions of said policy forms.

The printed Exceptions and Exclusions from the coverage of said policy or policies are set forth in Exhibit One.
Copies of the policy forms should be read. They are available from the office which issued this report.

This report (and any supplements or amendments hereto) is issued solely for the purpose of facilitating the
issuance of a policy of title insurance and no liability is assumed hereby.

The policy(s) of title insurance to be issued hereunder will be policy(s) of Chicago Title Insurance Company, a/an
Florida corporation.

Please read the exceptions shown or referred to herein and the Exceptions and Exclusions set forth in
Exhibit One of this report carefully. The Exceptions and Exclusions are meant to provide you with
notice of matters which are not covered under the terms of the title insurance policy and should be
carefully considered.

It is important to note that this preliminary report is not a written representation as to the condition of
title and may not list all liens, defects and encumbrances affecting title to the land.

This preliminary report is for the exclusive use of the parties to the contemplated transaction, and the Company
does not have any liability to any third parties nor any liability until the full premium is paid and a policy is issued.
Until all necessary documents are placed of record, the Company reserves the right to amend or supplement
this preliminary report.

Countersigned

[ [0

Peter Harris

Preliminary Report Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



(@) TICOR TITLE"

Company of Oregon

1455 SW Broadway, Suite 1450, Portland, OR 97201
(503)646-4444 FAX (503)469-4198

PRELIMINARY REPORT

TITLE OFFICER: Deborah Clark ORDER NO.: 471823128578
deborah.clark@titlegroup.fntg.com CUSTOMER NO.: 262303001
(503)535-3743 Supplement 1: Eff Date

TO: Lawyers Title
Eden Toothman
825 NE Multnomah Suite 1175
Portland, OR 97232
OWNER/SELLER: Ross D. Kerr and Rolland G. Kerr, Jr.
BUYER/BORROWER: Ichijo USA Co., LTD
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 3809 N Springbrook Road, Newberg, OR 97132

EFFECTIVE DATE: August 9, 2024, 08:00 AM
1. THE POLICY AND ENDORSEMENTS TO BE ISSUED AND THE RELATED CHARGES ARE:

AMOUNT PREMIUM

ALTA Owner's Policy 2021 $ 9,800,000.00 $ 24,165.00
Owner's Extended

OTIRO Endorsement No. 110 $ 0.00

2. THE ESTATE OR INTEREST IN THE LAND HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED OR REFERRED TO COVERED
BY THIS REPORT IS:

A Fee

3. TITLE TO SAID ESTATE OR INTEREST AT THE DATE HEREOF IS VESTED IN:
Ross D. Kerr, as to an undivided one-half interest and Rolland G. Kerr, Jr., as to an undivided one-half
interest, as tenants in common

4. THE LAND REFERRED TO IN THIS REPORT IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF YAMHILL, STATE OF
OREGON, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF

Preliminary Report Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



Order No.: 471823128578
Supplement 1: Eff Date

EXHIBIT "A"
Legal Description

PARCEL 1:

Beginning at a point 160 rods North and 46 rods West of the Southeast corner of the Solomon Heater and wife
Donation Land Claim in Township 3 South, Range 2 West of the Willamette Meridian in Yamhill County, Oregon;
thence running West 400 feet; thence South 300 feet to the center of the County Road and 50 feet North of the
center of the railroad track of the Southern Pacific Company; and thence in a Northeasterly direction along the
center of said County Road to the Point of Beginning.

PARCEL 2:

A tract of land in Section 9, Township 3 South, Range 2 West of the Willamette Meridian in Yamhill County,
Oregon, more particularly described as follows:

Being a part of the Solomon Heater Donation Land Claim, Notification No. 1471, Claim No. 48 in Section 9,
Township 3 South, Range 2 West of the Willamette Meridian in Yamhill County, Oregon, and beginning at an
iron pipe in the County Road at point 45.23 chains North and 10.00 chains West from the Southeast corner of
said Heater Claim; thence North 89°24’ West 6.105 chains to a set iron pipe for corner; and the True Point of
Beginning of the property herein described; thence North 5.705 chains to a set stake at the Northeast corner of a
3 acre tract; thence North 89°24’ West along the North line of said 3 acre tract, 15.356 chains to a stake on
division line of said Heater Claim; thence South along the division line of said claim, 11.235 chains to the North
line of that certain tract conveyed to Florence Rees Baldwin by Deed recorded in Book 85, Page 383, Deed
Records; thence North 89°51’ East along the North line of said Baldwin tract and the North line of the Mills tract
and the same extended Easterly to the Southerly Southwest corner of that certain tract conveyed by Fred Kincaid
et ux. to Elvin Mills et ux., by Deed recorded November 16, 1962 in Film Volume 26, Page 656, Deed and
Mortgage Records; thence North 55 feet; thence West 14 feet; thence North 240 feet; thence West 130 feet;
thence North 64 feet to the Point of Beginning.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM that certain tract conveyed by Emma O. Kincaid to Springbrook Packing Company,
by Deed recorded February 21, 1938 in Book 114, Page 1, Deed Records.

Preliminary Report Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



Order No.: 471823128578
Supplement 1: Eff Date

AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT, ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED AND EXCEPTIONS TO COVERAGE IN
ADDITION TO THE PRINTED EXCEPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS IN THE POLICY FORM WOULD BE AS
FOLLOWS:

GENERAL EXCEPTIONS:

1. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that
levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public Records; proceedings by a public agency
which may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the
records of such agency or by the Public Records.

2. Any facts, rights, interests or claims, which are not shown by the Public Records but which could be
ascertained by an inspection of the Land or by making inquiry of persons in possession thereof.

3. Easements, or claims of easement, which are not shown by the Public Records; reservations or
exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; water rights, claims or title to water.

4. Any encroachment (of existing improvements located on the Land onto adjoining land or of existing
improvements located on adjoining land onto the subject Land), encumbrance, violation, variation or
adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land
survey of the subject Land.

5. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor, material, equipment rental or workers compensation
heretofore or hereafter furnished, imposed by law and not shown by the Public Records.

SPECIFIC ITEMS AND EXCEPTIONS:

6. As disclosed by the assessment and tax roll, the premises herein were once specially assessed for
farmland, forestland or other special assessment status and later disqualified. Per ORS 308A.700 to
308A.733, additional taxes were imposed and remain as potential additional tax liability for the property.
A check with the Assessor's office will be necessary to determine the effect and continuation of the
additional tax liability.

Additional Tax Liability Amount: $2,904.34

7. The Land has been classified as Forest land, as disclosed by the tax roll. If the Land becomes
disqualified, said Land may be subject to additional taxes and/or penalties.

8. Rights of the public to any portion of the Land lying within the area commonly known as streets, roads
and highways.

9. Any invalidity or defect in the title of the vestees in the event that the trust referred to herein is invalid or
fails to grant sufficient powers to the trustee(s) or in the event there is a lack of compliance with the
terms and provisions of the trust instrument.

If title is to be insured in the trustee(s) of a trust (or if their act is to be insured), this Company will require
a copy of said Trust Agreement or a Trust Certification pursuant to ORS Chapter 130.860.

The Company reserves the right to make additional requirements or add additional items or exceptions
after review of the requested documentation.

Affects: The former ownership interest held under the Kerr Living Trust, dated March 27, 2002.

Preliminary Report Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



Order No.: 471823128578
Supplement 1: Eff Date

10. Please be advised that our search did not disclose any open Deeds of Trust of record. If you should
have knowledge of any outstanding obligation, please contact the Title Department immediately for
further review prior to closing.

11. If requested to issue an extended coverage ALTA loan policy, the following matters must be addressed:
a) The rights of tenants holding under unrecorded leases or tenancies
b) Matters disclosed by a statement as to parties in possession and as to any construction,

alterations or repairs to the Land within the last 75 days. The Company must be notified in
the event that any funds are to be used for construction, alterations or repairs.
c) Any facts which would be disclosed by an accurate survey of the Land
12. Property taxes in an undetermined amount, which are a lien but not yet payable, including any
assessments collected with taxes to be levied for the fiscal year 2024-2025.
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS/NOTES:
A. Note: Property taxes for the fiscal year shown below are paid in full.
Fiscal Year: 2023-2024
Amount: $5,719.65
Levy Code: 29.2
Account No.: 25902
Map No.: R3209 02300
Prior to close of escrow, please contact the Tax Collector's Office to confirm all amounts owing, including
current fiscal year taxes, supplemental taxes, escaped assessments and any delinquencies.

B. In addition to the standard policy exceptions, the exceptions enumerated above shall appear on the final
ALTA Policy unless removed prior to issuance.

C. Note: There are NO conveyances affecting said Land recorded within 24 months of the date of this
report.

D. The Company will require the following documents for review prior to the issuance of any title insurance
predicated upon a conveyance or encumbrance by the corporation named below:

Name of Corporation: Ichijo USA Co., LTD
a) A Copy of the corporation By-laws and Articles of Incorporation
b) An original or certified copy of a resolution authorizing the transaction contemplated herein
c) If the Articles and/or By-laws require approval by a ‘parent’ organization, a copy of the Articles
and By-laws of the parent
d) A current dated certificate of good standing from the proper governmental authority of the
state in which the entity was created
The Company reserves the right to add additional items or make further requirements after review of the
requested documentation.
Preliminary Report Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM

OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



Order No.: 471823128578
Supplement 1: Eff Date

The Oregon Corporation Commission records were unavailable for search as of the effective date herein.
Evidence of the existence of the above referenced entity will be required prior to closing.

E. Note: There are no matters against the party(ies) shown below which would appear as exceptions to
coverage in a title insurance product:

Parties: Ichijo USA Co., LTD

F. Note: The State of Oregon requires every ALTA Owner's Policy (07-01-2021) to include the OTIRO 110
Endorsement as a supplement to the definition of Insured in said Owner's Policy's Conditions to confirm
coverage is the same for an Oregon Registered Domestic Partner as it is for a Spouse.

G. Note: No utility search has been made or will be made for water, sewer or storm drainage charges unless
the City/Service District claims them as liens (i.e. foreclosable) and reflects them on its lien docket as of
the date of closing. Buyers should check with the appropriate city bureau or water service district and
obtain a billing cutoff. Such charges must be adjusted outside of escrow.

H. Note: Effective January 1, 2008, Oregon law (ORS 314.258) mandates withholding of Oregon income
taxes from sellers who do not continue to be Oregon residents or qualify for an exemption. Please
contact your Escrow Closer for further information.

l. THE FOLLOWING NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW: YOU WILL BE REVIEWING,
APPROVING AND SIGNING IMPORTANT DOCUMENTS AT CLOSING. LEGAL CONSEQUENCES
FOLLOW FROM THE SELECTION AND USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS. YOU MAY CONSULT AN
ATTORNEY ABOUT THESE DOCUMENTS. YOU SHOULD CONSULT AN ATTORNEY IF YOU HAVE
QUESTIONS OR CONCERNS ABOUT THE TRANSACTION OR ABOUT THE DOCUMENTS. IF YOU
WISH TO REVIEW TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS THAT YOU HAVE NOT SEEN, PLEASE CONTACT
THE ESCROW AGENT.

J. Recording Charge (Per Document) is the following:
County First Page Each Additional Page
Yambhill $81.00 $5.00

Note: When possible the company will record electronically. An additional charge of $5.00 applies to
each document that is recorded electronically.

Note: Please send any documents for recording to the following address:
Portland Title Group

Attn: Recorder

1455 SW Broadway, Suite 1450

Portland, OR. 97201

Please email your release to the following email address: or-ttc-yamhillrecording@ticortitle.com

K. Note: This map/plat is being furnished as an aid in locating the herein described Land in relation to
adjoining streets, natural boundaries and other land. Except to the extent a policy of title insurance is
expressly modified by endorsement, if any, the Company does not insure dimensions, distances or
acreage shown thereon.

L. Notice: Please be aware that due to the conflict between federal and state laws concerning the
cultivation, distribution, processing, manufacture, sale, dispensing or use of marijuana and psilocybin,
the Company is not able to close or insure any transaction involving Land associated with these
activities.

Preliminary Report Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



Order No.: 471823128578
Supplement 1: Eff Date

M. NOTE: IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING PROPERTY TAX PAYMENTS:
Fiscal Year: July 1st through June 30th
Taxes become a lien on real property, but are not yet payable: July 1st
Taxes become certified and payable (approximately on this date): October 15th
First one third payment of taxes is due: November 15th
Second one third payment of taxes is due: February 15th
Final payment of taxes is due: May 15th

Discounts: If two thirds are paid by November 15th, a 2% discount will apply. If the full amount of the
taxes are paid by November 15th, a 3% discount will apply.

Interest: Interest accrues as of the 15th of each month based on any amount that is unpaid by the due
date. No interest is charged if the minimum amount is paid according to the above mentioned payment
schedule.

Preliminary Report Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



1.

1.

1.

1.

a.

b.
c.

EXHIBIT ONE

2021 AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION LOAN POLICY (07-01-2021)
EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the
Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees, or expenses that arise by
reason of:

any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to
building and zoning) that restricts, regulates, prohibits, or relates to:

i. the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land;

ii. the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement on the Land;

iii. the subdivision of land; or

iv. environmental remediation or protection.

any governmental forfeiture, police, regulatory, or national security power.

the effect of a violation or enforcement of any matter excluded under Exclusion 1.a.
or 1.b.

Any power of eminent domain. Exclusion 2 does not modify or limit the coverage
provided under Covered Risk 7.
Any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter:

a.
b.

]

created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;

not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at the Date of
Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in writing to the
Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an
Insured under this policy;

resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;

attaching or created subsequent to the Date of Policy (Exclusion 3.d. does not
modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 11, 13, or 14); or

e. resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if consideration
sufficient to qualify the Insured named in Schedule A as a bona fide purchaser
or encumbrancer had been given for the Insured Mortgage at the Date of Policy.

Unenforceability of the lien of the Insured Mortgage because of the inability or failure

of an Insured to comply with applicable doing-business law.

Invalidity or unenforceability of the lien of the Insured Mortgage that arises out of the

transaction evidenced by the Insured Mortgage and is based upon usury or

Consumer Protection Law.

Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or

similar creditors' rights law, that the transaction creating the lien of the Insured

Mortgage is a:

a. fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer;

b. voidable transfer under the Uniform Voidable Transactions Act; or

c. preferential transfer:

i. to the extend the Insured Mortgage is not a transfer made as a
contemporaneous exchange for new value; or
ii. for any reason not stated in the Covered Risk 13.b

Any claim of a PACA-PSA Trust. Exclusion 7 does not modify or limit the coverage

provided under Covered Risk 8.

Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by a

governmental authority and created or attaching between the Date of Policy and the

date of recording of the Insured Mortgage in the Public Records. Exclusion 8 does

not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 2.b. or 11.b.

Any discrepancy in the quantity of the area, square footage, or acreage of the Land

or of any improvement to the Land.

The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above
Exclusions from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions from Coverage.

SCHEDULE B - GENERAL EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE

This policy does not insure against loss or damage (and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees or expenses) which arise by reason of:

Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any
taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public
Records; proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments, or
notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by
the Public Records.

Facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the Public Records but which
could be ascertained by an inspection of the Land or by making inquiry of persons in
possession thereof.

Easements, or claims of easement, not shown by the Public Records; reservations or
exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof, water rights, claims or
title to water.

a.

b.
c.

4.

5.

Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance
affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey
of the Land. The term "encroachment" includes encroachments of existing
improvements located on the Land onto adjoining land, and encroachments onto the
Land of existing improvements located on adjoining land.

Any lien for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, or for
contributions due to the State of Oregon for unemployment compensation or
worker's compensation, imposed by law and not shown by the Public Records.

2021 AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION OWNER'S POLICY (07-01-2021)
EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are excluded from the coverage of this policy and the Company will
not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees or expenses that arise by reason of:

any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to
building and zoning) that restricts, regulates, prohibits, or relates to:

i. the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land;

ii. the character, dimensions or location of any improvement on the Land;

iii. the subdivision of land; or

iv. environmental remediation or protection;

any governmental forfeiture, police, regulatory, or national security power

the effect of a violation or enforcement of any matter excluded under Exclusion 1.a.
or 1.b.

Exclusion 1 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5 or 6.
2. Any power of eminent domain. Exclusion 2 does not modify or limit the coverage
provided under Covered Risk 7.

3. Any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter:

a.
b.

created, suffered, assumed or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;

not known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at the Date of
Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in writing to the
Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an
Insured under this policy;

resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;

d. attaching or created subsequent to the Date of Policy (Exclusion 3.d. does not
modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 9 or 10); or

e. resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if consideration
sufficient to qualify the Insured named in Schedule A as a bona fide purchaser
had been given for the Title at the Date of Policy.

Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency or

similar creditors' rights law, that the transaction vesting the Title as shown in

Schedule A is a:

a. fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, or

b. voidable transfer under the Uniform Voidable Transactions Act; or

c. preferential transfer:

i. to the extent the instrument of transfer vesting the Title as shown in
Schedule A is not a transfer made as a contemporaneous exchange for new
value; or

ii. for any other reason not stated in Covered Risk 9.b.

Any claim of a PACA-PSA Trust. Exclusion 5 does not modify or limit the coverage
provided under Covered Risk 8.

Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed or collected by a
governmental authority that becomes due and payable after the Date of Policy.
Exclusion 6 does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 2.b.
Any discrepancy in the quantity of the area, square footage, or acreage of the Land
or of any improvement to the Land.

The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above
Exclusions from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions from Coverage.

SCHEDULE B - GENERAL EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE

This policy does not insure against loss or damage (and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees or expenses) which arise by reason of:

Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any
taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public
Records; proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments, or
notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by
the Public Records.

2. Facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the Public Records but which
could be ascertained by an inspection of the Land or by making inquiry of persons in
possession thereof.

3. Easements, or claims of easement, not shown by the Public Records; reservations or
exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof, water rights, claims or

4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance

affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey
of the Land. The term "encroachment" includes encroachments of existing
improvements located on the Land onto adjoining land, and encroachments onto the
Land of existing improvements located on adjoining land.

Any lien for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, or for
contributions due to the State of Oregon for unemployment compensation or
worker's compensation, imposed by law and not shown by the Public Records.

Preliminary Report (Exhibit One)

Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



title to water.

Preliminary Report (Exhibit One) Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



EXHIBIT ONE

2006 AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION LOAN POLICY (06-17-06)
EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy and the
Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees or expenses that arise by
reason of:
1. (a) Any law, ordinance or governmental regulation (including but not limited to
building and zoning) restricting, regulating, prohibiting or relating to
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land;
(i) the character, dimensions or location of any improvement erected on the
land;
(i) the subdivision of land; or
(iv) environmental protection;
or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances or governmental
regulations. This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify or limit the coverage provided
under Covered Risk 5.

(b) Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the
coverage provided under Covered Risk 6.

2. Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage

provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8.

3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters

(a) created, suffered, assumed or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;

(b) not known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy,
but known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in writing to the Company
by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an
Insured under this policy;

(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;

(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify
or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 11, 13, or 14); or

(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured
Claimant had paid value for the Insured Mortgage.

4. Unenforceability of the lien of the Insured Mortgage because of the inability or failure
of an Insured to comply with the applicable doing-business laws of the state where
the Land is situated.

5. Invalidity or unenforceability in whole or in part of the lien of the Insured Mortgage
that arises out of the transaction evidenced by the Insured Mortgage and is based
upon usury or any consumer credit protection or truth-in-lending law.

6. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency or
similar creditors' rights laws, that the transaction creating the lien of the Insured
Mortgage, is
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, or
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in the Covered Risk 13(b) of this

policy.

7. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental
authority and created or attaching between Date of Policy and the date of recording
of the Insured Mortgage in the Public Records. This Exclusion does not modify or
limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 11(b).

The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above
Exclusions from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions from Coverage.

SCHEDULE B - GENERAL EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE

This policy does not insure against loss or damage (and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees or expenses) which arise by reason of:

1. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any
taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public
Records; proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments,
or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency
or by the Public Records.

2. Facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the Public Records but
which could be ascertained by an inspection of the Land or by making inquiry of
persons in possession thereof.

3. Easements, or claims of easement, not shown by the Public Records; reservations
or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof, water rights,
claims or title to water.

4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance
affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey
of the Land. The term "encroachment" includes encroachments of existing
improvements located on the Land onto adjoining land, and encroachments onto the
Land of existing improvements located on adjoining land.

5. Any lien for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, or for
contributions due to the State of Oregon for unemployment compensation or
worker's compensation, imposed by law and not shown by the Public Records.

2006 AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION OWNER'S POLICY (06-17-06)
EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE

The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy and the
Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, attorneys' fees or expenses that arise by
reason of:
1. (a) Any law, ordinance or governmental regulation (including but not limited to
building and zoning) restricting, regulating, prohibiting or relating to
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land;
(i) the character, dimensions or location of any improvement erected on the
land;
(i) the subdivision of land; or
(iv) environmental protection;
or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances or governmental
regulations. This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify or limit the coverage provided
under Covered Risk 5.
(b) Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the
coverage provided under Covered Risk 6.
2. Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage
provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8.
3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters
(a) created, suffered, assumed or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;

(b) not known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy,
but known to the Insured Claimant and not disclosed in writing to the Company
by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an
Insured under this policy;

(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant;

(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify
or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 9 and 10); or

(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured
Claimant had paid value for the Title.

4. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency or
similar creditors' rights laws, that the transaction creating the lien of the Insured
Mortgage, is
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, or
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in the Covered Risk 9 of this

policy.

7. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental
authority and created or attaching between Date of Policy and the date of recording
of the deed or other instrument of transfer in the Public Records that vests Title as
shown in Schedule A.

The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage. In addition to the above
Exclusions from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions from Coverage.

SCHEDULE B - GENERAL EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE

This policy does not insure against loss or damage (and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees or expenses) which arise by reason of:

1. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any
taxing authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public
Records; proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments,
or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency
or by the Public Records.

2. Facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the Public Records but
which could be ascertained by an inspection of the Land or by making inquiry of
persons in possession thereof.

3. Easements, or claims of easement, not shown by the Public Records; reservations
or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof, water rights,
claims or title to water.

4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance
affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey
of the Land. The term "encroachment" includes encroachments of existing
improvements located on the Land onto adjoining land, and encroachments onto the
Land of existing improvements located on adjoining land.

5. Any lien for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, or for
contributions due to the State of Oregon for unemployment compensation or
worker's compensation, imposed by law and not shown by the Public Records.

Preliminary Report (Exhibit One)

Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM
OR-TT-FKTW-02743.471818-SPS1-24-471823128578



-i"’ IRE SAFEW Inquire before you wire!

WIRE FRAUD ALERT

This Notice is not intended to provide legal or professional advice.
If you have any questions, please consult with a lawyer.

All parties to a real estate transaction are targets for wire fraud and many have lost hundreds of thousands of dollars
because they simply relied on the wire instructions received via email, without further verification. If funds are to be
wired in conjunction with this real estate transaction, we strongly recommend verbal verification of wire
instructions through a known, trusted phone number prior to sending funds.

In addition, the following non-exclusive self-protection strategies are recommended to minimize exposure to possible
wire fraud.

e NEVER RELY on emails purporting to change wire instructions. Parties to a transaction rarely change wire
instructions in the course of a transaction.

e ALWAYS VERIFY wire instructions, specifically the ABA routing number and account number, by calling the party
who sent the instructions to you. DO NOT use the phone number provided in the email containing the instructions,
use phone numbers you have called before or can otherwise verify. Obtain the number of relevant parties to the
transaction as soon as an escrow account is opened. DO NOT send an email to verify as the email address
may be incorrect or the email may be intercepted by the fraudster.

e USE COMPLEX EMAIL PASSWORDS that employ a combination of mixed case, numbers, and symbols. Make
your passwords greater than eight (8) characters. Also, change your password often and do NOT reuse the same
password for other online accounts.

e USE MULTI-FACTOR AUTHENTICATION for email accounts. Your email provider or IT staff may have specific
instructions on how to implement this feature.

For more information on wire-fraud scams or to report an incident, please refer to the following links:

Federal Bureau of Investigation: Internet Crime Complaint Center:
http://www.fbi.gov http://www.ic3.gov

Wire Fraud Alert

Original Effective Date: 5/11/2017

Current Version Date: 5/11/2017 471823128578 - WIRE0016 (DSI Rev. 12/07/17)
TM and © Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and/or an affiliate. All rights reserved


http://www.fbi.gov
http://www.ic3.gov

FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL
PRIVACY NOTICE
Effective July 1, 2024

Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiary companies (collectively, "FNF," "our," or "we")
respect and are committed to protecting your privacy. This Privacy Notice explains how we collect, use, and
protect personal information, when and to whom we disclose such information, and the choices you have about
the use and disclosure of that information.

A limited number of FNF subsidiaries have their own privacy notices. If a subsidiary has its own privacy notice,
the privacy notice will be available on the subsidiary's website and this Privacy Notice does not apply.

Collection of Personal Information

FNF may collect the following categories of Personal Information:

e contact information (e.g., name, address, phone number, email address);

e demographic information (e.g., date of birth, gender, marital status);

o identity information (e.g. Social Security Number, driver's license, passport, or other government ID number);
¢ financial account information (e.g. loan or bank account information);

e biometric data (e.g. fingerprints, retina or iris scans, voiceprints, or other unique biological characteristics,
and

e other personal information necessary to provide products or services to you.

We may collect Personal Information about you from:

e information we receive from you or your agent;

¢ information about your transactions with FNF, our affiliates, or others; and

e information we receive from consumer reporting agencies and/or governmental entities, either directly from
these entities or through others.

Collection of Browsing Information
FNF automatically collects the following types of Browsing Information when you access an FNF website, online
service, or application (each an "FNF Website") from your Internet browser, computer, and/or device:

e Internet Protocol (IP) address and operating system;
e browser version, language, and type;
e domain name system requests; and

e browsing history on the FNF Website, such as date and time of your visit to the FNF Website and visits to
the pages within the FNF Website.

Like most websites, our servers automatically log each visitor to the FNF Website and may collect the Browsing
Information described above. We use Browsing Information for system administration, troubleshooting, fraud
investigation, and to improve our websites. Browsing Information generally does not reveal anything personal
about you, though if you have created a user account for an FNF Website and are logged into that account, the
FNF Website may be able to link certain browsing activity to your user account.

Other Online Specifics

Cookies. When you visit an FNF Website, a "cookie" may be sent to your computer. A cookie is a small piece
of data that is sent to your Internet browser from a web server and stored on your computer's hard drive.

Information gathered using cookies helps us improve your user experience. For example, a cookie can help the
website load properly or can customize the display page based on your browser type and user preferences. You
can choose whether or not to accept cookies by changing your Internet browser settings. Be aware that doing so
may impair or limit some functionality of the FNF Website.

Web Beacons. We use web beacons to determine when and how many times a page has been viewed. This
information is used to improve our websites.

Do Not Track. Currently our FNF Websites do not respond to "Do Not Track" features enabled through your
browser.

Privacy Statement Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM by
ORD1047.doc ----471823128578



Links to Other Sites. FNF Websites may contain links to unaffiliated third-party websites. FNF is not responsible
for the privacy practices or content of those websites. We recommend that you read the privacy policy of every
website you visit.

Use of Personal Information
FNF uses Personal Information for these main purposes:

e To provide products and services to you or in connection with a transaction involving you.
e Toimprove our products and services.

e To prevent and detect fraud;

e To maintain the security of our systems, tools, accounts, and applications;

e To verify and authenticate identities and credentials;

e To communicate with you about our, our affiliates', and others' products and services, jointly or
independently.

e To provide reviews and testimonials about our services, with your consent.

When Information Is Disclosed
We may disclose your Personal Information and Browsing Information in the following circumstances:

e to enable us to detect or prevent criminal activity, fraud, material misrepresentation, or nondisclosure;

o to affiliated or nonaffiliated service providers who provide or perform services or functions on our behalf and
who agree to use the information only to provide such services or functions;

o to affiliated or nonaffiliated third parties with whom we perform joint marketing, pursuant to an agreement
with them to jointly market financial products or services to you;

e to law enforcement or authorities in connection with an investigation, or in response to a subpoena or court
order; or

e in the good-faith belief that such disclosure is necessary to comply with legal process or applicable laws, or
to protect the rights, property, or safety of FNF, its customers, or the public.

The law does not require your prior authorization and does not allow you to restrict the disclosures described
above. Additionally, we may disclose your information to third parties for whom you have given us authorization
or consent to make such disclosure. We do not otherwise share your Personal Information or Browsing
Information with nonaffiliated third parties, except as required or permitted by law.

We reserve the right to transfer your Personal Information, Browsing Information, and any other information, in
connection with the sale or other disposition of all or part of the FNF business and/or assets, or in the event of
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, receivership, or an assignment for the benefit of creditors. By submitting
Personal Information and/or Browsing Information to FNF, you expressly agree and consent to the use and/or
transfer of the foregoing information in connection with any of the above described proceedings.

Security of Your Information
We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards to protect your Personal Information.

Choices With Your Information

Whether you submit Personal Information or Browsing Information to FNF is entirely up to you. If you decide not
to submit Personal Information or Browsing Information, FNF may not be able to provide certain services or
products to you.

For California Residents: We will not share your Personal Information or Browsing Information with nonaffiliated
third parties, except as permitted by California law. For additional information about your California privacy
rights, please visit the "California Privacy" link on our website (https://fnf.com/pages/californiaprivacy.aspx) or
call (888) 413-1748.

For Connecticut Residents: For additional information about your Connecticut consumer privacy rights, or to
make a consumer privacy request, or to appeal a previous privacy request, please email privacy@fnf.com or call
(888) 714-2710.

Privacy Statement Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM by
ORD1047.doc ----471823128578


https://fnf.com/pages/californiaprivacy.aspx
mailto:privacy@fnf.com

For Colorado Residents: For additional information about your Colorado consumer privacy rights, or to make a
consumer privacy request, or appeal a previous privacy request, please email privacy@fnf.com or call
(888) 714-2710.

For Nevada Residents: We are providing this notice pursuant to state law. You may be placed on our internal
Do Not Call List by calling FNF Privacy at (888) 714-2710 or by contacting us via the information set forth at the
end of this Privacy Notice. For further information concerning Nevada's telephone solicitation law, you may
contact: Bureau of Consumer Protection, Office of the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington St., Suite
3900, Las Vegas, NV 89101; Phone number: (702) 486-3132; email: aginquiries@ag.state.nv.us.

For Oregon Residents: We will not share your Personal Information or Browsing Information with nonaffiliated
third parties for marketing purposes, except after you have been informed by us of such sharing and had an
opportunity to indicate that you do not want a disclosure made for marketing purposes. For additional
information about your Oregon consumer privacy rights, or to make a consumer privacy request, or appeal a
previous privacy request, please email privacy@fnf.com or call (888) 714-2710

We may disclose the categories of Personal Information and Browsing information listed above to the following
categories of third parties:

o FNF affiliates and subsidiaries;

o Non-affiliated third parties, with your consent;

e Business in connection with the sale or other disposition of all or part of the FNF business and/or assets;
e Service providers;

e Law endorsement or authorities in connection with an investigation, or in response to a subpoena or court
order.

For Texas Residents: For additional information about your Texas consumer privacy rights, or to make a
consumer privacy request, or appeal a previous privacy request, please email privacy@fnf.com or call
(888) 714-2710.

We may disclose the categories of Personal Information and Browsing information listed above to the following
categories of third parties:

e FNF affiliates and subsidiaries;

o Non-affiliated third parties, with your consent;

e Business in connection with the sale or other disposition of all or part of the FNF business and/or assets;
e Service providers;

e Law endorsement or authorities in connection with an investigation, or in response to a subpoena or court
order.

For Utah Residents: For additional information about your Utah consumer privacy rights, or to make a consumer
privacy request, please call (888) 714-2710.

For Vermont Residents: We will not disclose information about your creditworthiness to our affiliates and will not
disclose your personal information, financial information, credit report, or health information to nonaffiliated third
parties to market to you, other than as permitted by Vermont law, unless you authorize us to make those
disclosures.

For Virginia Residents: For additional information about your Virginia consumer privacy rights, or to make a
consumer privacy request, or appeal a previous privacy request, please email privacy@fnf.com or call (888)
714-2710.

Information From Children

The FNF Websites are not intended or designed to attract persons under the age of eighteen (18). We do not
collect Personal Information from any person that we know to be under the age of thirteen (13) without
permission from a parent or guardian.

Privacy Statement Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM by
ORD1047.doc ----471823128578


mailto:privacy@fnf.com
mailto:aginquiries@ag.state.nv.us
mailto:privacy@fnf.com
mailto:privacy@fnf.com
mailto:privacy@fnf.com

International Users

FNF's headquarters is located within the United States. If you reside outside the United States and choose to
provide Personal Information or Browsing Information to us, please note that we may transfer that information
outside of your country of residence. By providing FNF with your Personal Information and/or Browsing
Information, you consent to our collection, transfer, and use of such information in accordance with this Privacy
Notice.

ENF Website Services for Mortgage Loans

Certain FNF companies provide services to mortgage loan servicers, including hosting websites that collect
customer information on behalf of mortgage loan servicers (the "Service Websites"). The Service Websites may
contain links to both this Privacy Notice and the mortgage loan servicer or lender's privacy notice. The sections
of this Privacy Notice titled When Information is Disclosed, Choices with Your Information, and Accessing and
Correcting Information do not apply to the Service Websites. The mortgage loan servicer or lender's privacy
notice governs use, disclosure, and access to your Personal Information. FNF does not share Personal
Information collected through the Service Websites, except as required or authorized by contract with the
mortgage loan servicer or lender, or as required by law or in the good-faith belief that such disclosure is
necessary: to comply with a legal process or applicable law, to enforce this Privacy Notice, or to protect the
rights, property, or safety of FNF or the public.

Your Consent To This Privacy Notice; Notice Changes

By submitting Personal Information and/or Browsing Information to FNF, you consent to the collection and use of
the information in accordance with this Privacy Notice. We may change this Privacy Notice at any time. The
Privacy Notice's effective date will show the last date changes were made. If you provide information to us
following any change of the Privacy Notice, that signifies your assent to and acceptance of the changes to the
Privacy Notice.

Accessing and Correcting Information; Contact Us
If you have questions or would like to correct your Personal Information, visit FNF's Privacy Inquiry Website or
contact us by phone at (888) 714-2710, by email at privacy@fnf.com, or by mail to:

Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
601 Riverside Avenue,
Jacksonville, Florida 32204
Attn: Chief Privacy Officer

Privacy Statement Printed: 08.14.24 @ 12:16 PM by
ORD1047.doc ----471823128578


https://privacyportal.onetrust.com/webform/aa4c6ea2-82de-4ea3-b17d-9d1616eb2a19/ec2647c9-e34e-4730-81e2-636b1fda0269
mailto:privacy@fnf.com

12/3/23, 10:59 AM

Assessor Map Full - GeoAdvantage by Sentry Dynamics

00
3N3 AC

LOT?7

6000
37.86 AC

N TSIz 7R R T
EX .
_____ - a 1603 o 1600 & N fasot f, 57 R
: 321 AC g' 317 AC 0/5/ N\ ) E(-’)( 3 4| B
- 1 L/ X AL AL L
I 3 2 4225 %} f%%/ 7/ /#
= N4700 | 4701 | 4702 || 4703
| 2000 ¢ §2,18 AC | 244 AC | 251 AC|| 252/
2
' 19.91 AC Q g 7 ,({%L 2
o 2100 o RN B F
________________ - C
N\ \ NI, SN 3
ﬁt a\/{ \Sj 315 72 212.0|
h\ (" A 3312 \ LN
\ (_50 N
- O\ 1901 N .
(ea\ gy T03AC Q s
3 B4 CH N , I Q <\E
NE
5 NE
______________ N E "
NE g
NE ]
i ; 18.76 AC Q 10/
g e

I

PLUTHAM

ParcelID: 25902
Tax Account #: R320902300

3809 NE Springbrook Rd, Newberg OR 97132

This map/plat is being furnished as an aid in locating the herein described land in
relation to adjoining streets, natural boundaries and other land, and is not a survey
of the land depicted. Except to the extent a policy of title insurance is expressly
modified by endorsement, if any, the company does not insure dimensions,
distances, location of easements, acreage or other matters shown thereon.

https://clients.sentrydynamics.net/AssrMap/Full?parcelid=25902&cnty=0R_Yamhill

7



Appendix B - Vicinity Map

3809 NE Springbrook Road Annexation

07/11/2024
2
Tt Al LT S e T |
S
- BT

il
M P P R PR AT R B A L
<111 [ P i i S e e e R R
7474 i 2 T 1 P A OO e
S R P e SR R [
mmm?ﬂ [T FEEEE R
= B = HEEEEEE

- R e ch = e

.:}5:%@@%%@

g EHEEEE

' HiER =
izl

PR 3 Bl T TG T i =5

Chehalem
Glenn Golf
Course

sennnnnnn Existing City Limits

wmmmmmw= Newberg Urban Growth Boundary

% T I l

SPRINGBROOK SUBDIVISION ANNEXATION | 3) CONSULTING, INC.



Appendix B - Current Comprehensive Plan Designation

3809 NE Springbrook Road Annexation

07/10/2024

-

~ SPRINGBROOK SUBDIVISION ANNEXATION | 3] CONSULTING, INC.



Appendix B - Proposed Comprehensive and Zoning Designations

3809 NE Springbrook Road Annexation

07/10/2024

-

~ SPRINGBROOK SUBDIVISION ANNEXATION | 3] CONSULTING, INC.



P:\23913-3809 NE SPRINGBROOK RD SUBDIVISION\CAD\EXHIBITS-ANALYSIS\GENERAL USE PLAN\2024-09-09 UPDATED ZONING MAP FOR ANNEXATION\23913 - PROPOSED ZONING MAP.DWG

CITY OF NEWBERG LIMITS

URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY LIMITS

LDR - R-1

CITY OF NEWBERG LIMITS

HDR - R-3

HDR - R-3

URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY LIMITS

OPEN SPACE

SECTION 9, T.3S., R2W. W.M.,
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

LEGEND

PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY
PROPOSED CENTERLINE

————————————— EXISTING STREAM CORRIDOR
= mmm mmm =mm o= C|TY OF NEWBERG LIMITS
Il BN e URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY LIMITS

ZONE | GROSS SIZE (ACRE) | NET SIZE (ACRE)
R-1 16.14 15.81
R-3 3.02 3.01
TOTAL 19.16 18.82

S

SCALE: 1" =60’

0

FT
60 120

Know what's below.

| EXPIRES: 06/30/26 |

PUBLISH DATE
9/9/2024

ISSUED FOR

LAND USE DOCUMENTS

REVISIONS

ICHIJO USA CO., LTD.

GENERAL LAND USE PLAN
NE SPRINGBROOK RD
ANNEXATION

NEWBERG, OR

ownyY

ZgZ

T2
Z

Ll

G}

o
Gk
== Z2
> 2
o=
=
O
O

3J CONSULTING

9600 SW NIMBUS AVE., SUITE 100; BEAVERTON, OR 97008

PROJECT INFORMATION

3J PROJECT # | 23913
TAX LOT(S) | 3S2w9 2300
LAND USE # | TBD
DESIGNED BY | SRC
CHECKED BY | JJS

Call before you dig.
,

SHEET NUMBER

C201




City of

0.
~Newberg

Community Development Department

P.O. Box 970 = 414 E First Street = Newberg, Oregon 97132
503-537-1240. Fax 503-537-1272 www.newbergoregon.gov

NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING
ON A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

A property owner in your neighborhood submitted an application to the City of Newberg for a
planned unit development at 3809 NE Springbrook Road, Yamhill County tax lot R3209 02300.
The Newberg Planning Commission will hold a hearing on Date of Hearing at 7pm at the
Newberg Public Safety Building, 401 E. Third Street, Newberg, OR, to evaluate the proposal.
You are invited to take part in the City's review of this project by sending in your written
comments or testifying before the Planning Commission. For more details about giving
comments, please see the back of this sheet.

The application would create 100 lots at the PUD called Nagomi at Springbrook. Each lot will
be between approximately 4,000 square feet and 8,000 square feet and have a single-family
home built on each lot. Access to the development will be taken from NE Springbrook Road.

APPLICANT:
TELEPHONE:
PROPERTY OWNER:
LOCATION:

TAX LOT NUMBER:

Ichijo USA Co. LTD
503-946-9365

Ross D Kerr, Rolland G Kerr Jr
3809 NE Springbrook Road
R3209-02300

oy Sx_
/7 T —

L\ A \"\

s -
of
s
s
a4
i
I
Sy
& —
‘\x\'ip/ N Y
us f/ \,
- - 3 kY
i - / hY
/// //_/ l-ﬁ,_w //)
s \\ 5
A N
~ -~ -~ by
~ \
ey d N AN
//"/:" - N\ ~
e s l/,- ", L
T \ .

Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"'



http://www.newbergoregon.gov/

We are mailing you information about this project because you own land within 500 feet of the
proposed planned unit development. We invite you to participate in the land use hearing
scheduled before the Planning Commission. If you wish to participate in the hearing, you may
do so in person or be represented by someone else. You also may submit written comments. Oral
testimony is typically limited to five minutes per speaker.

If you mail your comments to the City, please put the following information on the outside of the
envelope:

Written Comments: File No. ~ PUD 24-0001
City of Newberg

Community Development Department

PO Box 970

Newberg, OR 97132

All written comments must be received by 4:30 p.m. on December XX, 2024. Written
information received after this time will be read out loud at the hearing subject to time limits for
speakers, and will be included in the record if there are further proceedings.

You can look over all the information about this project or drop comments off at Wastewater
Treatment Plant, 2301 NE Wynooski Road. You can also buy copies of the information for a
cost of 25 cents a page. A staff report relating to the proposal will be available for inspection at
no cost seven days prior to the public hearing. If you have any questions about the project, you
can call the Newberg Planning Division at 503-537-1240. Information can also be accessed at:
https://www.newbergoregon.gov/planning/page/current-planning-projects

Any issue which might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals
(LUBA) must be raised during the public hearing process. You must include enough detail to
enable the decision maker an opportunity to respond. The applicable criteria used to make a
decision on this application for a Planned Unit Development are found in Newberg Development
Code Section 15.240.030 (C).

Prior to the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing, any participant may request an
opportunity to present additional evidence, arguments or testimony regarding the application
through a continuance or extension of the record. Failure of an issue to be raised in the hearing,
in person or by letter, or failure to provide statements or evidence sufficient to afford the
decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the State Land Use
Board of Appeals based on that issue.

The Planning Commission will make a decision at the end of the public hearing process. If you
participate in the public hearing process, either by testifying at the public hearing, or by sending
in written comments, we will send you information about any decision made by the City relating
to this project.

Date Mailed: October XX, 2024

ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS:
In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City Recorder’s office of any special physical or language
accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. To request these
arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at 503-537-1283. For TRS services please dial 711.

Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"'


https://www.newbergoregon.gov/planning/page/current-planning-projects

To Our Neighbors at:
2525 ALLISON LN
NEWBERG, OR 97132

To Our Neighbors at:
14630 NE SPRINGBROOK RD
NEWBERG, OR 97132

To Our Neighbors at:
3809 NE SPRINGBROOK RD
NEWBERG, OR 97132

To Our Neighbors at:
14755 NE SPRINGBROOK RD
NEWBERG, OR 97132

To Our Neighbors at:
3113 CRESTVIEW DR
NEWBERG, OR 97132

To Our Neighbors at:
29105 NE BENJAMIN RD
NEWBERG, OR 97132

To Our <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>